
From: Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [El [/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP 

(FYDI BO HF 23SP DL T)/ CN =RE Cl Pl E NTS/ CN= 7829 21B9F08249 B59A582 E93 f 6963 F SF-BLACKJl 

Sent : 4/29/2020 6:S8:45 PM 

To: Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) (El (/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrat ive Group 

(FYDIBOHF23SPDL T)/cn=Recipients/cn=90fe9cae30c64cfbb67abd568e882796-lauerm]; Kosub, David (NIH/OD) [El 

(/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group 

(FYDI BO H F23SPDL T)/ cn=Reci pi ents/ cn=3e 3eccf5 7f 4e4fcfaecaa 7885 f39bee5-kosubd] 

CC: OER Press Group [/o=Exchangel abs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group 

(FYDIBOHF23SPDL T)/cn=Recipients/cn=0373283dff404a969ea109f86919dc9b-OER Press Gl 

Subject: Re: OER PRESS/NEED YOUR HELP: Media inquiries on EcoHealth Alliance 

Attachments: SR_29Apr2020_020207 _56918587(1](2).csv 

Hi David, just to be clear, the type 2 was only in t he first year, thus the total dollars includes the type 1 award (5 years) 
and the rt year of the second award to total 6 years of funding . 
The type 1 award was about $3M for 5 years and the pt year of type 2 was $292,161, so the total over 6 years is closer 
to 3.4M. 

Hope that helps 

Best, 
Jodi 

Jodi B. Black, PhD, MMSc 
Deputy Director 
Office of Extramural Research, NIH 

From: Mike Lauer (b)(6) 

Date: Wednesday, April 29, 2020 at 2:43 PM 
To: David Kosub (b)( , Jodi OER (b)(6) ---.---==~-----~~ Cc: OER Press Group <0ERPressGroup@mail.nih.gov>, Mike Lauer (b)(6) ----------Subject: Re: OER PRESS/NEED YOUR HELP: Media inquiries on EcoHealth Alliance 

Hi David - our WG meeting is on break. I'm fine with the language, (b) (5) . Attached ____ __;:._.=...;~=============:::::::~-~= 
are the tables from Re PORTER and from QVR - (b) (5) ~====~--------------------

Many thanks, Mike 

From: "Kosub, David (NIH/OD) [E]" ---------(b)(6) 

Date: Wednesday, April 29, 2020 at 2:31 PM 
To: "Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [E]" (b)(6), "Lauer, M ichael (NIH/OD) [E]" ----------(b)(6) 

Cc: OER Press Group <OERPressGroup@mail.nih.gov> 
Subject: FW: OER PRESS/NEED YOUR HELP: Media inquiries on EcoHealth Alliance 

Hi Jodi, 
Would you be able to clear the revised statement from OCPL below in Mike's absence? They requested a response and 

are getting inundated with requests on this 
THanks 
David 



(b)(6) From: Lauer, Michael {NIH/OD) [E] ---------Sent: Wednesday, April 29, 2020 2:04 PM 
To: Fine, Amanda {NIH/OD) [E] -------~= 

-======~,=:,,,;"' Cc: Myles, Renate {NIH/OD) [E] (b)( ; Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6); 
:.-..:...::....:.a!:::===~~---...... ...-

Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [E (b)(6); OER Press Group <OERPressGroup(&mai!.nih.gov>; Lauer, Michael 
{NIH/OD) [E] ---------(b)(6) 

Subject: Re: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth Alliance 

Hi Amanda - Sorry, I'm tied up this afternoon - here's the table of the history of the grant. 

Thanks, Mike 

From: "Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD} [E]" Cb)(6) 

Date: Wednesday, April 29, 2020 at 1:48 PM --------~= To: "Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [El" (b)(6) 

Cc: "Myles, Renate (NIH/OD) [E]" Cb)( , "Wojtowicz, Emma {NIH/OD) [E]" 
CbH6), "Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [El" CbH , OER Press Group -----------< O ERP res s Group@ mail . n i h. gov> 

Subject: RE: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth All iance 

Just to update you we've received a few more inquiries on this. Hoping to get back to them as soon as possible. 
We know you're swamped but when you have a moment let us know if we are able to share the below 
response. 

Thanks! 
Amanda 

From: Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD) [E] 
Sent: Wednesday, April 29, 2020 12:38 PM -------~~ To: Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6) ·.:=.========--=--Cc: Myles, Renate {N IH/OD) [E] (b)(6); Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD) [E] 
_ ___:_;...._ _ __;__,;__...:..:....:..!:=======-(b~)~(6); Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [El ------='(b"'"")(=6); OER 

Press Group <0ERPressGroup@maiLnih.gov> 
Subject: FW: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth Alliance 

Hi Mike-

Sorry for the delay, we were tied up rolling out the RADx announcement. Discussed with Renate and based on 
what you provided below, could we respond to these inquiries by saying the following. One question is whether 
this grant is for 5 or 6 years: 

(b) (5) 



Thanks, 
Amanda 

From: Lauer, Michael {NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6) 

Sent: Tuesday, April 28, 2020 7:09 PM 
To: Fine, Amanda {NIH/OD) [E] -------=o(b"'"")('="6) 

Cc: Myles, Renate (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6); Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD) [E] 
(b)(6); Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6); OER Press Group ----------< 0 f.R Press Group ( w mail. n i h. gov>; Lauer, M ichael (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6) 

Subject: Re: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth Alliance 

Hi Amanda 

Many thanks, Mike 

From: "Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD} [E)" ---------(b)(6) 

Date: Tuesday, April 28, 2020 at 5:54 PM 
To: "Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD} [E]" _______ ""'(b~) =c6) 

Cc: "Myles, Renate (NIH/OD) [E]" (b)(6) , "Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD) [E]" 
(b)(6), "Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [E]" (b)(6), OER Press Group __________ _, 

<0ERPressGroup@mail.nih.gov> 

Subject: RE: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquir ies on EcoHealth All iance 

Hi Mike-

(b) (5) 

(b) (5) 

As you are probably can guess we're getting a lot of media inquiries on this topic. There have been several 
articles that cite the April 19 letter from you to EcoHealth Alliance. Since this letter is now somewhat public, the 
first paragraph has definitely been quoted in several places, (b) (5) 



Thanks for your guidance, 
Amanda 

From: Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6) 
Sent: Tuesday, April 28, 2020 1:39 PM 

(b) (5) 

To: Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD) [E]--------(b=H=6); Myles, Renate (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6); 

Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6); Showe, Melanie (NIH/OD) [E] ·_..:..:....:.!:===~(b~)(~6):----

Cc: Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6); OER Press Group 
<.Q~RPressGrnup@mail.nih.g9.y>; Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [E] (b)( 

Subject: Re: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth Alliance 

(b) (5) 

(b) (5) 

Many thanks, Mike 

From: "Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD) [E]" ---------(b)(6) 

Date: Tuesday, April 28, 2020 at 12:40 PM -------~~ To: "Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [El' (b)(6), "Myles, Renate (NIH/OD) [El" 
(b)(6), "Black, Jo- d-:".'i -:-:( N'."':"l:"'."'.H~/ O':"":"'D ):-:[~E':':".]11-======:.:...._.....:..~(b,.,.) -c=-(6), "Showe, Me la nie (NIH/ OD) 

':-:[E:::] ,::-::, =====~(b'7'") =c6) 

Cc: "Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD) [E]" (b)(6), OER Press Group ----------<OERPressGroup@mai! .nlh.gov> 
Subject: RE: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth All iance 

Hi Mike-

Thanks, regarding the highlighted below, (b) (5) -----------------
Amanda 

From: Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [E] --------(b)(6) 

Sent: Tuesday, April 28, 202012:12 PM 
To: Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD) [E]-------..(b.-H=6); Myles, Renate (NIH/._O_D..:..) .:..[E..:..]~===~-(b_H_6); 
Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6); Showe, Melanie (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6) --------



Cc: Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6); OER Press Group 

<Q.f.8Pr..~ii~G..r.m1.P.@.rn.,.)U,_Qi_b_,g9.y_>; Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6) 

Subject: Re: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth Alliance 

Hi Amanda - (b)(5) 
(b) (5) 

Thanks, Mike 

From: "Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD) [E)" ---------(b)(6) 

Date: Tuesday, April 28, 2020 at 12:05 PM -------~~ To: " Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [E]" CbH ·, "Myles, Renate (NIH/OD) [E]" 
(b)( , "Black, Jo"-:d-:--i(:-:-N-:--:-:1 H""."/-:-:O:-::D:-:-}-:[=E]:-::-11.======~......;.-(b""')-c=(6), "Showe, Me la nie (NIH/ OD} 

':"'.[E:':".]'~' =====~(b=)(=6) 

Cc: "Wojtowicz, Emma {NIH/OD) [E]" (b)(6), OER Press Group ------------
<OERPressGroup@rnail .nlh.gov> 

Subject: RE: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth All iance 

Hi Mike-

Science magazine asked for the "law or regulation" that gives NIH authority to stop funding a grant midstream in 
the absence of fraud or other findings of misconduct? 

(b) (5) Based on what we discussed yesterday, how do you recommend we respond? ------------
Thanks! 

Amanda 

From: Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6) 

Sent: Monday, April 27, 2020 7:21 PM 
To: Myles, Renate (NIH/OD) [E]------=(b"'""H=6); Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD) [El (b)(6); 

Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [El (b)(6); Showe, Melanie (NIH/OD) [E] _:.....:...:!:::===~(b:;::)(~6):----

Cc: Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6); OER Press Group 
<OERPressGroup@mail.nih.gov>; Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6) 

Subject: Re: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth Alliance 

Hi Renate - yes, agree, ---------(b) (5) 

Best, Mike 

From: "Myles, Renate (NIH/OD} [E)" ----------(b)(6) 

Date: Monday, April 27, 2020 at 7:20 PM 
--------ca= To: "Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD} [E]" Cb)( , "Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD} [E]" 
---:---:----:-:-::-:-:-:===~-___..:...~~ 

CbH6), "Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [E]" CbH6), "Showe, Melanie (NIH/OD) 
':":[E:-:] ::-:" ======~Cb::.,..>~<6) -------



Cc: "Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD) [E]" (b)(6), OER Press Group -----------
<OERPressGroup@mail ,nl,h.gov> 

Subject: RE: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth All iance 

Hi Mike: 

Thanks, 
Renate 

From: Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6) 

Sent: Monday, April 27, 2020 7:14 PM 
To: Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD) [E] --------=-(bc-)(c=6); Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [E] (b)( ·; Showe, 
Melanie (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6) 

Cc: Myles, Renate (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6); Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD) [E] 
(b)( ; OER Press Group <0ERPressGroup@rnaiLnih.gov>; Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [E] 

~=====~(b)~(6)~-

Subject: Re: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth Alliance 

Hi Amanda 

Thanks, Mike 

From: "Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD} [E]" (b)(6) 

Date: Monday, April 27, 2020 at 6:22 PM 
To: "Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD} [E]"------~Cb~H~6J, "Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [E]" 

CbH6>, "Showe, Melanie (NIH/OD) [E]" (b)(6) --------
Cc: "Myles, Renate (NIH/OD} [E]" (b)(6), "Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD} [E]" 

(b) (5) 



CbH6), OER Press Group <OERPressGroup(@mall.nih.gov> -----------Subject: RE: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth All iance 

Hi Mike-

Thanks in advance for your guidance, 
Amanda 

Standard language: 

(b)(6) From: Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [E] ---------
Sent: Monday, April 27, 2020 5:45 PM 

(b) (5) 

To: Fine, Amanda {NIH/OD) [E]------~(b~)(~6); Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [E) (b)( ·; Showe, 

Melanie (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6) 

Cc: Myles, Renate (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6); Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD) [E] 
(b)(6); OER Press Group <0 ERPressGroup(@rnaiLnih.gov>; Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [E] 

=========(b):;:(6):::;;--

Subject: Re: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth Alliance 

Hi Amanda (b) (5) -------------------------------- But I'm not seeing this in any public venue. 

Best, Mike 

From: "Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD} [E]" ________ ...., (b)(6) 

Date: Monday, April 27, 2020 at 4:27 PM 

To: "Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD} [E]" --------:aCb=H= , "Black, Jodi (NIH/OD} [E]" 

CbH6), "Showe, Melanie (NIH/OD) [E]" CbH6) --------
Cc: "Myles, Renate (NIH/OD} [E]" CbH6>, "Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD} [E]" 

(b)(6), OER Press Group <0ERPressGroup@mall.nih.gov> -----------
Subject: RE: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth All iance 



Thanks Mike-and is that response public? 

From: Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) (E] (b)(6) 

Sent: Monday, April 27, 20204:17 PM 
To: Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD) [E]------~Cb~H~6J; Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6); Showe, 

Melanie (NIH/OD) [E] (b)( 

Cc: Myles, Renate (NIH/OD) [El (b)(6); Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD) [E] 

=======~~Cb;-H_6J; OER Press Group <Q.fB.P.r..~S..S..G._r.9.yf'.@.'Y.l_:~_i_!_._l'._li_h_,g~_,y>; Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [El 
(b)(6) 

Subject: Re: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth Alliance 

Hi Amanda - (b)(5 -----------------------------
Best, Mike 

From: "Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD} [E]" (b)(6) 

Date: Monday, April 27, 2020 at 3:40 PM 

To: "Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [E]" --------==Cb-=--H-=-6), "Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [E]" 

(b)(6), "Showe, Melanie (NIH/OD) [E]" (b)(6) ---------
Cc: "Myles, Renate (NIH/OD} [E]" (b)(6), "Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD} [E]" 

_________ Cb_H_6) , OER Press Group <Q_~_R.P.t~:>.?.G.t9..Y.P..@.r.D?.U:..0..lb.:_g9.y> 
Subject: RE: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth All iance 

Hi Mike-

Thanks so much again for your input. One question we're not sure how to answer, (b)(5) 

to that question? 

Thanks! 
Amanda 

From: Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) IE] (b)(6) ________ _, 

Sent: Monday, April 27, 2020 2:39 PM 

. Do you have guidance on how to respond 

To: Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD) [E]------~Cb~H~6J; Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [E] CbH6); Showe, 
Melanie (NIH/OD) [E] CbH6J; Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) IE] ...:..:.:....:.::=====(b~)~C~ 

Cc: Myles, Renate (NIH/OD) [El (b)(6); Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD) [E] 
(b)(6); OER Press Group <0ERPressGroup@maiLnih.gov> ----------Subject : Re: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth Alliance 

Please send me an invite with your conference line, thanks 

From: "Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD} [E]" ---------(b)(6) 

Date: Monday, April 27, 2020 at 2:32 PM 

To: "Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD} [E]"------~Cb~H~6J, "Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [E]" 

CbH6), "Showe, Melanie (NIH/OD) [E]" (b)(6) --------
Cc: "Myles, Renate {NIH/OD} [E]" Cb)( , "Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD) [E]" 

__________ Cb>_< ..... , OER Press Group <9 .~B.P..r.~?.?.G.r9._1,1_p_@_r.1-~?.U:..r.i.Lh..:_g1::r11.> 
Subject: RE: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth All iance 



Either work. What number should we call or do you want to use the OCPL conference line? 

From: Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [E] ---------(b)(6) 

Sent: Monday, April 27, 2020 2:29 PM 
To: Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD) [E]------~(b-)(=6); Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6); --------Showe, Melanie (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6) 

Cc: Myles, Renate (NIH/OD) [E] (b)((;); Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD) [E] 

~~~~:-:-:====(b=)=(6)~ ; o_ E.,R=P,..,,re~ss Group <QfgP.r..~~;-~_§._r_2YR@.r.0_:}_i_!_._12i.h_,g~_,y>; Lauer, Michael 
(NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6) ----------Subject: Re: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth Alliance 

Probably best for us to talk- I'm "free" from 3:05 to 3:25 if that works. 

Thanks, Mike 

(b)(6) From: "Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD) [E)" -----------Date: Monday, April 27, 2020 at 2:21 PM 
To: "Lauer, Michael {NIH/OD) [E]"---------(b-.-H=6J, "Black, Jodi {NIH/OD) [E)" 

(b)(6) 

Cc: "Myles, Renate (NIH/OD) [E]" (b)(6), "Wojtowicz, Emma (NIH/OD) 

[E]" (b)(6), OER Press Group <0ERPressGroup@mail.nih.gov> 

Subject: FOR INPUT AND GUIDANCE: Media inquiries on EcoHealth Alliance 

Hi Mike and Jodi-

NIAID has been receiving inquiries about the EcoHealth Alliance grant. In addition to the 2 listed 
below in Jen's email they received a sim ilar one from Newsweek. We want to answer these 
questions. Would you provide guidance on how best to answer them? Thanks and hope you're 
both staying well. 

Newsweek: 

From: Fred Guterl <f.guter!@newsweek.com> 

Hi, we're running a story tomorrow morning at 10 am that mentions Dr. Fauci and we'd like to 
ask for a comment. 

The story is about the possibility that SARS-Cov-2 is a product of gain of function research at the 
Wuhan Institute of Virology. The story mentions Dr. Fauci as an early proponent of the work of 
Ron Fouchier et al. ten years ago, quotes from his Washington Post article of 2011 on the 
importance of the research as a way of preparing for a pandemic. We trace the lifting of the 
moratorium and subsequent accusations that the NIH was acting to too little transparency in 
approving projects. 

Sorry to spring this on you on Sunday night. Many thanks in advance. 

Best, 
Fred 



(b)(6) From: Routh, Jennifer (NIH/NIAID} [E] _________ _, 

Sent: Monday, April 27, 2020 1:38 PM 
To: Myles, Renate (NIH/OD) [E] --------=-(bc--H= ; Fine, Amanda (NIH/OD} [E] 

(b)(6) 

Cc: Billet, Courtney (NIH/NIAID) [E] (b)( ; Stover, Kathy (NIH/NIAID) [E] 
(b)(6); Haskins, Melinda (NIH/NIAID) [E] (b)(6) ---------Subject: Eco Health Alliance grant / Wuhan lab 

Importance: High 

Hi Renate-

NIAID received media inquiries last week from Snopes and Politifact related to the NIAID grant 
to EcoHealth Alliance (see below). Kathy and I just had a conversation with NIAID grants 
management and learned that OER communicated with this grantee on Friday and we believe 
media inquiries on this topic would be best handled by OER now. Happy to discuss more via 
phone. We are holding on any responses to media on this topic right now. 

INQUIRY FROM SNOPES 

QUESTION: 
This is Dan Evon from the fact-checking website Snopes. We've been receiving questions about a 
recent article published in the Daily Mall that claims the Obama administration provided a $3.7 
million grant to the Wuhan Institute of Virology, and I was hoping to get some more informat ion 
from you. 

The Daily Mail appears to be referring to NIAID award R01All10964. That award went to the 
Eco Health Alliance in New York and subsequently funded a research paper from the Wuhan 
Institute. 

Has NIH issued any direct grants to the Wuhan Institute of Virology? The NIH RePORT tool shows 
funding to Wuhan University in 2019 and 2018, but not (unless I missed something) from 
previous years. 

Did NIH provide a $3.7 million grant to the Wuhan Institute of Virology between 2008 and 2016? 
Can you tell me more about the grants awarded to Wuhan University in 2018 and 2019? 

Any information you can provide would be greatly appreciated. 

INQUIRY FROM POUTIFACT 

QUESTION: 
We're fielding a claim that NIH gave a $3.7 million grant to a virology lab in Wuhan in 2015. Can 
you share any relevant grant or contract activity around that time and place? 

NIAID PROVIDED THIS RESPONSE (general cleared language): 
First, to be clear, scientific research indicates there is no evidence that SARS-CoV-2 was created 
in a laboratory: https://www.sciencedailv.c:om/releases/2020/03/20031.7l75442.htrn 

Most emerging human viruses come from wildlife, and these represent a significant t hreat to 
public health and biosecurity in the US and globally, as demonstrated by the SARS epidemic of 
2002-03, and the current COVID-19 pandemic. The grant you are referencing is a multi-site, 
multi-country project supporting research that aims to understand what factors allow 



coronaviruses, including close relatives to SARS, to evolve and jump into the human population 
and cause disease (called a spillover event). Specifically, the project includes studying viral 
diversity in animal (bats) reservoirs, surveying people that live in high-risk communities for 
evidence of bat-coronavirus infection, and conducting laboratory experiments to analyze and 
predict which new ly discovered viruses pose the greatest threat to human health. The $3.7M 
dollar figure is the total funding over 6 years to all sites which include China, Thailand, 
Cambodia, Laos, Vietnam, Malaysia, Indonesia, and Myanmar. Additional details are available on 
the NIH RePORTER tool: 

https://proiectreporter.nih.gsw/proiect info description.dm?aid=9819304&icde=49588715&d 
dparam=:.&ddva!ue,::&dds.ub-·.-.-.&cr·::1&csb=.-.default&cs,·::ASC&pball== 

REPORTER FOLLOWED UP WITH THESE QUESTIONS: 

Focusing on the money, 5!.9._g_$. .. !b.t$. .. ~.!.?.~.m:Ji.r:Ht.g_2yJ_y_m_m_g_!'.Y, (Grant tab; see Wuhan University) tell 
me how much the Wuhan lab in question got from the overall $3.7 million? I see $517,000. 
Could that be for a different project? I don't like to assume that what I see in one data set maps 
to what I see in another one. Also, is the project done, and has any money due to Wuhan been 
withdrawn/put on hold, etc? Lastly, if you want to make sure I see the scientific articles specific 
to the Wuhan research, please feel free to highlight them. I will go through the results list, but 
it's always better if you make sure I don't miss one. 

I just noticed that the project description mentions only China, not the other countries you said. 
Can you sort that out for me?(" ... sites which include China, Thailand, Cambodia, Laos, Vietnam, 
Malaysia, Indonesia, and Myanmar.") 

Never mind about the $517,000. It's definitely not related. It 's about an other virus. As much 
detail on the money trail as you can get will be most appreciated. And if that link to the 
$.p~_o_tjJ_Qg_._ggy __ q!J_QIY. is relevant, please let me know. 

Jennifer Routh [E] 
News and Science Writing Branch 
Office of Communications and Government Relations 
National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases (NIAID) 
NIH/HHS 
31 Center Drive Room 7A17C 
Bethesda, MD 20892 
Direct: Cb) (6) 

(bli_~ 
1sclaimer: The1nfomiahon in this e-mail and any of its attachments is confidential and may contain sensitive information. It 

should not be used by anyone IMlO is not the original intended recipient. If you have received this e-mail in error please inform the 
sender and delete it from your mailbox or any other storage devices. The National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases 
shall not accept liability for any statements made that are sender's own and not expressly made on behalf of the NIAID by one of 
its representatives. 



From: Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) (E] [/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP 

(FYDI BOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECI Pl ENTS/CN =90FE9C AE30C64CFBB67 ABDS68E882 796- LAU ERM) 

Sent: 3/30/20216:07:16 PM 

To: Jacobs, Anna (NIH/OD) [El [/o=Exchangela bs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group 

(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Reci pi ents/cn=e76eeb11df9a4024b53864ffa c4c4c56-ja cobs al); Lankford, Davi d (NIH/OD) 

(El [/o=Exchangela bs/ou=Excha nge Administrative Group 

CC: 

(FYDI BOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Reci pi ents/cn=4f2 9a 9 bef6 72409d967 e3a a Sfb36e96a -Ian kford] 

Lauer, M i chael (NIH/OD) (E) [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group 

(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Reci pi ents/cn=90fe9ca e30c64cfbb67a bd568e882 796 -la uerm) 

Subject : Re: FYI--Joi nt Statement of 13 Countri es on the WHO-Convened COVI D-19 Origins Study 

Attachments: Re: A current issue and the possibility of a chat? 

Mike 

From: "Jacobs, Anna {NIH/OD) [E]" ----------(b)(6) 

Date: Tuesday, March 30, 2021 at 2:01 PM --------~~ To: "Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [E]" CbH6), "Lankford, David (NIH/OD} [E]" ----------(b )( 6) 

Subject: FYI--Joint Statement of 13 Countries on the WHO-Convened COVID-19 Origins Study 

httos:/ /www .state.gov/joint-staterne nt-on-the-who-convened-covid-19-o rigins-study/ 

Anna L Jacobs, J.D., M.5. 
Senior Attorney 
HHS Office of the General Counsel 
Public Health Division, Nlf-1 Branch 
31 Center Drive, Bldg. 31, Rm.2B-50 

Bethesda, MD20892 
___ Cb_H_6l (phone) 
301-402-1034 (fax) 

(b)(6) 

(b) (5) 

NOTICE: The contents of this message and any attachments may be privileged and confidential. Please do not 
d isseminate without the approval of the Office of the Genera1 Counsel. If you are not an intended recipient, or have 
received this message in e rror, please delete it without reading it and please do not pri nt, copy, forward, disseminat e, or 
otherwise use this i nformation. Also, please notify the sender that you have received this communication in e rror. Your 
receipt of this message is not intended to waive any applicable privilege. 



From: Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E) [/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP 

(FYDI BO H F2 3SP DL T)/CN=R ECI PI ENTS/ CN =0 2 E2 2 836 BS FF4 E9 988 E3 7 70CFC7EE7 7 0-T AB AK L) 

Sent: 3/29/20212:01:58 AM 
To: Col I ins, Francis (NI H/OD) (E] [/o=Excha ngela bs/ou=Excha nge Administrative Group 

(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Reci pi ents/cn=410e1ca 313f44ced9938eS0d2ff0b6c2 -coll ins f]; Lauer, M i cha el (NIH/OD) [El 

1/o=Excha ngela bs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group 

(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipi ents/cn=90fe9cae30c64cfbb67a bd568e882796-la uerml; Wol i netz, Carrie (NI H/OD) [El 

[/o=Excha ngela bs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group 

(FYDI BOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Rec i pi ents /cn=1c6SS040d4 7346c 7b04d7bc11a403ecb-wol inetzcdl 

Subject : Re: A current issue and the possibility of a chat? 

Attachments: 2021.03.16 - NIH Letter on WIV[2).pdf; US STATE DEPT CABLES in Appendix to GOP-Report-OriginsOfCOVID-19-

Globa I -Pa ndemi c-I ncl uding-Roles-of-CCPa ndWHO .09.20.20[2).pdf 

Francis, 
(b)(5) The minority staff of E&C wrote a "Chairman-like" letter -----------------------asking for documents ( attached). 

(b) (5) 

Larry 

From: Francis Collins (b)(6) 

Date: Sunday, March 28, 2021 at 9:54 PM 
To: "Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E] "--------=(b-c-)(c=6), "Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD} [E)" 

CbH6>f, "Wol inetz, Carrie (NIH/OD} [E]" (b)(6) ----------Subject: FW: A current issue and the possibility of a chat? 

See below. (b) (5) 

From: David A Reiman (b)(6) 

Sent: Saturday, March 27, 20211:07 PM ---------=cc-c-=--To: Colli ns, Francis (NIH/OD) [E] (b)(6) 

Cc: David A Reiman (b)(6) _________ ,. 
Subject: A current issue and the possibi lity of a chat? 

Francis-

I hope you are well (as well as one could hope given the times and circumstances). 

I wonderwhetheryou would have a bit of time fora chat with me about the current state of our understanding about 
the origi ns of the pandemic, and t he increasingly divisive and polarized discussion a boutthis topic, not only in the public 
forum but also within the scientific community? 

I'm motivated to write you by three developments this past week: 1) a lengthy and pointed letter that was sent to you 
and made public by the Republican leadership of the House E&C Committee, which unfortunatelyfeatured my name 
and words on t he front page; 2) calls yesterday from the Democratic leadership of the Maryland State Legislature for the 
dismissal ofRobert Redfield as an advisor to the Governor for offering his opinion about the possibility of a lab leak in 
Wuhan;and 3) an email that was shared w ith me, written by a prominentASM memberand virologist chastising me out 
for raising questions about how much we don1 t know about the origins of the pandemic. 



All of this is incredibly unfortunate, but it also highlights an important opportunity and need, that is, for t he scientific 
community to step up and take an honest, dispassionate, deli berate, and impartial examination of the scientific data 
that bearon the origins question. There are some incredibly important questions, not just about what happened, but 
also about how we should go about understanding biological threats that arise from nature, as well as from the activities 
of humans, and how we should manage trade offs between benefits and risks in science. NIH can (and IMHO, really must) 
play a leading role in this discussion. This discussion wi II require a lot more transparency and humility (vice, confident 
assertions in the absence of good evidence), a willingness to listen to diverse points of view, as well as a willingness to 
acknowledge some important deficiencies in the current availability of data (that bear on the origins question). 

All of this to say, might you be interested in discussi ngthis? 

Thanks for consideringthesethoughts and suggestions, at what I know must be a hectic time. 

Best, David 

David A Reiman, MD 
Thomas C. and Joan M. Merigan Professor 
Departments of Medicine, and of Microbiology & Immunology 
Stanford Univers ity School of Medicine 

Senior Fellow, Center for International Security and Cooperation 
Stanford University 
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March 18, 2021 

The Honorable Francis Collins, M.D. , Ph.D. 
Director 
National Institutes of Health 
9000 Rockville Pike 
Bethesda, MD 20892 

Dear Dr. Collins, 

We write to request information, assistance, and needed-leadership from the National 
Jnstitutes of Health (NIH) to advance an independent, scienti.fic investigation into the origins of 
the COVID-19 pandemic. 

The COVID-19 pandemic has been the worst public health crisis in the U.S. in about a 
hundred years. Over a year has passed since the deadly virus reached our shores and yet, the 
origin of the virus has yet to be determined. An independent, expert investigation of the origin 
of COVID-19 is of paramount importance to public health and biosecurity. As noted by Stanford 
Medical School Professor David Relman: 

A more complete understanding of the origins of COVID-19 clearly serves the 
interests of every person in every country on this planet. It will limit further 
recriminations and diminish the likelihood of conflict; it will lead to more effective 
responses to this pandemic, as well as efforts to anticipate and prevent the next one. 
It will also advance our discussions about risky science. And it will do something 
else: Delineating COVID-19's origin story will help elucidate the nature of our very 
precarious coexistence within the biosphere. 1 

Recently, the World Health Organization (WHO) attempted to investigate the origin of 
COVJD-19. The WHO said that this investigative mission would be guided by the science, be 

1 David A. Reiman, Opinion: To stop the next pandemic, we need to unravel the origins ofCOVJD-19, PNAS (Nov. 
2020), available at https://www.pnas.org/content/l l 7 /47 /29246. 
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"open-minded," and "not exclude[e] any hypothesis."2 Unfortunately, China did not provide 
complete access or independence for the critical WHO mission. On February 13, 2021, National 
Security Advisor Jake Sullivan issued the following statement: 

We have deep concerns about the way in which the early findings of the COVJD-
19 investigation were communicated and questions about the process used to reach 
them. It is imperative that this report be independent, with expert findings free from 
intervention or alteration by the Chinese government. To better understand this 
pandemic and prepare for the next one, China must make avail.able its data from 
the earliest days of the outbreak. 3 

Because ofrising tensions between the U.S. and China, the WHO scrapped plans for an 
interim report.4 An international group of science experts, including specialists in virology, 
microbiology, and zoology, asked for a new review. 5 

The NIH, as a premier scientific institution, must lead in order to foster a transparent, 
independent, and science-based investigation into the origin of the COVID-19 pandemic. Such 
an effort must meet the WHO's stated goals of an open-minded investigation that does not 
exclude any plausible hypothesis.6 In addition, the NIH is well-positioned to gather and provide 
infomrntion through oversight of its grants and other federal awards. Thus, the NIH is in a 
un ique pos ition to investigate the possibi lity that the pandemic stemmed from a laboratory 
accident or leak, especially regarding the Wuhan Jnstitute of Viro logy (WIV). 

NIH raised concerns over a possible link between WIV and the COVID-19 outbreak 
during its review of federal awards to EcoHealth Alliance, a global environmental health 
nonprofit organization dedicated to protecting wi ldlife and public health from the emergence of 
disease. Of the $13.7 million in federal awards that NIH authorized for EcoHealth Alliance, 17 

2 Snuiti Mallapaty, Where did COVID come from? WHO investigation begins but faces challenges, NATURE (Nov. 
l J, 2020), available at https: //www.natw-e.com/articles/d41586-020-03 l65-9. 
3 Tbe Wb.ite House, Statemeot of ational Security Advisor Jake Sul livan (Feb. 13, 2021 ), available at 
h ttps ://www. wh itebouse. gov /briefi ng-room/statemeots-rel eases/202 J /02/ I 3/statement-by-na ti ooa I-security-advisor­
jake-su I livao/. 
4 Betsy McKay, Drew Hioshaw and Jeremy Page, VVHO Investigators lo Scrap Plans for Interim Report on Probe of 
Covid-19 Origins, THE WALL STREET JOUR.NAL (Mar. 4, 2021), available at https: //www.wsj.com/articies/who-
i ovestigators-to-scrap-.i nterim-report-on-probe-of-covid- l 9-origi ns- J l 6 I 4865067?mod= latest_ beadl.ioes 
5 Jaime Metzl, et a l, Call for a Full and Unrestricted International Forensic Investigation into the Origins of 
COVJD-19 (March 4, 2021 ), available al 
https://s.wsj.net/public/resources/documents/COVID%200PEN%20LETTER%20FTNAL%2003042 l %20( ] ).pdf. 
Tbe co-organizer oftbe letter and a WHO advisor on human geoome ed iting, Jaime Metz!, PhD, said there is ao 
eigbty-five percent chance the pandemic started w.itb an accideotal leak from the WIV or Wuhan CDC laboratory, 
available at https://jamiemetzl.com/origins-of-sars-cov-2/. ("I have no definitive way of proving this thesis but the 
evidence is, in my view, extremely convincing. If forced to place odds on the confidence of my hypothesis, I would 
say there's an 85% chance the pandemic staited with an accidental leak from the Wuhan Institute of Virology or 
Wuhan CDC and a 15% chance it began in some other way (in fairness, here is an article making the case for a 
zoonotic jump "in the wild") . If China keeps preventing a full and unrestricted international forensic investigation 
into the origins of the pandemic, I believe it is fair to deny Beijing the benefit of the doubt.") 
6 Washington Post Editorial Board, We're still missing the origin story of this pandemic. China is sitting on the 
answers, Tiffi WASHINGTON POST (Feb. 5, 2021), available at 
https://www.washingtonpost.com/opinions/202 l /02/05/coronavirus-origins-mystery-china/?arc404=true. 
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projects sponsored by the National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Disease (NlAID) have 
provided over $7.9 million in federal awards for research of viral emergence from bats in 
Southeast Asia. 7 Eco Health Alliance passed some of its funding to the WIV, and in 2020, NIH 
made effo11s to obtain information from EcoHealth Alliance about WIV related to concerns 
about the origins of COVJD-19. In April 2020, NIH wrote to EcoHealth Alliance and Columbia 
University about an NIH-funded project entitled, "'Understanding the Risk of Bat Coronavirus 
Emergency:" 

It is our understanding that one of the sub-recipients of the grant funds is the Wuhan 
Institute of Virology ('WIV') . lt is our understanding that WlV studies the 
interaction between corona viruses and bats. The scientific community believes 
that the coronavirus causing COVID-19 jumped from bats to humans likely in 
Wuhan where the COVJD-19 pandemic began. There are now allegations that the 
current crisis was precipitated by the release from WIV of the coronavirus 
responsible for COVID-19. Given these concerns, we are pursuing suspension of 
WIV from participation in Federal programs. It is in the public interest that NIH 
ensure that a sub-recipient has taken all appropriate precautions to prevent the 
release of pathogens that it is studying. This suspension of the sub-recipient does 
not affect the remainder of your grant assuming that no grant funds are provided to 
WIV following receipt of this email during the period of suspension.8 

In January 2021 , the U. S. Department of State issued a fact sheet about the activity at the 
WIV.9 Among other revelations, it reported the following: 

• The U.S. government has reason to believe that several researchers inside the WIV became 
sick in autumn 2019, before the first identified case of the outbreak, with symptoms 
consistent with both COVJD-19 and common seasonal illnesses. This raises questions about 
the credibility of WIV senior researcher Shi Zhengli's public claim that there was "zero 
infection" among the WJV's staff and students of SARS-Co V-2 or SARS-related viruses. 10 

• Starting in at least 2016, WIV researchers conducted experiments involving RaTG 13, the 
bat coronavirus identified by the WlV in January 2020 as the closest sample to SARS-CoV-
2 (96.2 percent similar). 11 There was no indication that this research was suspended at any 
time prior to the COVID-19 outbreak. 

• The WIV has a published record of conducting "gain-of-function" research to engineer 
chimeric viruses. 12 But the WIV has not been transparent or consistent about its record of 

7 NIH RePORTER, Research Portfolio Online Reporting Tools (queried Mar. 4, 2021), available at 
https :/ /repo1ter. nib.gov /search/ qlYUel9 D lk2J fWUdCc WxcA/proj ects/charts . 
8 Mark Moore, NIH investigating Wuhan lab at center of corona virus pandemic, EW YORK POST (Apr. 28, 2020), 
available at https://nypost.com/2020/04/28/nih-investigating-wuhan-lab-at-center-of-coronavirus-pandemic/ . 
9 U.S. Department of State, Fact Sheet: Activity at the Wuhan Institute of Virology, Office of the Spokesperson (Jan. 
15, 2021), available at https://2017-2021.state.gov/fact-sheet-activity-at-the-wuhan-institute-of­
vi.rology//index.html. 
io Id. 
I I Id. 
i2 Id. 
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studying viruses similar to the COVID-19 virus, including "RaTG13," which was sampled 
from a cave in Yunnan Province in 20 l 3 after several miners died of SARS-like illness. 13 

• WHO investigators must have access to the records of the WN's work on bat and other 
coronaviruses before the COVID-19 outbreak. As part of a thorough inquiry, they must 
have a full accounting of why the WIV altered and then removed online records of its work 
with RaTG13 and otherviruses.14 

• D spite the WIV presenting itself as a civilian institution, th U.S. has determined that the 
WIV has collaborated on projects with China's militaiy.15 The WIV has engaged in 
classified research, including laboratory animal experiments, on behalf of the Chinese 
military since at least 2017. 16 

• The U.S. and other donors who funded or collaborated on civilian research at the WIV have 
a right and obligation to determine whether any of our research funding was diverted to 
secret Chinese military projects at the WIV. 17 

Notably, the State Department 's former lead investigator who oversaw the Task Force 
into the COVID-19 virus origin stated recently that he not only believes the virus escaped from 
the WIV, but that it may have been the result of research that the Chinese military, or People's 
Liberation Army, was doing on a bioweapon. 18 

Accordingly, it is imperative to determine not only where SARS-CoV-2 originated, but 
also how and ifNIH's funding and research to projects at the WIV could have contributed to 
SARS CoV-2. To assist our requests and inquiry, please provide the following by April 19, 
2021: 

13 Jd. 
14 Jd. 
1s 1d. 
16 Jd. 
11 Id. 

l. An assessment from a classified U.S. Defense Intelligence Agency (DIA) report included 
the possibility that the origins of SARS Co V-2 could have emerged accidentally from a 
laboratory in Wuhan, China due to unsafe laboratory practices. 19 The DIA report cited 
U.S. government and Chinese researchers who found "about 33 percent of the original 41 
identified cases did not have direct exposure" to the market.20 That, along with what is 
known of the WIV's work in past few years, raised reasonable suspicion that the 

18 Jenr1ifer Griffin, Fornier top State Dept. investigator says COVJD-1 9 outbreak may have resulted from 

bioweapons research accident, Fox News (March l3, 2021), available at https://www.foxnews.com/world/top­
state-official-coronavirus-bioweapon-accident 

19 Fred Guterl, Naveed Jamali and Tom O'Connor, The Controversial Experiments ad Wuhan Lab Suspected of 
Starting the Coronavirus Pandemic, NEWSWEEK (Apr. 27, 2020), available at 
https://www.newsweek.com/controversial-wuhan-lab-experin1ents-that-01ay-have-sta1ted-coronavirus-pande01ic­
l500503. 
20 Id. 
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pandemic may have been caused by a lab error, not a wet market. 21 Further, a WHO 
inspector on the recent mission noted that "we know not all of those first 174 early 
COVID-19 cases visited the market, including the man diagnosed in December 2019 with 
the earliest onset date."22 What information does the NIH have on the earliest COVID-19 
cases? 

2. According to an editorial on February 23, 2021, in The Wall Street Journal by former 
Secretary of State Mike Pompeo and Miles Yu, "[China's] army of scientists claim to 
have discovered almost 2,000 new viruses in a little over a decade."23 How many of 
these discovered viruses does the JH have information on and were any of these viruses 
discovered at the WN? 

3. According to The Wall Street Journal editorial mentioned in the previous question, some 
have alleged that the WIV's virus-carrying animals were sold as pets and may even show 
up at local wet markets. 24 Is the NIH aware of these allegations? If so, please provide 
any info1mation the NIH has related to these allegations. 

4. Please provide all information that NIH has about laboratory accidents and/or biosafety 
practices at the WIV since January 1, 2015. 

5. Pl.ease provide all info1111ation that NJH has from NTH staff, grantees, sub-grantees, 
contractors, or subcontractors about communications and events at the WJV from August 
2019 to the present. 

6. Please provide all information that NIH has from NIH staff, grantees, sub-grantees, 
contractors, or subcontractors about their communications with China-based NlH, 
Chinese National Science Foundation, CDC, and China CDC about events at the WIV 
from August 2019 to the present. 

State Department Cables 

21 /d. 
22 Dominic Dwyer, I was the Australia□ doctor oo tbe WHO's COVID- l9 miss.ion to Cbina. Here's wbat we found 
about tbe orig.ios oftbe corooavirus, THE CONVERSATION (Feb. 2 l, 202 L), available 
athttps:/ /www .tbeguard i ao. com/ com men ti sfree/202 L /feb/22/i-was-on -the-wbos-cov i d-missi oo-to-ch i na-heres-wbat­
we-fou od. See also Jeremy Page and Drew Hiosbaw, China Re.fuses to Give WHO Raw Data on Early Covid-1 9 
Cases, THE WALL STR EET JOURNAL (Feb. J 2, 2021), available al bttps://www.wsj.com/articies/chioa-refuses-to­
g ive-wbo-raw-data-oo-early-covid- L9-cases-
l J 613 L 505 80#:~ :tex t=BEIJTNG%E2%80%94Ch i oese%20autbori ti es%20refused%20to,over%20the%20 lack%20of 
%20detail. ("Chioese authorities refused to provide World Health Orgaoization iovestigators witb raw, personalized 
data on early Covid-19 cases tbat could belp them determine bow and when the coronavirus first began to spread in 
China, according to WHO investigators who described heated exchanges over the lack of detail. The Chinese 
authorities turned down requests to provide such data on 174 cases of Covid-19 that they have identified from the 
early phase of the outbreak in the Chinese city of Wuhan in December 2019. Investigators are part of a WHO team 
that this week completed a monthlong mission in China aimed at determining the origins of the pandemic.") 
23 Id. 
24 Mike Pompeo and Miles Yu, NIH Presses U.S. Nonprofit for l1formation on Wuhan Virology Lab, THE WALL 
STREET JOURJ"JAL (Feb. 23, 2021 ), available at https://www.wsj.com/articles/chinas-reckless-labs-put-the-world-at­
risk-l 1614102828. 
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7. What information does NIH have about the WIV's responses to the 2018 U.S. 
Department of State cables ( attached to this letter) regarding safety concerns? 

8. The April 2018 cable from the U.S. Depa1iment of State stated that the WJV planned to 
invite University of Texas Medical Branch Galveston (UTMBG) researchers to do 
research in Wuhan's labs. Please provide any information NIH received that indicates 
whether the WN invited UTMBG researchers, and whether UTMBG researchers 
conducted any research in Wuhan's labs. 

a. Jf there was such research, please provide information and any documents related 
to this research. 

9. Why was it pertinent to the NIH investigation that the "nonprofit [EcoHealth Alliance] 
must provide the "WJV's responses to the 2018 Department of State cables regarding 
safety concems"?25 

a. Did EcoHealth Alliance provide this information? Jf so, how did NIH use the 
information to further its investigation? 

EcoHealth Alliance, Columbia University Health Sciences 

10. Was the 2019 NIH federal award to EcoHealth Alliance reviewed and approved by the 
HHS Potential Pandemic Pathogen Care and Oversight (P3CO) committee?26 

a. If so, p lease provide the documentation with the committee's decision. 

b. Please also provide the names of the individuals who were members of the 
committee at the time. 

11. Please provide all correspondence and communications between NJH and EcoHealth 
Alliance, since Janua1y 1, 2020, related to federal funding involving the WN. The 
documentation should include, but not be limited to, correspondence between NIH and 
EcoHealth Alliance dated sometime in April 2020, on July 8, 2020, and sometime in 
August 2020. 

12. 1n April 2020, NIH suspended a 2019 federal award to EcoHealth Alliance, in part, 
because NJH did not believe the work aligned with "program goals and agency 
priorities."27 Please specify the work that was done by the EcoHealth Alliance that did 

25 Meredith Wadman, NIH imposes 'outrageous' conditions on resuming corona virus grant targeted by Trump, 
SCIENCEMAG (Aug. 19, 2020), available at bttps://www.sciencemag.org/news/2020/08/nih-imposes-outrageous­
conditions-resuming-coronavirus-grant-targeted-trump. 
26 National Institutes of Health, Notice Announcing the Removal of the Funding Pause for Gain-of Function 
Research Project (Dec. 19, 2017), available at bttps:// grants.nib .gov/ grants/ guide/notice-files/N OT-OD-17-
071. btml. 
21 Id. 
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not align with the agency's program goals and priorities, and when that work was 
conducted. 

a. Was an evaluation of EcoHealth Alliance's work and whether it aligned with the 
agency's program goals and priorities conducted by the IH before the award was 
issued? lf yes, please provide any related documentation. If not, why not? 

13. In April 2020 correspondence with EcoHealth Alliance, NJH wrote that it "received 
reports that the Wuhan Institute of Virology ... has been conducting research at its 
facilities in China that pose serious bio-safety concems."28 What are the sources for 
those reports to NIH and what were the specific allegations reported? 

14. Why did the IH request that EcoHealth Alliance provide a sample of the pandemic 
coronavirus that the WIV used to determine its genetic sequence for SARS CoV-2?29 

a. Why is this information important to NlH's investigation? 

b. Has NIH obtained the sample and if so, what evaluations have been done, and for 
what purpose? 

c. IfNIH has not yet obtained the sample, what are the planned studies and 
evaluations NIH will conduct with the sample when it is obtained? 

15. What is the nature ofNIH's concerns about purported restrictions at the WIV 
including "diminished cell-phone traffic in October 2019, and the evidence that there 
may have been roadblocks surrounding the facility from October 14-19, 2019[,]" about 
the WIV lab or virus origin?30 

a. What is the basis of information to NIH about the purported restrictions at the 
WIV? 

b. What are the other purported restrictions at the WlV in October 2019? 

16. After terminating EcoHealth Alliance's 2019 project entitled "Understanding the Risk of 
Bat Coronavirus Emergence," the NIH later offered to reinstate the EcoHealth Alliance 
funding in July 2020 if EcoHealth Alliance agreed to meet certain conditions. 31 

28 Betsy McKay, NIH Presses U.S. Nonprofit for Information on Wuhan Virology Lab, THE WALL STREET JOURNAL 
(Aug. 19. 2020), available at https: //www.wsj .com/articles/nih-presses-u-s-nonprofit-for-infonnation-on-wuhan­
vi.rology-lab-11597829400. 
29 Meredith Wadman, NIH imposes 'outrageous ' conditions on resuming corona virus grant targeted by Trump, 
SCIENCEMAG (Aug. 19, 2020), available at https://www.sciencemag.org/news/2020/08/nih-imposes-outrageous­
conditions-resuming-coronavirus-grant-targeted-trump. 
30 Id. 
31 Betsy McKay, NIH Presses U.S. Nonprofit for Information on Wuhan Virology Lab, THEW ALL STREET JOURNAL 
(Aug. 19. 2020), available at https: //www.wsj .com/articles/nih-presses-u-s-nonprofit-for-infonnation-on-wuhan­
vi.rology-lab-11597829400. 
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a. Please provide all of the information presented to IH from EcoHealth Alliance 
in response to NIH's conditions for reinstatement. 

b. What actions did NIH take based upon the information received? How has the 
information been used in IH's investigation? 

c. One condition for the federal award reinstatement was for EcoHealth Alliance to 
arrange for an outside inspection of the WlV and its records, "with specific 
attention to addressing the question of whether WN staff had SARS-CoV-2their 
possession prior to December 2019."32 Why is it pertinent to the NJH's 
investigation if staff at WlV had SARS-Co V-2 in their possession prior to 
December 2019? What is the potential significance if the staff did have the virus 
in their possession prior to December 2019? 

d. What infomrntion does NIH have that was used for the basis of requesting that the 
EcoHealth Alliance "must 'explain the apparent disappearance ' of a scientist who 
worked in the Wuhan lab," and on social media was rumored to be "patient zero" 
of the pandemic?33 

1. What is the potential significance about the whereabouts of this scientist 
and the photo being removed from the website? 

17. Pl.ease provide all correspondence and communications between NTH and Columbia 
University related to federal funding involving the WlV, including email correspondence 
in April 2020 between Dr. Michael Lauer, Deputy Director of extramural research, and 
Naomi Schrag of Columbia University. 

a. In an April 2020 email, Dr. Lauer advised Naomi Schrag of Columbia University 
that it would be helpful for NIH "to know about all China-based participants in 
this work since the Type 1 grant started in 2014 - who they were and how much 
money they received."34 Why did NIH request that Columbia University provide 
information about all of the China-based participants? 

1. What is the pertinence of the t imeframe starting in 2014 for the requested 
information? 

11. Did Columbia University provide the NIH with the requested information 
about all of the China-based participants from all grantees since 2014? If 
so, please provide the information] . Jf not, why not? 

Federal Funding Records 

32 Id. 
33 Id. 
·'4 Meredith Wadman and Jon Cohen, NIH 's axing of bat coronavirus grant a 'horrible precedent ' and might break 
rules, critics say, SCIENCEMAG (Apr. 30, 2020), available at bttps://www.sciencemag.org/news/2020/04/nih-s­
axing-bat-coronavirus-grant-bon-ible-precedent-and-might-break-rules-critics-say. 
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18. Please provide ledgers or any accounting for dispersion of all NIH federal funding 
awards that EcoHealth Alliance has sent to the WIV, including through contracts, grants, 
donations, cooperative agreements, staffing, or any other support or means. In addition, 
please provide the results and outcomes from the funding and support.35 

19. What is the total amount of NIH federal funding per year from 2017 through 2021 that 
has directly or indirectly supported the WIV scientists or research through grant 
recipients, including to EcoHealth Alliance; Wildlife Trust, Inc.; Columbia University 
Health Sciences; Trustees of Columbia University; University of North Carolina Chapel 
Hill; Vanderbilt University; University of Virginia; and Oregon Health and Science 
University?36 

20. According to a report in The Washington Post on April 14, 2020, the WIV issued a news 
release in English about the final visit from U.S. Embassy scientist diplomats in Beijing, 
which occurred on March 27, 2018.37 Does the NIH have a copy of this news release? If 
so, please provide a copy. 

21. For NIH award recipients that have provided support to the WIV since January 1, 2012, 
please provide annual reports, trip reports related to the WIV, documentation of any 
survey or field trips by the WIV, and interim data summaries from the WTV. 

22. Please provide copies of all grantee annual reports, progress reports, projects, studies, and 
observations since 2014 where foreign sites for all Type 1 and Type 2 awards have been 
documented as involving the WIV. 

23. Please provide copies of all grantee annual reports, progress reports, projects, studies, and 
observations since 2014 for NIH domestic grantee awards with a foreign component 
involving the WIV. 

24. Please provide the name(s) of the NJH program manager(s) or officer(s) responsible for 
overseeing the grants to EcoHealth Alliance and time period(s) of responsibility. 

25. Please provide the name(s) of the NJH Scientific Review Officers responsible for 
reviewing and approving any NIH financial awards to EcoHealth All iance and any other 
funding recipients that supported the WIV. 

35 Betsy McKay, NIH Presses U.S Nonprofit for Infonnatio11 on Wuhan Virology Lab, THEW ALL STREET JOURl'-IAL 

(Aug. 19. 2020), available at https://www.wsj.com/articles/nih-presses-u-s-nonprofit-for-information-on-wuhan­
vi.rology-lab-11597829400. 
36 1\atiooal Institutes of Health, Research Portfolio 011li11e Reporting Tools, NIH RePorter available at 
hl~tl~./(E,P.~itl,Ali.t _g_;~yf (last accessed March 6, 2020). 

n Josh Ro gin, Opinion: State Department cables warned of safety issues at Wuhan lab studying bat corona viruses, 
THE WASHINGTON POST (Apr. 14, 2020), available at https://www.washingtonpost.com/opinions/2020/04/14/state­
department-cables-warned-safety-issues-wubao-lab-studying-bat-coronaviruses/. 
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26. According to an editorial in The Wall Street Journal, the WIV housed tens of thousands 
of bat samples and laborat01y animals in 2019. 38 Please provide any information the NIH 
has on the number of bat samples and animals at the WIV. 

a. Did any IH scientists who are fluent in Mandarin review the Chinese scientific 
literature on the WIV research related to coronaviruses that is dated before 
February 1, 2020? 

27. Does the NIH have the unpublished sequences of bat coronaviruses that were maintained 
in the WN database before December 30, 2019, or before the database was removed 
from the intemet?39 Does NIH have the full sequences of the eight viruses sampled in the 
Yunnan province on an EcoHealth Alliance bat-virus sampling trip in 2015? 

a. Please provide NI H's analysis if the sequences have been analyzed. 

b. IfNIH does not have the sequences, can NIH get this information from the 
EcoHealth Alliance or from other NIH-funded sources? 

28. Please provide the original version of"Origin and cross-species transmission of bat 
coronaviruses in China" that was submitted to Nature by EcoHealth Alliance on 
October 6, 2019, published August 25, 2020, and funded in part by NIAID (award 
number R0lAJl 10964).40 If IH does not have the October 6, 2019 report, can IH 
obtain it from EcoHealth Alliance for this response? If so, please provide the report. 

29. Have NIH, EcoHealth Alliance, or other NIH award recip ient(s) been denied permission 
or access to results of any WTV research, which indirectly received financial support from 
NIH awards? If so, please provide the date( s ), individuals involved, and circumstances of 
each denial. 

We request that the NJH provide the requested documents and information in a 
coordinated response from all stakeholders and the appropriate divisions within NIH, including 
but not limited to subject matter expetis from NIH's Division of Security and Emergency 
Response, the Office of Management Assessment, the Center for Scientific Review, the National 
Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases, and the Office of Extramural Research. After the 
requested information has been provided, we ask that the NIH provide a briefing to the Minority 
Committee staff to discuss the information that the NIH has related to the origins of SARS-Co V-
2, including any potential links to the WIV. Final ly, we request that you appo int an NIH 
working group representing an appropriate diversity of scientific discip lines to collect data and 

38 Mike Pompeo and Miles Yu, NIH Presses U.S. Nonprofit for I,formation on Wuhan Virology Lab, THE WALL 
STREET JOURJ'\JAL (Feb. 23, 2021), available at https://www.wsj.com/a1ticles/chinas-reckless-labs-put-tbe-world-at­
risk-l l6l4l02828 . 
39 Washington Post Editorial Board, We 're still missing the origin story of this pandemic. China is sitting on the 
answers, Tiffi WASHINGTON POST (Feb. 5, 2021), available at 
https://www.wasbingtonpost.com/opinions/2021/02/05/coronavirus-origins-mystery-cbina/?arc404=true. 
40 Latinne, A., Hu, B., Oliva[, K.J. et al,. Origin and cross-species transmission of bat coro11aviruses ill China, 
Nature (Aug. 25, 2020), available at bttps://www.natw-e.com/aitic1es/s4 1467-020-17687-3#Ackl. 
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info1mation related to COVID-19 origins (including the WIV), and that the NIH working group 
coordinate and consult with foreign scientific agencies involved in similar work. 

Your assistance with this request is greatly appreciated. If you have any questions, please 
contact Alan S lobodin or Diane Cutler of the Minority Committee staff 

Sincerely, 

Q,/4ct~t4r-
Cathy McMorris Rodgers 
Republican Leader 
Committee on Energy and Commerce 

H. Morgan Grif; t 
Republican Lea r 
Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations 

Attachment 

Cc: The Honorable Frank Pallone, Chairman 

rs~~ 
Brett Guthrie 
Republican Leader 
Subcommittee on Health 

The Honorable Diana DeGette, Chair, Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations 
The Honorable Anna Eshoo, Chair, Subcommittee on Health 
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coopeM.lon wilh tli-e Orated Snr.es to t;•isit!ng Eoviromneut, Selem:!?, ·recnirofogy and Heahb. 
C-0u.nmill°" rui::tt S-witz¢r and C.msufote '\V,11i1an C-c,,11~1-1I -Otmtrat hlnlie fws;t -in late >,,~h, !n 
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◊~ ·t◊ inter.national r~~h/ he said. r-rench ~t ta,ye pr<l\,id«i gu:id!l'n"'~ and hiosulety 
traiaing to fhe fab, which win ccnii:nue, the: French o.ftfairu said. institute offit ~ls said that 
Franre provkk>d tte lnb'~ design smd m.uch of its, t.etlmrilogy, tmi U:utt it 'i!i eu.litely Chma,. fulJ.tktl 
~nd b~ tx:m ~tnp!,;:tety Chinil-~ :;Jtw,.'\f a 1,ai)dove.r" ~<:rn(lny in 1016. 

"- (U) In rui.diiiotl to .Freneb assistanet. ~p,eri$ f:roo\ the NIH-stipported P4 lab at the Ul'l1Vemiy 
O'fTexas Medical :Bra:ucb in Galvestoo !,ave tra1ne.u \Vuhan lab technidans in lab management 
,md maintooft.itet\ institute ofl:1.clals said, The Wulmu iosti~ :plami !o inviti; ~entfati;; from, Ille 
GalV!:Ston bib to ifo Tl!-$r:arch in Wuh.in's iaib. Ow-:. Wv.baJJ l1J$t.itute of Virotogy rese41renec 
!Uimed for two ye3fs at the Gawe,-ron fab, :uid 1he ins1irute a!~'O S4'.nt one screnri..~ to U,S CDC 
head,~-1= 1.-i Arlauta tor :rl:t m~ wurk on .iculucim1. 

NUI.,S.uppm-ted Resear~h Rerue:s SAllS O:rigjnStory 

1. {U) NIH v.'a$ a niajor fu~ldet, :sfong witb rile Mantra! Sciet)ce. Foundation of 
~A~~.fC$~~ !,ly tl:le W1,1ban liisliti-1~ of 'Viro1o '£' ' ' W) ' 

. · ld 

via . . . . 

} 

UNClASSlf~EO 
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1-.----"' him·provie.ed WP})Ort in Sefatbtienl t'200elil)8(0 i~ess the rlSek ofmor,e 
~ro11a~•i:ru~ like SARS er:~ing IW{;t to humrui pcpuJtlti-00£. 

S. -(U> lmrlru:te: offidah. ~:pre.'!tl~ stroa,g: interest in th!!: (Hooo.1 Vwrune l'mjoot (GVI"), and .!!aid 
Chlu~e :fimdi:ll& fcyr the '(lmj~ ,voi,Jd likely w.rmi fr~m Chluc$c Ac11dm:oy <•f Scim:i= fo.1ulini:1 
a!roady earmad:.ed for O!le Belt, One Road!,r11!awd foitiati\/1.-s. Tire ~1! aims to fauneh thi~ 
year as an intematioi,al coltllOOl'.Uli. vc eOM to identify within ten }'~<:s v):rtm.tlly all of ilhe 
plmwt's ~·U'Usefi th.it havepandmufo or ep1dem.ii;; p<tttmml ru3,d 1he abiUty to jump to h:1J.tt1ati~, 
"We hope Cb!M Will b¢ qt)¢ ◊ftfi¢- l¢adiog ¢¢1,"lfi1liei {(:l itlhia~ ihe Glob-:t! VNte .Pruject, ~ ◊:tlt 
Wuhan Institute (lf.Vi."1.1fo;g:tnffici.il sai4. C:flii11Himmded a. OVP uiweiliug n1retillg iii Janw.ny 
in Thailand tmd tt, ?-~ting for men."¢ <l-ctaib ◊n lite fohiativ4S. The offi~i3!6 $.!id thai the Cbine;se 
gwemrnimf :funds prtijwf:. ',{iinilt1t to GVP fa hnie!sfig,l!ii> tl.w haukgrout,.d a t'vitu~ ~ncl 
bacteria. This essentially eonstitnted Chioa's own Virome P.roj-ec.1, officials said. but the.;; note@ 
lJw pr<;igrwli etw~iitlyoos uo oflki;d m,f£ile. 

is itid'n J(I;) _ 

-·~~ti:TIJ~E.1ffil~ tc ~w "pxoof of concept'' imd: be a 
'r.~~~~~~.,,. :.1,,....,_ .,.,_ 1"'roc-,m"",e,.._ "'ro=~~~_i.:t xai ~hh th-: £ooftcdfu Affiilll~e {a N~.,,, 
,...i..l>'L.11.~==iil.1..l-.llJ·O ·thru is: ~oong with ·the Uiivii.r.tlty of Calr ' ' viste- m~.ltllge I~ 

· m:it1y plarultd to -.·isit \Vnhn to me« with ed that China Ms 
expiw.~ . rnn,-res m b~ildiug me GVI' dambast; wltkh --wooJ.d pm -Cfnrm m a lea.dmllip 
pomtton. OJ.ha oountrfos ha.ve «mmicn.-.:c 111 China'~ ability to build ~h .a d,i,wbas.e, hut~ 
ikt ll'iw~ Chifia el)U}d tttnafo tr.1~enr m1 a "gatckll!-t~ fl)r this infommtioo x · 
said pre~ frusmtioo with the s!ow- µro;grest so far in .l.auut-'-hlng O'Vl', ooting that ., 
cffoo 11c . . 'fund~ ~wg-;:i, n~®d w hiro P CEO, lmd w1:1vkl ~v:¢ t.l) b<.l~ ittt p.t¢fil¢ af 07, 
020 and .otJier high.• tevet hltm1:1tiooal mretingi:. 

10. (U) The ln:s:timtc ilso has on.aomt ct>l.labor111iom with the U .S-, Ni'!ti.o.n:H Scien~ fe;tmdati~n, 
including a jtl1,-oonchttkd worbft101i :in SaenrJ1~, ltl\<()tvfog aboui. 40 scieru:iscs rrom tlw U11ited 
Sta~ an-d China, on the topic oftlw *£oology rui.d Evolutfoo.<iflmfc..tiorAs Oii,,ells¢~ .... Co-
~i'l«>tt'dbyth<e: NilfllfalS(je:fiee f-,lhid~ti~n~fChln~ (NSfC}. !lb)/$\ j 

) . TI:i~ W-Od:~op e:xploo:d oppotID.11iti~ for U.S,· 
Chi.M ~-ch ®~pemtion 111 are~ H~~ usi.o_g -~ib.ig @tll" ·w p-~i~ en,1e-:rgi1~ iti.f~'ti~u-s 
disooses, climate change ·s effect.on ~1.or-lmme ms~ea, and pathogirn trnti.:udssion bet~1 
wikTlif-c, domes1ic 111nimal1 and b:i.1miim. 

! L (SB-uj Some wor.k.-.b~p partid(l3nts also exr.11:etiSed «kep!l.dsm aoounb,e Otob.1l Vltoroe 
Projecrs {GVP} approach, saying I~-~t gaining a pmikfive, under~nding ,ofviru:tes with 
-p#Udem~ ~t~l would require "tl9lll8: \,e.y~i.f the ovP 's stmteg.y of sample ooll.edion, 1.0 ta:k<1 
at1 "«ologirol" approoch mat coosidcri me. mome b~Qndvime'bratc S"ptfflm to i4errify 
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~~ drlvii;g .P!-'il»g~-u .-;vol11tloo, A ful!Qw-Q'.tl work.i!-hll:)l' will ~ A1t;ld i~ Yune at the 
Urtivet'Sity of &eketey, NSF ~td NSf'C ~ t,() Jointly m'll\CHmce a fumlins em! for 
collabo:rafi've proj~ts lam this year. 

~dllr, 
Cl@amdBr~ 

~p!OVcd Sy:: 
Rcl~'l>tad ay~ 
mf~~ 

UNCWSiAED 

rous.s 
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s:so 
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Annex 2 of the 2005 International Health Regulations 

A.."lNEX. ! 
DECISION' I NSTR.{l"MEl\i'T FOR THE ASSESSl\!E~T .':\ .. 'ND NOTIRCATION 

OF E 'V£I\iTS THA.T MAY C01'"'STITUT£ A PlJBU:C HEALTH.EMERCENC'i:' 
OF IN"'TERl."'\'ATIONAL CO~C'ER~· 

A~a~orclldlllllmiag 
~.S<;f1 i!l m:ll'SUI. or 
,11~aooU1:11y 
ha"t·e~mom~ 
Jle«tifJ UllflKf, :md tuM 
:shaJlwJWlili@di.·•·: 
s~ 

- hlit)lll'Yt'Dnl) dlllt fo 
~fypt' 
polio.'1/ll'II~ 
Hmn:mmBll.t>nu 
c:1111-ed by a n.ew 
~nb!)--pe 

-- Se.,,:tf'I!' 1mte 
r€1prnlcry 
S}-Wlllflt (SARS}. 

1~ th.- @\':ffll ll!muu~,1 ar 
.un<eq>ttt-ed? 

Alty f.~f or p:1:tentw. 
U!'Enlll!ialllll pubfu: 
llealtb CODCW.13,, 

iJl.tludin~ tlw~ ,of 
~ ~ .;Ii' 
10Ul'(t'.\ ll00 'l'llmt> 

.w~ otkff -i 
m: ~~ tb:nlhmt: 
li';iffl m the lioxml.tllie 
l~ft ~ ~ bttE Olli 'Im' 
·ri::bt shllU l@d· 11) 

ll~Dllof(M 
~:rtmm. 

.b tin• pub!ie he!ilili i:tnpat<i" 
,of the en,nt $efl11>u,~? 

An e~w mwhiu§'. tile :wlh)mag 
mse- 1ihrul ~1~® t$ 
witizlili-0111 ,o:f tJH< ~otitbm, 
~'iug ~ bn UllmJl!;trail!d 
tbf '.llifitls fo C ~ ffiWllS 
~ llia1111 unpact md rn 
s.pn,>d n¢dl¥ W!l'l'.mttio~: 

aw~ 
.... :l."1tuiooaic phg;ue 
- Ydlaw fe~tt 
.• V-ual 'lraf11M11'IU:it f~-ws 

{Elx.b, Limit, :Marbnq) 
... We~~ fi!\~T 

0:lh.e:r ~ll!i6 t!l:lrit :ue Qf 
·spi,('.W mfu!mll ilf'n~ 
t<mirffll, e..!;._de'llgDf fe11tr, 
:Riff Y;illey f=. and 
:~«omll dise:a*·· 

fa' there it ~iptitic-au.t rilll\'.O'f c tliene a. ~gnifu::ru.1t ridt ~f 
int~u.<1tii»1::d ~p..-.i,:1d';" inl'j>t'lla'thOll"'I ~~rl? 

l Yill;e,M n -~ant ni:t:ofmttr­
wm,m,.J :1:r .... ve1 "" tr.ade ,., .• ~~, 

•••••••••••••••••••• 
: Not 110:tifud at this : 

-..,;;,:;.:,;:;.;..,,...-e:• ~taee. Rea.ll..S·f.ss wh:eu : 
: mt1r~ in.wnnntfon : 
: betomts .,n:a.ifable. : •.................... ~ 

E\'£1'.'I SR.-U.L BE NOTIFIED TO'\\'HO U.N.DERTI!EINTE~'ilATlO.NALBEALIH 
REGULATIONS· 

t_i\\5 per ''it'HO ea~I!: deruuti.ollSi. 
1The, ilise.m! fut :ihall be l!.'lied mily for the puil?OS£!~ of th-.Re~. 
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From: Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) (E] [/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP 

(FYDI BOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECI Pl ENTS/CN =90FE9C AE30C64CFBB67 ABDS68E882 796-LAU ERM) 

Sent: 1/12/202111:38:00AM 

To: Hayes, Darla (NIH/OD)[E) [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group 

(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Reci pi ents/cn=ea 941352878b46a 5958a 9be54d7230a3-hayesdm]; NIH Litigation Ho! d 

[/o=Excha ngela bs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group 

(FYDI BOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Reci pi ents /cn=8125e19f9f994 7628b3b9d899S 90dd61-OMALi ti gatil; Baker, Rebecca h 

(NIH/OD) [El [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange AdministrativeGroup 

(FYDI BOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Rec i pi ents /cn=ad60988f36ca 4 95e8df86de 7f10863e4-ba kerrel 1 

CC: Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) (El [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange Admi n istrativeGroup 

(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Reci pi ents/cn=90fe9ca e30c64cfbb67a bd568e882 796 -la uerml 

Subject: Re: ACTION REQUIRED Open Society Justice Institute Li tigation Hold PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL • Due 1/15 

Attachments: Litigation Hold Memo • Open Society Justice lnitiativev. HHS 1-7-2021[11.pdf; OSJI v HHS et a l -Hea lth Agencies Lit 

Hold[1l.pdf; Amended Complaint[ll.pdf; Re: Wuhan Lab 

Good morning 

I have received, read, understand and intend to comply with these instructions. 

I am attaching one item (which has multiple embedded items) that might be responsive. I'm not aware of 

anything else. 

Many thanks, Mike 

Michael S Laue r, MD 
NIH Deputy Director for Extramural Research 
1 Center Drive, Building 1, Room 144 
Bethesda, MD 20892 

From: "Hayes, Darla (NIH/OD) [E]" (b)(6) 
Dat e: Monday, January 11, 2021 at 5:53 PM 
To: "Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) (E]"------~(b~)(=6) 

Subject: FW: ACTION REQUIRED Open Society Justice Institute Litigation Hold PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL 

- Due 1/15 

Good afternoon Mike, 

Please seethe attached litigation hold memorandum issued fora lawsuit concerning FOIA requests that was submitted 
by Plaintiff Open Society Justice Initiative to HHS, CDC, and NIH seeking certain records regarding the ongoing 
coronavirus pandemic. (b)(5) 

(b)(5) 



Thank you, 

Darla 

From: NIH Litigation Hold <NIHUtigationHo!d(tyod.nih.gov> 
Sent:Thursday,January7, 20219:45 PM 

---------~= To: Allen-Gifford, Patrice (NIH/OD) [El (b)(6) Hayes, Darla (N IH/OD) [El 
(b)(6); Levi th an, Jenn -:i-;:--fe-r (-:-:-N-:-:-1 H:-:-/";"::0:-:D:7') ";"::[ E~] :;:::::::====-___;_..._(b_;.H=6) Twyman, Les I ie (NI H/0D) [ E] 

=======-(b~H ~6) 

(b) (5) 

Cc: NIH Litigation Hold <N,_l_f:l.!_.JJig?ti.9.0.tlQJg_.@_9-g_._Q_i_h'.g2y>; Baker, Rebeccah (NIH/OD) [E,;.]========(b=)=C6J~;~ 
Mcinerny, Ju lia (N IH/0D) [El CbH ; Robertson, Paul (NIH/OD) [El (b)(6) -----------Subject : ACTION REQUIRED Open Society Justi ce Institute Litigation Hold PRIVILEGED AND CON Fl DENTIAL 
Importance: High 

Good Evening, 

Please seethe attached lit igation hold memorandum issued fora lawsuit concerning FOIA requests submitted by 
Plaintiff Open Society Justice Initiative to HHS, CDC, and NIH seeking certain records regarding the ongoingcoronavirus 
pandemic. (b)(5) 

(b) (5l 



(b) (5l 

Please do not hesitate to contact NIH Records Officer(Acting) Rebeccah Baker or NIHB attorneysJulia Mcinerny and Paul 
Robertson for clarification regarding t his l itigation hold . Thank you foryourunderstanding and cooperation . 

Respectfully, 
Rebeccah Baker 

Acting Branch Chief, NIH Records Officer 
Information Management Branch 

N IH/OD/OM/OMA/DCM/1 MB 

(b)(6) 

From: OS OGC-IOControlDesk (HHS/OS/OGC) <ControiDesk.OGCIO@hhs.gov> 
Sent:Thursday,January7, 202112:18 PM 
To: Agnew, Ann (HHS/10S) (b)( Azar, Alex (OS/10S) (b)( ; Kadlec, Robert 
(OS/ASPR/I0)~-..;____;.1::::==~(b)~(~ ;G~i-ro~i-r, -=-8-rett(HHS/OASH) (b)( ; Murphy, Ryan (OS/ASPA) 

(b) (6Jt; Grigsby, Garrett (HHS/0S/OGA) (b) (6) Redfield, Robert R. ( CDC/OD) 
===:=e::(b,;:) ~(6Jf,;-; -:-Sc'7h-u-:ch_a.-t, Anne MD (CDC/OD) (b)(6) Messonnier, Nancy (CDC/DDID/NCIRD/0D) 

(b)(6); lademarco, Michae l (CDC/DDPHSS/CSELS/0D) (b)(6); Harrison, Brian (HHS/IOS) 
l;:;======~--:;;-,= 

(b)(6); Bratcher-Bowman, Nikki (OS/ ASPR/10) (b)(6J1; Weber, Mark 
(HHS/ ASPA) (b)( Franco, Celinda (HHS/OASH) (b)(6) Thomas, Alexandra L 
(IHS/OKC) (b)(6) 

Cc: OS OGC-10 <f .<?r:t.Y9_i_QE:!_?.i_<_:9.Gq.Q@h_~-~-:&9.Y.>; Keveney, Sean (H_H....:S/_O_G_C..:.)-======~;:""'.'"-(b_)..,<6)_ Gibson, Megan 
(OS/OGC) (b)(6); Mull ins, Tracey(HHS/OGC) (b)(6) Frye, Buddy(HHS/OGC) 

(b)(6); Smith-Simpson, Jacq lyn (OS/ASA/OCIO) (b)( Baker, Rebecca (NIH/OD) [E] 
=======~= 

(b)(6); Ballesteros, Karen (OS/ASA/OCIO) (b)(6) Barry, Daniel J (HHS/OGC) ---------



CbH6)}; Goulding, Michael (HHS/OGC) (b)(6); Pierce,Julia (HHS/OGC) 
========(be;:) ~(6)""";-:-"Lankford, David (N IH/OD)[E]_.:..:::=======::(b~)~(6)~;Gianturco, Elizabet h (HHS/OGC) 

(b)(6);Tress, Deborah W. (CDC/OCOO/OGC) (b)( ; Gaylord, Brandon 
':".(O:".S::""./;"':'A'::'S':"PA-=-:):-::11 =======~(b..,...H~6>i· Andoh, Roger(CDC/OCOO/OD) ; Layton, Chris (OS/IOS) 

(b)(6>r;She rman, Susan (HHS/OGC} ,_,;. _____ ;.J:::=a¥!l(b~)~( ~;-:S~m"":'i"."":'th .. ,· Lor ian (OS/ASPR/EXSEC} 
l;:::========,.-.; 

(b)(6);; Smith, Jennifer (HHS/OGC) (b)(6); Wi Iso n, Avery (HHS/ASPA) =========~ (b)(6)1; Stark, Lucy (OS/OGC) (b)(6); Poe, Stephen (HHS/OASH) 
=======::c:(b:c::)(~6)j Roman, Ruth (HHS/OASH) (b)(6) Koche r, Paula L. (CDC/OCOO/OGC} 

CbH6)}; Gianturco, Elizabeth (HHS/OGC) (b)( ; Willis, Heber (HHS/OS/OGA) 

CbH6)] W i lson, Mary(CDC/OCOO/OD) ---------- --------(b)(6) 

Subject: LITIGATION HOLD -- Open Society Justice lnst itutev. HHS et al., No. 20 Civ. 6359 (S.D.N .Y.) (Consol idated under 

O pen SocietyJustice Institute v. DoDeta l., No. 20 Civ. 5096) 21-05844 

Importance: High 

This emai I serves as formal notice that a l itigation hold has been issued for records responsive to Freedom of 
Information Act(FOIA) requests identified in Open Societ y Justice Initiative, No. 20-cv-06359 (S.D.N.Y.), and records that 

captlire the search and response t o those requests, due t o a lawsuit concerning FOIA requests submitted by Plaintiff 

Open Society Justice Ini t iative to HHS, CDC, and NIH see king certain records regardi ng the ongoi ngcoronavirus 
pandemic. (b)(S) - (b) (Sl 

Thank you for your prompt and continuing attention to this matter. If you have questions, please contact Megan Gibson 

in the HHS OGC General Law Division, or contact the HHS OGC attorney who is working w i thin your Division or Office on 

this matter. 

Thank you, 



I)EJ> ARTl\'IR.NT Olt .HEALTH & HUMAN SKRVICES 
....................... , __ _ -----·~···············-·······---

lvIKM.ORANDUM 

Office of the Secretary 
---.............................. ___ ........................ .. . 

Office of the General Counsel 
Washington, D.C. 20201 

DATE: Jamw.ry 7, 2021 

Alex M. Azar .II 
Secretary 

TO: 

U.S. Departmt,'l1t of Health and Hurnan Services 

Robert Kadlec 
Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response 
U.S. Department of.Health and Human Services 

Brett Giroir 
Assistant Secretary for Health 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

Ryan Murphy 
Principal Deputy Secretary for Public Affairs 
LS. Department of Health and Hum.an Services 

Garrett Griggsby 
Director, Office of Global Affairs 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 

Dr. Robert Redfield 
Dirnctor 
Centers for Disease Control and .Prevention 

Anne Schuchat 
Principal Deputy Director 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

Nancy Messonier 
Director, National Center for Immunization and Respirato1y Diseases 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

:Michael Iad.emarco 
Director, Center for Sm·veillance, Epidemiology and Laboratory Services 
Centers fbr Disease Control and Prevention 
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'FROM: 

Rima Khabbaz 
Director, National Center for Emerging and Zoonotic Infectious Diseases 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

Francis Collins 
Director 
National Institutes of Heal th 

Anthony Fauci 
Director, National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Disease 
National Institutes of Health 

Sean Keveney 
(b)(6) 

Deputy General Counsel 

SU.B;rn:cr: Litigation Hold Notice for Records Related to Open Society Justice Initiative v. 
Dep 't ofHealth & Human Servs., 20-cv-06359 (S.D.N.Y.) 

Note: Please treat this memorandwn as a confidential communication. Do not inform any 
outside individual or organization, including any grantee, nonprofit, advocacy group, lawyer or 
law.firm, provider, or supplier, about this memorandum or the guidance contained herein. 

(b) (5) 
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(b)(5) 
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(b)(5) 
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U.S. Department of Justice 

United States Attorney 
Southern District of New York 

86 Chambers StreeJ 
New York, New York / 0007 

January 5, 202 1 

LITIGATION HOLD NOTICE 

PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL 
ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGE 
ATTORNEY WORK PRODUCT 

(b)(5) 
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Case 1:20-cv-06359-JMF Document 27 Filed 08/21/20 Page 1 of 22 

UNITED ST A TES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

OPE SOCIETY JUSTICE ITIATIVE, 

Plaintiff, 

V. 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND 
HOMA SERVICES, 
CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND 
PREVENTION, 
FOOD A D DRUG ADMlNlSTRATION, 

ATIO AL INSTITUTES OF HEALTH, 
NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF ALLERGY 
AND INFECTIOUS DISEASES, 
DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND 
SECURITY, and 
FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
AGENCY, 

Defendants. 

Civil Action o. 20-cv-06359 

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 

INTRODUCTION 

I. This case is about the public 's right, under the Freedom of Information Act 

("FOIA"), to access records critical for assessing the government's response to the COVID-19 

pandemic. Today, the United States has the largest number of reported COVlD-19 cases in the 

world. In contrast to several countries in Europe and Asia where infections are declining, in the 

U.S., the pandemic is resurging. Over 162,000 people in the United States have died of the disease, 

over five million are infected, and these numbers are projected to rise in the coming months. 1 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Coronavirus Disease 2019: Cases in the US (Aug. 11 , 2020), 
b ttps ://www.cdc.gov I coronavirus/2019-ncov / cases-upda tes/cases-iu-us.htrnJ. 



Case 1:20-cv-06359-JMF Document 27 Filed 08/21/20 Page 2 of 22 

Defendants have failed to comply with their obligations under FOIA and obstructed the public's 

access to vital information about the government's competence to combat the virus and protect 

lives. 

2. Accordingly, this is an action under FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552, seeking injunctive relief 

to compel Defendant Department of Health and Human Services ("HHS") and its Office of Global 

Affairs ("OGS"), Office of the Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response ("ASPR"), 

Office of the Surgeon General ("OSG"), and Public Health Service ("PHS") ( collectively, "HHS 

and its Components"), HHS agency, Defendant Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

("CDC"), HHS agency, Defendant Food and Drug Administration ("FDA"), HHS agency, 

Defendant National Institutes of Health (''NIH") and Defendant National Institute of Allergy and 

Infectious Diseases ("NIAID"), Defendant Department of Homeland Security ("DHS") and its 

agency, Defendant Federal Emergency Management Agency ("FEMA"), to immediately release 

records responsive to Plaintiff's FOIA requests regarding the timing and substance of the 

Executive Branch's response to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

3. Plaintiff brings this action because the statutory time limit for action has passed, 

but Defendants have neither issued final detem1inations on Plaintiff's requests nor disclosed any 

responsive records. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

4. This Court has both subject matter jurisdiction over this action and personal 

jurisdiction over the parties pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B). This Court also has jurisdiction 

over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331. Venue lies in this district under 5 U.S.C. 

§ 552(a)(4)(B) because Plaintiff's principal place of business is in this district. 

2 
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PARTIES 

5. The Open Society Justice Initiative ("OSJI") is a public interest law center 

dedicated to upholding human rights and the rule of law through litigation, advocacy, research, 

and technical assistance. It is part of the Open Society Institute, a tax-exempt, non-partisan, not­

for-profit organization headquartered in New York City. OSJI is a "person" within the meaning 

of 5 U.S.C. § 551 (2). Di.sseminating information is among OSJI's core activities. OSJI maintains 

a website, http://www.justiceinitiative.org, through which it disseminates publications, articles, 

and multimedia files relating to its mission. It also directly distributes hard copies of publications 

and disseminates information through quarterly email newsletters, blogs, Twitter, Facebook, and 

other media. 

6. Defendant HHS is an "agency" within the meaning of 5 U.S.C. § 552(f)(l) and is 

therefore subject to FOIA. OGA, ASPR, OSG, and PHS are components of HHS. HHS and its 

Components have possession and control over some or all of the requested records. 

7. Defendant CDC is an "agency'' within the meaning of 5 U.S.C. § 552(f)(J) and is 

therefore subject to FOIA. CDC is also an agency of HHS. CDC has possession and control over 

some or all of the requested records. 

8. Defendant FDA is an "agency" within the meaning of 5 U.S.C. § 552(f)(l) and is 

therefore subject to FOJA. FDA is also an agency of HHS. FDA has possession and control over 

some or all of the requested records. 

9. Defendant NIH is an "agency" within the meaning of 5 U.S.C. § 552(f)(l) and is 

therefore subject to FOIA. NIH is also an agency of HHS. NIH has possession and control over 

some or all of the requested records. 

10. Defendant NIAID is an "agency'' within the meaning of 5 U.S.C. § 552(f)(l) and 

3 
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is therefore subject to FOlA. NlAlD is also an agency of HHS and part of NlH. NlAlD has 

possession and control over some or all of the requested records. 

11. Defendant DHS is an "agency" within the meaning of 5 U.S.C. § 552(t)(l) and is 

therefore subject to FOlA. DHS has possession and control over some or all of the requested 

records. 

12. Defendant FEMA is an "agency" within the meaning of 5 U.S.C. § 552(f)(1) and is 

therefore subject to FOlA. FEMA is also an agency of DHS. FEMA has possession and control 

over some or all of the requested records. 

STATEMENT OF FACTS 

13 . The earliest known case of COVID-19 (the disease caused by what is now known 

as SARS-CoV-2) reportedly can be traced back to November 17, 2019, in Hubei province, China. 2 

By December 31, 2019, health officials in Wuhan posted a notice that they were investigating an 

outbreak of pneumonia in the city, and the World Health Organization ("WHO") acknowledged 

that on that date it "was informed of a cluster of cases of pneumonia of unknown cause. "3 As of 

January 3, 2020, Chinese authorities reported to the WHO a total of 44 patients with pneumonia 

of unknown etiology. 4 

2 

4 

14. Media reports provide varymg accounts of when the Executive Branch first 

He!.en Davidson, First Covid-19 case happened in November, China government records show The Guardian 
(Mar. 13, 2020) bttps:/ /www. tbeguard ian. com/worJd/2020/mar/ J 3/ftrst-covid- 19-case-happened-in -november­
cbiua-govemment -records-show- report. 

Wuhan Municipal Health Commission on the current situation of pneumonia in our city (translated.from 
Mandarin), Dec. 31,201.9, available at http://www.-wuhan.gov.cn/front/web/showDetail/20 l.91.23108989; 
World Health Organization, Coronavirus di sea e (COVlD-20 19) R&D, available at 
bttps :/ /wv..rw. who. int/blueprint/priori ty-d iseases/key-actio n/nove 1-corouavirus/en/. 

World Health Organizatiou, Pneumonia of unknown cause - China (Jan. 5, 2020), 
bttps://www.who.in.t/csr/don/05 -jauuary-2020-pneumonia-of-unkowu-cause-cl1i11a/eu/ . 

4 
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received notice of what is now known as SARS-CoV-2. According to the Washington Post, on 

January 3, 2020, a Chinese official informed CDC Director Robert Redfield of the outbreak of a 

respiratory illness in the city of Wuhan. 5 Redfield relayed the report to HHS Secretary Alex Azar 

who reportedly relayed it to the Whit House. 6 

15. Although the Executive Branch has publicly promised transparency, the White 

House reportedly ordered federal health officials to treat top-level coronavirus meetings as 

classified to keep meeting participation low and nunmuze leaks. 7 Classification prevented 

relevant officials from attending the meetings because they did not possess the requisite security 

clearances. 8 

16. On January 21, 2020, the CDC publicly confirmed the first U.S. nove l coronavirus 

case, what is now known as SARS-CoV-2, in the state of Washington. 9 On January 29, 2020, the 

White House announced the formation of "a coronavirus task force," while noting that " [t]he risk 

of infection for Americans remains low." 10 On January 30, 2020, WHO declared the outbreak a 

9 

Yasmeen Abutaleb et al. , The U. S. was beset by denial and dy~:function as the coronavirus raged, Wash. Post 
(Apr. 4, 2020), https://www.washingtonpost.com/natioual-security/2020/04/04/coronavirus-government­
dysfunctiou. 

Id. 

Aram Roston & Marisa Taylor, Exclusive: White House told f ederal health agency lo classijj, coronavirus 
deliberations - sources, Reuters (Mar. l l, 2020), https://www.reuters.com/article/us-bealth-coronavirus­
secrecy-exclusive/exclusive-wliite-house-told-federal-bealth-agency-to-clas ify-coronavirus-deliberations­
sources-idUSKBN20Y2LM. 

Id. 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, First Travel-related Case of 2019 Novel Coronavirus Detected in 
United States (Jan. 21 , 2 02 0), bttps://www.cdc.gov/media/reJeases/2020/pO 1 2 J -novel -coronavirns-travel­
case.html. 

10 White House, Statement from the Press Secretary Regarding the President's Coronavirus Task Force (Jan. 29, 
2020), https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing - tatements/statement-press-secretary-regardi ng-pre idents­
coronavi rus-task-force/ . 

5 
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"Public Health Emergency of International Concern." 11 Hours after that declaration, President 

Trump said during a speech on trade at a Michigan manufacturing plant that the virus was "going 

to have a very good ending for us. So that I can assure you." 12 

17. WHO began supplying diagnostic test kits to various countries in January, but the 

United States opted not to use that test, choosing to develop its own. 13 Contraty to an April 2018 

agreement between the CDC and three of the biggest associations i.nvolved in lab testing, the 

Executive Branch reportedly prevented non-government laboratories from assisting in testing. 14 

The CDC released a flawed test in February 2020 that took weeks to correct. 15 

18. The Executive Branch has responded disparately to state governors' requests for 

drugs, medical supplies and equipment, prompting questions about whether politics influenced 

their allocation across states. 16 

19. Since January 2020, Pres ident Trump has repeatedly downplayed the threat posed 

by the novel coronavirus. 17 On January 22, President Trump said he was not worried about a 

11 World Health Organization, Statement on the second meeting of the International Health Regula/ions (2005) 
Emergency Conunil(ee regarding the outbreak of novel coronavinis (2019-nCoV) (Jan. 30, 2020), 
https :/ /www.who.int/news-room/detail/30-01-2020-sta tement-on-the-second-meeting-of-the-intemational­
health-regulations-(2005)-emergency-commi ttee-regarding-the-outbreak-o f-novel-coronavirus-(2019-ncov). 

12 Caitlin Op1ysko, Tnunp: Coronavin1s will have 'a ve,y good ending for us', Politico (Jan. 30, 2020), 
https://www.politico.com/news/2020/01/30/trump-close-coopera tion-china-coronavirus-l09701 . 

13 Donald McNeil, Did Federal Officials Really Question WH.O. Tests/or Coronavin1s?, N.Y. Times (Mar. 17, 
2020), https://www.nytimes.com/2020/03/17/bealtb/coronavirus-tests-who.html. 

14 Bob O1tega et a l. , How !he governmenl delayed coronavirus testing, CNN (Apr. 9, 2020), 
https :/ / www.coo.com/2020/04/09/po I itics/coronavi rus-testiog-cdc-fda-red-tape-invs/index. h.tm I. 

is Id. 

16 To luse Olonmnipa et al. , Governors plead for medical equipment from federal stockpile plagued by shortages 
and confusion, Wash. Post (Mar. 31 , 2020), bttps://www.wasbingtonpost.com/politics/goveroors-plead-for­
med ical-equipment-from-federal-stockpile-plagued-by-sbortages-and-confusio11/2020/03/3 l/ l 8aadda0-728d­
l l ea-87 da-77 a8 l 36cl a6d_sto1y. btmJ. 

17 David Leonhardt, A Complele Lisi of Trump's Attempls lo Play Down Coronavirus, .Y. Times (Mar. 15, 

6 
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pandemic, stating, "We have it totally under control .... It's one person coming in from China, 

and we have it under control. It's going to be just fine." 18 On January 24, President Trump tweeted 

that the "United States greatly appreciates [China's] efforts and transparency," and "[i]t will all 

work out well." 19 On February 7, 2020, he twe ted that "as the weather starts to warm ... the 

virus hopefully becomes weaker, and then gone."20 On February 10, he stated at a New Han1pshire 

rally, " looks like, by April, you know, in theory, when it gets a little warmer, it miraculously goes 

away." 21 On February 24, he tweeted that "[t]he Coronavirus is very much under control in the 

USA."22 On March 7, President Trump stated that "anybody that needs a test gets a test. We -

[t]hey're there. They have the tests. And the tests are beautiful."23 

20. In March 2020, Jared Kushner, President Trump 's son-in-law and senior adviser, 

reportedly created his own team of government allies and private industry representatives to work 

alongside the official coronavirus task force . 24 Kushner's outside advisers were reportedly 

2020), https://www.nytimes.com/2020/03/15/opinion/trump-coronavirns.h tml. 

18 Matthew J. Belvedere, Trump says he trusts China•~· Xi on coronavirus and the US has it 'totally under 
control' , CNBC (Jan. 22, 2020), https://www.cnbc.com/2020/01/22/trump-on-coronavirus-from-china-we-have­
it-totally-under-control.html. 

19 Donald J. Trump (@realDonaldTnunp), Twitter (Jan. 24, 2020, 4:18 PM), 
https://twitter.com/realdonaldtrump/sta tus/ l 220818115 3 54923 009. 

20 Donald J. Trump (@..,realDonaldTrump), Twitter (Feb. 7, 2020, 5:31 AM), 
https ://twitter. com/real dona ld trump/status/122 5 7287 5 64 5 6808448. 

21 David Leonhardt, A Complete List of Trump's Attempts to Play Down Coronavirus, N. Y. Times (Mar. 15, 
2020), https://www.nytimes.com/2020/03/l 5/opi_nion/ trump-corouavirus.b.tm l. 

22 Donald J. Trump (@reaJDonaldTrump), Twitter (Feb. 24, 2020 4:42 PM), 
bttps:/ /twitter.com/rea IDonaldTrump/status/123 2058l2774017 43 39. 

23 White House, Remarks by President Trump After Tour of the Centers fo r Disease Control and Prevention, 
Atlanta, GA (Mar. 6, 2020), bttps://www.wbitehouse.gov/briefmgs-statements/remarks-pre iden t-trump-tour­
centers-disease-control-prevention-adanta-ga/. 

24 Yasmeen AbutaJeb et. al. , Kushner coronavirus team sparks confusion, p laudits inside While House response 
e;fforts, Wash. Post (Mar. 18, 2020), bttps://www.washingtoupost.com/politics/kushner-coronavirus-team-

7 
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emailing large groups of government employees from private email addresses . 25 Kushner 

reportedly was also the Wbite House "point person" for "Project Airbridge," which purports to 

work with private companies to bring medical supplies from other countries to the United States.26 

21. During his March 19 coronavirus briefing, Presid nt Trump suggested that the 

drugs chloroquine and hydroxychloroquine were a possible "game changer" for treating COVID-

19,27 despite insufficient evidence of their efficacy. 28 A few days later, a man died and his wife 

was hospitalized after the couple ingested a fom1 of chloroquine. 29 

22. On April 3, 2020, President Trump reversed previous guidance on masks while 

announcing that people in the U.S. should wear face coverings in public to slow the spread of what 

is now known as SARS-CoV-2.30 On April 14, contrary to his previous praise for China's "efforts 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

sparks-con fusion -p l.audits-i_nside-wrute-house-response-efforts/2020/03/ 18/0203 8al 6-687 4-11 ea-9923-
57073adce27 c_story. btmJ. 

Id. 

Kathryn Watson, What is Project Airbridge?, CBS News (MaJ. 30, 2020), 
https://www.cbsnews.com/news/coronavirus-what-is-project-airbridge/. 

White House, Remarks by President Trump, Vice President Pence, and Members of the Coronavirus Task 
Force in Press Briefing (MaJ. 19, 2020), https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefings-statements/remarks-president­
trump-vice-president-pence-members-coronavirus-task-force-press-briefing-6/. 

Charles Ornstein, What We Know - and Don 'I Know -About Possible Coronavirus Treatments Promoted by 
Trump, Politico (Mar. 29, 2020), https://www.propublica.org/article/what-we-know-and-dont-know-about­
possible-coronavirus-treatments-promoted-by-trump; see also Michael Crowley et al ., Ignoring Expert Opinion, 
Trump Again Promo/es Use of Hydroxychloroquine, N.Y. Times (Apr. 5, 2020), 
https://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/05/us/politics/trump-hydroxychloroquine-coronavirus.html; Peter Baker 
et al. , Trump's Aggressive Advocacy of Malaria Drugjor Treating Corona virus Divides Medica l Community, 
N.Y. Times (Apr. 6, 2020) bttps://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/06/us/politics/coronavirus-trump-maJaria­
drug.html. 

Scott Neuman, Man Dies, Woman Hospitalized After Taking Form Of Chloroquine To Prevent COVJD-19, 
NPR (Mar. 24, 2020), https://www.npr.org/sections/coronavirus-live-updates/2020/03/24/8205 l 2 l 07 /man-dies­
woman.-hospitali zed-after-taking-fo1m-of-chloroq uine-to-preveut-covid-19. 

Lena Sun & Josh Daw ey, New face mask guidance comes after ballle between White House and CDC, Wash. 
Post (Apr. 4, 2019), bttps://www.wasbiogtonpost.com/bea ltb/2020/04/03/wliite-bouse-cdc-tt.u-f-battJe-over­
guidauce-broad-use-face-ma ks-figbt-corouavirus/ . 

8 
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and transparency,"31 President Trump announced that he had instructed the Executive Branch to 

suspend funding to the WHO because it "willingly took China's assurances to face value" and 

"pushed China's misinfom1ation."32 

23. On April 16, 2020, after the White House released nonbinding guidelines 

recommending how and when states and localities should begin to reopen parts of the economy, 

President Trump stated that governors could reopen businesses by May 1 or earlier if they believed 

it prudent. 33 On April 22, 2020, Dr. Rick Bright, fom1er director of HHS Biomedical Advanced 

Research and Development Authority and ASPR deputy assistant secretary, said that he was 

dismissed from his positions and transfe1Ted to the NIH after he pressed for rigorous vetting of 

hydroxychloroquine, the drug embraced by President Trump for treating the virus. 34 

24. On April 23, 2020, President Trump suggested at a White House briefing that an 

" injection inside" the human body with a disinfectant could help combat COVID-19. 35 The same 

day, the Environmental Protection Agency issued a press release warning against ingesting 

disinfectants or applying them on the human body. 36 The day after the President suggested that a 

31 Donald J. Trump (@realDonaldTnunp), Twitter (Jan. 24, 2020, 4:18 PM), 
https://twitter.com/realdonaldtrump/sta tus/ l 220818115 3 54923 009. 

32 White House, Remarks by President Trump in Press Briefing (Apr. l4, 2020), 
https://www.wh.itehouse.gov/briefings-statements/remarks-president-trnmp-press-b1ie fing/. 

33 Peter Baker & Michael D. Shear, Trump Says States Can Start Reopening While Ad1wwledging the Decision Is 
Theirs, N. Y. Times (Apr. 16 2020), bttps://www.uytimes.com/2020/04/ l 6/us/politics/coronavirns-trump­
guideliues.btmJ .. 

34 A doctor says he was removed from his federal post after pressing for rigorous vetting of treatments embraced 
by Trump, N.Y. T imes (Apr. 22, 2020), bttps://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/22/us/coronavirus-live­
coverage. html#l in.k-652aa9c3. 

35 White House, Remarks by President Trump, Vice President Pence, and Members of the Coronavin1s Task 
Force in Press Briefing (Apr. 23, 2020), bttps://www.whitehouse.gov/briefings-statements/remarks-president­
trump-vice-presideot-pence-members-coronavirus-task-force-press-briefi_n g-3 l /. 

36 Euvironmental Protection Agency, EPA provides critical information to the American public about safe 

9 
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disinfectant injection could counter the virus, New York City's poison control center reported 

receiving a higher-than-normal number of calls, many of them relating to exposure to 

disinfectants. ~7 

25. On June 20, 2020, President Trump hosted a rally in Tulsa, Oklahoma, despite 

concerns about rising numbers of coronavirus cases in the area and concerns about the event 

becoming a "super-spreader."38 At the rally, President Trump referred to widespread testing as a 

"double-edged sword." 39 He added: "When you do testing to that extent, you're gonna find more 

people, you're going to find more cases. Sol said to my people, 'slow the testing down, please. '"40 

26. As of August 11, 2020, there are over five million confirmed cases of COVID-19 

in the U.S. and over 162,000 have died of the disease in the U.S. 41 The CDC projects that by 

August 29, 2020, there will be between 175,000 and 190,000 reported COVID-19 deaths in the 

u.s.42 

37 

38 

39 

disinfectant use (Apr. 23, 2020), https://www.epa.gov/newsreleases/epa-provides-critical-infonnation-ame1ican­
public-abou t-safe-disinfectant-use. 

Jason Slotkin, NYC Poison Control Sees Uptick In Calls After Tn11np 's Disinfectant Co111111ents, NPR (Apr. 25, 
2020), https ://www.npr.org/sections/ coronavirus-live-upda tes/2020/04/25/845015 23 6/nyc-poison-control-sees­
uptick-in-calls-a fter-tnunps-disinfectant-comments. 

Dareh Gregorian, Trump supporters cro wd Tulsa ahead of Saturday rally, NBC News (June 18, 2020), 
https://www.nbcnews.com/politics/2020-election/trnmp-supporters-crowd-tulsa-ahead-saturday-rally­
nl 231454. 

Tn11np urges slowdown in COVJD-19 testing, calling ii a 'double-edge sword' Reuters (J une 21 , 2020), 
https :/ /www.reuters.com/article/us-bealtb-coronavirus-trurnp-testing/tru m p-u rges-sl owdowu-in-covid-19-
testing-ca I ling-it-a -double-edge-sword-idUSKBN23 S0B4. 

40 Id. 

4 1 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Corona virus Disease 2019: Cases in the US (Aug. 1.1, 2020), 
bttps://www.cdc.gov/coronavirns/201 9-ncov/cases-updates/cases-in-us. htm I. 

42 Ce11ters for Disease Control and Prevention, Coronavir11s Disease 2019: Forecasts of Total Deaths (Aug. 11, 
2020), http ://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/20J 9-ncov/covid-data/foreca ting-us.htm l. 
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27. As the U.S. braces for a "second wave" of the virus, public debate about the 

administration 's response (or lack thereof) to the disease continues unabated. 43 Already, COVID-

19 infections have surged in parts of the country this summer while President Trump insisted that 

the outbreak "will go away lik things go away."44 On August 4, President Trump stat d, "You 

know there are those that say you can test too much" and claimed the COVID-19 outbreak was 

"under control as much as you can control it."45 When asked about the fact that the United States 

was averaging over 1,000 deaths per day in the same interview, President Trump responded, "it is 

what it is."46 

28. The inm1ediate release of the requested records is c1itical for the public to evaluate 

the administration's response to the pandemic. 

PLAINTIFF'S FOlA REQUESTS 

29. On April 27, 2020, Plaintiff submitted FOIA requests to Defendant IAJD and 

Defendant NIH regarding COVID-19. These requests are incorporated by reference and attached 

as Exhibit A (NIA1D) and Exhibit B (NJH). 

30. On May 1, 2020, Plaintiff submitted a FOIA request lo Defendant FDA regarding 

43 See, e.g., Amy Goldstein, Fauci worries U.S. covid- 19 cases could climb to 100,000 daily, Wash. Post (June 30, 
2020), https://www.washingtonpost.com/bealth/fauci-wonies-us-covid-19-cases-could-climb-to-1 00000-
daily/2020/06/30/91 7617ba-bafc-1 l ea -80b9-40ece9a70 I dc_story.html. 

44 David Jackson, Trump says schools should reopen because children are 'virtually immune', USA Today (Aug. 
5, 2020), bttps://www.usatoday.com/story/uews/politics/2020/08/05/coronavirus-trump-pusbes-reopening­
saying-cb.iJdren-immune/3 29725500 l / . 

45 Sam Baker, Trump: Coronavirus is "under control", Axios (Aug. 4, 2020), bttps://www.axios.com/trump­
coronavirus-under-coutrol-5 fl J 4a l. 6-995 2-4 2 8c-bc07-3cfa360b0977 .html. 

46 WiUiam Cummings & Comtney Subramanian, 'ft is what if is, ' Trump says of rising coronavirus death toll as 
he insists outbreak is 'under control ', USA Today (Aug. 4, 2020), 
bttps :/ /www. usatoday. com/story /news/po Ii tics/2020/08/04/tru mp-tells-ax ios-ri sing-covid- l 9-death-toll-is-wbat­
is/5579765002/. 
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COVID-19. That request is incorporated by reference and attached as Exhibit C. 

31. On June 24, 2020, Plaintiff submitted FOIA requests to Defendant HHS and its 

Components, Defendant CDC, Defendant DRS, and Defendant FEMA regarding COVID-19. 

These requests are incorporated by reference and attached as Exhibit D (HHS and its Components), 

Exhibit E (CDC), and Exhibit F (DRS and FEMA). 

32. Plaintiff requested expedited processing of all of the requests on the grounds that it 

is an organization "primarily engaged in disseminating information" and because the records 

sought contain information "urgently needed to inform the public about actual or alleged 

government activity." See Ex. D at 7-8 (citing 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(E)(v)(I)-(II)); Ex. Eat 6-8 

(same); Ex.Cat 6-8 (same); Ex.Bat 7-9 (same); Ex. A at 7-9 (same); Ex.Fat 5-7 (same). Given 

the public health concerns at issue, Plaintiff further requested expedition on the grounds that failure 

to obtain the requested records on an expedited basis could "reasonably be expected to pose an 

imminent threat to the life or physical safety of an individual." See id. ( citing 5 U.S.C. 

§ 552(a)(6)(E)(v)(l)). 

33. Plaintiff requested fee waivers for all of the requests on the grounds that it is a 

"representative of the news media" within the meaning of FOIA, see Ex. D at 9 (citing 5 U.S.C. 

§§ 552(a)(4)(A)(ii)(l1)); Ex.Eat 8-9 (same); Ex.Cat 8-9 (same); Ex.Bat 9-10 (same); Ex. A at 

9-10 (same); Ex.Fat 8 (same), and that disclosure of the requested records is in the public interest 

because it is " likely to contribute significantly to public understanding of the operations or 

activities of the government and is not primarily in the commercial interest of the requester." Id. 

(citing 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii)). 

12 
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AGENCY RESPONSES 

National Institutes of Health 

34. On May 14, 2020, NIH acknowledged its receipt of Plaintiff's request to NIH. A 

copy of this correspondence is incorporated by reference and attached as Exhibit G. 

35. On May 18, 2020, NIH requested that Plaintiff consolidate its request to NIH with 

Plaintiff's request to NIATD. A copy of this correspondence is incorporated by reference and 

attached as Exhibit H. 

36. On May 19, 2020, Plaintiff replied to NIH, seeking to clarify that a consolidated 

request would capture all records responsive to both requests and stating Plaintiff would have no 

objection to consolidation of the requests if that were the case. Ex. H. 

37. On May 19, 2020, NIH replied confirming that the consolidated request would 

include all records responsive to both requests. Ex. H. 

38. On May 19, 2020, Plaintiff consented to the consolidation. Ex. H. 

39. To date, NIH has not made a determination on Plaintiff's request as required by 

FOIA and has not disclosed any responsive records. 

40. Plaintiff has constructively exhausted administrative remedies on account ofNIH's 

failure to comply with the 20-day time limit for making a detennination on Plaintiffs request as 

required by FOIA. 

National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases 

41. On May 18, 2020, NJH, responding in part on behalf of NJAJD, requested that 

Plaintiff consolidate its request to NIH with its request to NIAID. Ex. H. 

42. On May 19, 2020, Plaintiff replied to NIH, seeking to clarify that a consolidated 

request would capture all records responsive to both requests and stating Plaintiff would have no 

13 
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objection to consolidation of the requests if that were the case. Ex. H. 

43. On May 19, 2020, NJH replied confirming that the consolidated request would 

include all records responsive to both requests. Ex. H. 

44. On May 19, 2020, Plaintiff consented to the consolidation. Ex. H. 

45. To date, NIAID has not made a detemtination on Plaintiffs request as required by 

FOIA and has not d isclosed any responsive records. 

46. Plaintiff has constructively exhausted administrative remedies on account of 

NIH's failure to comply with the 20-day time limit for making a determination on Plaint iffs 

request as required by FOIA. 

Food and Drug Administration 

47. On May 1, 2020, FDA acknowledged receipt of Plaintiffs request to FDA. Ex. I. 

48. On May 4, 2020, FDA requested clarification regarding whether Plaintiffs request 

included records for Dr. Peter Marks or Dr. Jeffrey Shuren. A copy of this con-espondence is 

incorporated by reference and attached as Exhibit J. 

49. On May 4, 2020, Plaintiff responded to that inquiry and stated that Plaintiff's 

request included records for both Dr. Marks and Dr. Shuren. A copy of this con-espondence is 

incorporated by reference and attached as Exhibit J. 

50. On May 5, 2020, FDA again acknowledged receipt of Plaintiff's request to FDA. 

In its response, FDA stated it may charge Plaintiff a fee for processing the request and that it may 

be unable to comply with FOIA's timeline. A copy of this con-espondence is incorporated by 

reference and attached as Exhibit K. 

51. On May 6, 2020, FDA granted Plaintiff's request for expedited processing. A copy 

of that con-espondence is incorporated by reference and attached as Exhibit L. 
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52. To date, FDA has not made a determination on Plaintiff's request as required by 

FOIA and has not disclosed any responsive records. 

5 3. Plaintiff has constructively exhausted administrative remedies on account of FD A's 

failure to comply with the 20-day time limit for making a detennination on Plaintiff's request as 

required by FOIA. 

Department of Health and Human Services and Its Components 

54. On June 25, 2020, HHS acknowledged receipt of Plaintiff's request to HHS and its 

Components. A copy of this correspondence is incorporated by reference and attached as Exhibit 

M. 

55. To date, HHS and its Components have not made a determination on Plaintiff's 

request as required by FOIA and have not disclosed any responsive records. 

56. Plaintiff has constructively exhausted administrative remedies on account of HHS 

and its Components' failure to comply with the 20-day time limit for making a determination on 

.Plaintiff's request as required by FOIA. 

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 

57. On June 26, 2020, CDC acknowledged receipt of Plaintiffs request and assigned it 

internal tracking number 20-01876-FOIA. CDC denied Plaintiff expedited processing, stating that 

Plaintiff had "failed to show that there is an imminent threat to the life or physical safety of an 

individual" and had not "demonstrated that [Plaintiff is] a person primarily engaged in 

disseminating information." CDC also denied Plaintiff a fee waiver. Citing "unusual 

circumstances," CDC further stated that it would need more than 30 working days to respond to 

Plaintiff's FOIA request. A copy of CDC's June 26 letter is incorporated by reference and attached 

15 
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as Exhibit N. 

58. On July 9, 2020, Plaintiff appealed those adverse determinations regarding its 

request for expedited processing and a fee waiver. A copy of that appeal is incorporated by 

reference and attached as Exhibit 0. 

59. In that appeal, Plaintiff noted that the CDC's denial of a fee waiver ignored, as set 

forth in the request, that "disseminating information is among [Plaintiffs] core activities" as a 

nonprofit and "representative of the news media," which it accomplishes though a variety of 

mediums, free of charge, "to promote public understanding and robust debate." Notably, Plaintiff 

pointed out that the CDC's denial is flatly inconsistent with the decisions of its sister agencies to 

grant Plaintiff fee waivers after receiving the same information about Plaintiff's disseminating 

activities. Finally, the CDC's summary denial ignored that the administration's failures in 

responding to the v ims "may well be a significant reason for why the U.S. is seeing a resurgence 

of the disease," making the requested info1mation vital to the public's understanding of important 

"operations or activities of the government." Ex. 0 at 1-3. 

60. Plaintiff also demonstrated that the CDC's summary denial of expedited processing 

was mistaken. Plaintiff again noted the clear and uncontradicted evidence that it was a nonprofit 

"primarily engaged in disseminating information," the sought information about a pandemic 

potentially posed "an imminent threat to the life or physical safety of an individual," and other 

agencies had granted expedited processing based on the same infom1ation. Ex. 0 at 3-5. 

61. On July 16, 2020, HHS responded on behalf of CDC acknowledging that the appeal 

regarding CDC's denials was received on July 9, 2020. HHS further attempted to cite the unusual 

circumstances exception to extend its time to respond to Plaintiff's appeal, pointing to a "need to 

consult with another office or agency that has substantial interest in the determination of the 

16 
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appeal." A copy of this correspondence is incorporated by reference and attached as Exhibit P. 

62. Plaintiff has constructively xhausted administrative remedies on account of 

CDC's failure lo comply with the 20-day time limit, even with a 10-day "unusual circumstances" 

extension, for making a determination on Plaintiffs request as required by FOIA. 

63. As of August 21, 2020, CDC has not provided a response or decision on Plaintiffs 

administrative appeal. Accordingly, Plaintiff has exhausted all administrative remedies regarding 

Plaintiffs ' requests for a fee waiver and for expedited processing, even with a 10-day "unusual 

circumstances extension. "47 

Department of Homeland Security and Federal Emergency Management Agency 

64. On June 25, 2020, Defendant DHS responded to Plaintiffs request, acknowledging, 

on behalf of both DHS and FEMA, that the request was received on June 24, 2020, assigning 

reference number 2020-HQFO-01313, granting expedited processing, and conditionally granting 

the request for a fee waiver, pending a sampling of responsive documents. DHS also stated that it 

would invoke a 10-day extension, pursuant to 6 C.F.R. Part 5 § 5.5(c), for responding to Plaintiff's 

FOIA request. A copy of DHS 's June 25 letter is incorporated by reference and attached as 

Exhibit Q. 

65. On June 29, 2020, DHS contacted Plaintiff to request that Plaintiff limit certain 

requests "to the decision makers that would shed a light on our agency's operations; that would be 

GS 15, the Senior Executive Services (SES), and Political Appointees (PA)[,]" citing the volume 

47 A lthougb Plaintiff filed an administra tive appeal of CDC's denial of expedited processing it was not required to 
do so. See Judicial Watch, Inc. v. F.B.l. No. CIV.A. 0l-1216 RBW, 2002 WL 34339771, at *3 n.5 (D.D.C. 
Ju ly 26, 2002) ("Congress certainly did not envision tbat constructive exbaustion would apply to expedited 
processing requests .... "). Accordingly, Plaintiff has also constructively exhausted its administrative remedies 
regarding CDC's denial of expedited proces ing for tl1is reason . 
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of data initially retrieved. A copy of that request for clarification is incorporated by reference and 

attached as Exhibit R. 

66. Plaintiff provided that clarification the next day, on June 30, 2020, stating its 

willingness "to limit the search as [] recommend[ ed,]" provided that DHS would provide a 

"reasonable timeline for processing responsive records." In the spirit of cooperation, Plaintiff 

further stated it would be willing to receive rolling productions. A copy of that reply is 

incorporated by reference and attached as Exhibit S. 

67. To date, DHS has not acknowledged Plaintiffs willingness to limit the search, nor 

has DHS provided a reasonable timeline, or addressed Plaintiffs proposal for rolling productions. 

68. On July 1, 2020, FEMA acknowledged that it had received Plaintiffs FOJA request 

on June 24, 2020, and stated that DHS would process the request and contact Plaintiff regarding 

its release determination. A copy of this correspondence is incorporated by reference and attached 

as Exhibit T. 

69. On July 6, 2020, FEMA asserted that it was meeting its FOIA obligations to 

Plaintiff through DHS and referred Plaintiff to DHS for any additional questions. A copy of this 

correspondence is incorporated by reference and attached as Exhibit U. 

70. On July 7, 2020, DHS issued another request for clarification and narrowing to 

Plaintiff, asking Plaintiff to provide more information, naiTow certain timeframes "and/or provide 

key search terms," ai1d "provide the specific program office and/or FEMA employees [Plaintiff] 

would like [DHS] to search as well as key search terms." DHS further stated that it was placing 

its searches on hold until Plaintiff responded. A copy of this second request for clarification is 

incorporated by reference and attached as Exhibit V. 

71. On July 10, 2020, Plaintiff responded to DHS's July 7, 2020 request, objecting to 
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DHS placing the searches on hold because DHS had "no reason" to do so and stating Plaintiffs 

expectation that the searches had been continuing. Plaintiff pointed out that DHS "did not specify 

which program office required more information[,]" making it difficult for Plaintiff to respond. 

Plaintiff stated that it would be "happy to work with [DHS] on this," but noted the obvious that 

"DHS and its components are in a better position to know where responsive records are located 

and how best to search for them." Again, in the spirit of cooperation, Plaintiff nonetheless 

provided suggestions and additional background, but noted the suggestions were "non-exhaustive" 

and would not limit its request. A copy of this correspondence is incorporated by reference and 

attached as Exhibit W. 

72. On July 14, 2020, DHS acknowledged that it had received Plaintiff's July 10, 2020 

clarification email and would "sen[ d] it over to the program office searching for responsive 

records." A copy of this correspondence is incorporated by reference and attached as Exhibit X. 

73. To date, DHS and FEMA have not issued detem1inations on Plaintiff's request as 

required by FOIA and have not disclosed any responsive records. 

74. Plaintiff has constructively exhausted administrative remedies on account of the 

failure of DHS and FEMA to comply with the 20-day time limit, even with the 10-day ''unusual 

circumstances" extension for making a determination on Plaintiffs request as required by FOIA. 
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CAUSE OF ACTION 

Violation of the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552 

1. Plaintiff repeats, re-alleges, and incorporates the foregoing paragraphs as if set forth 

in full. 

2. Defendants' failure to comply with the statutory time limit for rendering a 

determination on Plaintiff's FOIA requests violates 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i) and Defendants' 

corresponding regulations. 

3. Defendant CDC's failure to comply with the statutory time limit for rendering a 

decision on Plaintiff's appeal violates 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(ii) and CDC's corresponding 

regulations. 

4. Defendants' failure to make reasonable efforts to search for records responsive to 

Plaintiffs requests violates FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(3)(C), and Defendants' corresponding 

regulations. 

5. Defendants' failure to promptly disclose records responsive to Plaintiffs requests 

violates FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(3)(A), and Defendants' corresponding regulations. 

6. The failure of Defendants HHS and its Components, CDC, NIH, and NIAID to 

grant Plaintiffs requests for expedited processing v iolates FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(E), and 

Defendants' corresponding regulations. 

7. Defendants' failure to grant Plaintiff's request for a waiver of search, review, and 

duplication fees violates FOIA, 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii), and Defendants' corresponding 

regulations. 

8. Plaintiff has exhausted all applicable administrative remedies. 
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9. Plaintiff is entitled to injunctive relief with respect to the prompt disclosure of the 

requested documents. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests that this Court: 

A. Expedite its consideration of this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1657(a); 

B. Order Defendants to immediately conduct a thorough search for records responsive 

to Plaintiffs requests; 

C. Order Defendants to immediately process any responsive records for disclosure and 

produce such records to Plaintiff; 

D. Enjoin Defendants from charging Plaintiff search, review, and duplication fees 

relating to the requests; 

E. Award Plaintiff its costs and reasonable attorneys' fees incurred in this action; and 

F. Grant such other relief as the Court may deem just and proper. 

Dated: August 21, 2020 
Washington, D.C. 
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Isl Mark F. Mendelsohn 

Mark F. Mendelsohn 
Tanya Manno (pro hac vice application to be 
submitted) 
Joseph Granzotto (pro hac vice application to 
be submitted) 
Brian Shiue (pro hac vice application to be 
submitted) 
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mmendelsohn@paulweiss.com 
(202) 223-7300 

Eric Alan Stone 
Daniel J. Klein 
PAUL, WEISS, RIFKIND, WHARTON 

& GARRISON LLP 
1285 Avenue of the Americas 
New York, NY 10019 
(212) 373-3000 

Amrit Singh 
Natasha Arnpriester 
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OPEN SOCIETY 
JUSTICE INITIAT IVE 

Open Society 
Justice Initiative 
224 West 57th Street 
New York, NY 10019. USA 

p. -+1 212-548-0600 
t . +-1 212-548-4608 

James A. Goldston 
Executive Director 

Via email 

justiceini tiative.org 

National Institute of Alle1-gy and Infectious Diseases 
Robin Schofield 
Room6G51 
5601 Fishers Lane 
Rockville, MD 20892 
Email: foia@niaid.nih.gov 

Re: Freedom of Information Act Request 
Expedited .Processing and Fee Waiver Requested 

To whom it may concern: 

OPEN SOCIETY 
FOUNDATIONS 

April 27, 2020 

This letter constitutes a request ("Request") pursuant to the Freedom of 
Information Act ("FOJA"), 5 U.S.C. § 552 submitted on behalf of the Open 
Society Justice Initiative ("Justice Initiative"), an operational program of th Open 
Society Institute ("OSI"), a New York State charitable trust and nonprofit 
organization. We request records concerning the timing and substance of the 
Executive Branch's response to the novel coronavitus, now known as severe acute 
respiratory syndrome coronavirus 2 or "SARS-Co V-2," the virus that causes the 
disease known as coronavirus disease 2019 or "COVID-19." 1 We respectfully ask 
that requests contained h rein be fotwarded to any other component agency as 
appropriate. 

Expedit d processing is requested pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(E), as is a fee 
waiver, pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii). 

A.RECORDS REQUESTED 

The Justice Initiative requests disclosure of the following records:2 

1 On Febrnary 11 , 2020, the World Health Organization announced that the disease caused by the 
new coronavirus will be known by !he official name of·'COVID-19." World Health Organization, 
Naming the coronavirus disease (COVID-19) and the virus that cau ·es it , 
l1ttps://www. who. i11t/emergenci e /diseases/novel -corona vi rns-20 I 9/techn ical-guidance/naming­
the-coronavims-disease-( covid-20 19)-and-the-vims-that-causes-it. 
2 For the purpose of this request, the tenn "records" includes, but is not limited to, any and al l 
agendas, agreements; analyses; calendars; correspondence; data; databases; clirec6ves; documents; 
e-mai ls and e-mail attachments, i.ncludiug sent through personal emai.1 accollots (e.g., Gmail); 
reports; mies; schedules; studies; tables of contents and contents of binders; talking points; 
teclmica] specificatioDs; training materials; examination ; faxes; files; f,'11idance; guidelines; 
evalt,atiou·; illstructions; letters; mallifosts; manual s; memoranda; notes; orders; prepared 
documentation for meetings, caJls, teleconferences, or other discussions responsive to our request; 
policies; procedllres; protocols; text messages and messages sent or received through otber 
messaging applications (e.g., WhatsApp, iMessage, Signal); voicemai]s; and any other materials. 
In tlJe event that such records once existed but have oow been destroyed please disclose any 
records that are integrally related to, summarize, or are interchangeable with said records. Press 
clippings and news articles that are tmaccompanied by any commeotary need not be produced. 
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Notice of SARS-CoV-2 and COVID-19 

Records indicating when the Executive Branch was first informed of what is now known as SARS­
CoV-2 and/or COVID-19. 
Records ·indicating the Executive Branch's response when it was first informed of what is now known 
as SARS-Co V -2 and/or CO VID-19. 
Records indicating when President Donald Trnmp was first informed of what is now known as SARS­
CoV-2 and/or COVID-19. 
Records indicating President Trnmp's response when he was first infotmed of what is now known as 
SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19. 
Records including and/or discussing communications (before March 1, 2020) to and from the 
National Center for Medical lntelligence ("NCMI") about what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or 
COVID-19.3 

Records including and/or discussing January 2020 communications to and from a State Department 
epidemiologist about what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19.4 

Records including and/or discussing January 2020 communications between Robert Redfield, 
Director, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, and Chinese officials about what is now known 
as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19.5 

Records including and/or discussing communications (from January l , 2020 to February 29, 2020) 
between Alex Azar, Secretary, Health and Human Services, and President Donald Trump about what 
is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19.6 

Records including and/or discussing communications (from January 1, 2020 to February 29, 2020) 
to and from Dr. Carter Mecher, enior medical advisor, Department of Veterans Affairs, about what 
is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19.7 

10. Records including and/or discussing communications (from January 1, 2020 to March 31, 2020) to 
and from Robert Kadlec, Assistant Secretaiy for Preparedness and Response, about asymptomatic 
cases spreading what is now !mown as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19.8 

11. Records discussing communications (from January 1, 2020 to Febrnary 29, 2020) from Peter 
Navano, President Trump's trade advisor, about what is now known as SARS-Co V-2 and/or COV.ID-
19.9 

ll. The Executive Branch's Efforts to Counter SARS-CoV-2 and COVID-19 

12. Records discussing requests and need for and availability and allocation (including across states) of 
resources for testing for what is now lmown as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19 in the u.s. 10 

13. Records discussing requests and need for and availability and allocation (including across statesY I of 

3 See. e.g, Josh Margolin & James Gordon Meek, Intelligence report warned of coronavirus crisis as ear~v as November: Sources, 
AB News (Apr. 8, 2020), bttps://abcnew ·.go.conJ/Politics/ioteJligence-report-warued-coronaviru ·-c1isi ·-early-novernber­
sources/story?id=70031273; Eric Lipton et al., He Could Have Seen What Was Coming: Behind Trump's Failure on the Vi/1.ls, N.Y. 
Times (Ape l I , 2020), https://www.nytimes.conJ/2020/04/ 11 /us/politics/c.oronaviru -tnw1p-response.htmJ. 
4 Eric Lipton et al. , He Could Have Seen Hlhat Was Coming: Behind Tnimp 's Failure on the Vims, N.Y. Times (Apr. 11 , 2020), 
https:l /www.uytimes.com/2020/04/ 11/us/politics/coronavirns -tnunp-respouse. html. 
5 See, e.g., Yasmeen Abutaleb et al. , The U.S. was beset by denial and dysjimction as the coronavirus raged, Wash. Post (Apr. 4, 
2020), https://www.washingtonpost.corn/national-security/2020/04/04/coronavirus-govemment-dysfunction. 
6 Eric Lipton et al., He Could Have Seen What Was Coming: Behind T111111p's Failure on the Vims, N.Y . Times (Apr. 1.1 , 2020), 
bttps ://www. nyti mes. com/2020/04/ I I /us/politic sf corona virus-trump-response. htm I. 
11d. 
s1c1. 
9 Maggie Haberman, Trade Adviser Warned White House in Janumy o/Risks of a Pandemic, N.Y. Times (Apr. 6, 2020), 
bttps://v.rww.nytimes.com/2020/04/06/us/politics/navarro-waruiog-tmmp-coronavirus.html; Eric Lipton et al., He Could Have Seen 
What Was Coming: Behind Trump's Failure on Lhe Vims, N. Y. Times (Apr. l 1, 2020), 
https ://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/ l l /us/politics/coronavirns -tnunp-response.html. 
10 See e.g., Thomas Fttller & Mike Baker, Coronavirus Death in California Came Weeki· Before First Known US. Death, N. Y. 
Times (Apr. 22, 2020), https://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/22/us/coronavirus-first-uuited-states-death.html. 
11 Toi use Olonmnipa et al., Governors plead for medical equipment fi'om federal stockpile plagued by shorwges and co11.fusion, 
Wash. Post (Mar. 21 , 2020). https://www.washingtonpost.com/politics/governors-plead-for-medical -equipment-from-federal­
stockp i.le-plagued-by-shortages-and-coufu ·ion/2020/03/31 / 18aadda0-728d-1 I ea-87 da-77a8136c J a6d_ tory.btml. 
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medical supplies and equipm nt (including but not limited to drugs, ventilators, and vaccines), 
Personal Protect ive Equipment ("PPE") and/or masks for what is now known as SARS-Co V-2 and/or 
COVID-19 in the U.S.12 

14. Records discussing immunity to what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19 in the U.S .13 

15. Records discussing the timing and duration of social distancing measures in the U.S. 14 

16. Records concerning extraordinary presidential authority, including but not limited to "presidential 
emergency actions" relating to what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19.15 

17. Records indicating dates and agendas for meetings and decisions of the official White House 
coronavirus task force during January and February 2020. 16 

18. Records including and/or discussing "Four steps to mit igation," a February/March 2020 plan for 
addressing what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COYID-19. 17 

19. Records including and/or discussing a February 2020 document titled "U.S. Government Response 
to the 2019 Novel Coronavirus."18 

20. Records including and/or discussing communications to or from Dr. Nancy Messonnier, Director of 
the National Center for Immunization and Respiratory Diseases, about her February 25, 2020 public 
warning about what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19. 19 

21. Records discussing Remdesivir, Chloroquine, Hydroxychloroquine ("Plaquenil"), Azithromycin 
("Zithromax") and/or other drugs or substances, such as disinfectants, for treating what is now known 
as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19.20 

22. Records discussing federal officials' questioning of and/or divergence from President Trump's public 
positions regarding what is now known as SARS-Co V-2 and/or COVJD-J 9, including but not limited 
to records cone ming Dr. Rick Blight, Director of the Biomedical Advanced Research and 
Development Authority, and Dr. Anthony Fauci, Director of the National Institute of Allergy and 
Infectious Diseases.21 

23 . Records discussing in-person and/or mail-in voting in the context of what is now known as SARS­
CoV-2 and/orCOVID-19.22 

24. Records including and/or discussing instructions to classify meetings and/or records relating to what 

ll Lindsay Isaac & Jay Croft, WHO says no evidence shows 1ha1 having coronavirus prevents a second infection, CNN, (Apr. 25, 
2020), bttps://www.crm.com/2020/04/25/u /who-imrnunity-antibodie -covid-19/iudex.html. 
14 Peter Baker & Michael D. Shear, TmmpSays States Can Start Reopening While Ac!mow!edging the Decision ls Theirs, N.Y. 
Time (Apr. 16, 2020), http ://www.11ytime .corn/2020/04/16/u /politic corouaviru -trun1p-i;,11.J.ideline .html 
15 Elizabeth Gotein & Andrew Boyle, Ttwnp Has Emergency Powers We Aren 't Allowed to Know About, N.Y. Times (Apr. l 0, 
2020),https://www.uytime·.com/2020/04/ 10/opiniou/tnunp-coronavirn -emergency-power· .htm.1. 
16 Eric Lipton et al. , He Could Have Seen Whal Was Coming: Behind Trump's Failure on the Virus, N. Y. Time (Apr. 11 , 2020), 
https://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/ l l /us/politics/coronavirns-trump-response.hunJ. 
11 Id. 
18 Jd. 
19 Id. 
20 Remarks by President Trump, Vice Preside//1 Pence, and Members of the Corona vims Task Force in Press Briefing, White House 
(Mar. 19, 2020), http ://www.wb..itehouse.gov/briefings- tatement /remark -pre ident-tnunp-vice-pre ide11t-pence-rne1nber -
coronavirus-task-force-press-briefing-6/ ; Charles Ornstein, Whal We Know----and Don 't Know----About Possible Coronavirus 
Treatments Promoted by Trump, Politico (Mar. 29, 2020), https://wv.,w.propublica.org/articJe/wbat-we-know-and -dont-Jmow-about­
possible-coronavirn ·-treatments-promoted-by-tnunp, Michael Crowley et al. , Ignoring Expert Opinion, Trump Again Promotes Use 
of Hydroxychloroquine, N.Y. Times (Apr. 5, 2020), https: //www.nytimes.com/2020/04/05/us/politics/tnunp-bydroxychloroquine­
coronavims.html; Jason Slotkin, NYC Poison Co111rol Sees Uptick In Calls Ajier Trump's Disinfectanl Comments , NPR (Apr. 25, 
202), https://www .npr.org/secti ons/coronavirns-1ive-updates/2020/04/25/8450 J 5236/nyc-poi son-control-sees-uptick-iu-calls-after­
tnunps-clisinfectant-comments; Colin Dwyer, Lysol Maker, Officials Reject Trump's Disi1ifec1an1 Idea, NPR (Apr. 24, 2020), 
https://www.np.r.org/sectio1Js/ corona vi rus-li ve- Ltpdates/2020/04/24/84 357 I 171 /tmder-no-c ircwnsta1Jce-lyso I-maker-officials-reject­
tnunp-s-disinfectant-idea; EPA provides critical information to the American public about sc!fe disi1{ectan1 use (Apr. 23, 2020), 
https://www.epa.gov/newsreleases/epa-provides-c1itical-infon11atiou-american-public-about-safe-disiufecta11t-u e. 
21 See e.g ., A doctor says he was removed Ji'om hisfederal post aflerpressingfor rigorous 11et1ing of treatments embraced by 
Trump, N.Y. Times (Apr. 22, 2020), https://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/22/us/coronavims-live-coverage.btJnl#link-652aa9c3; Niall 
Stanage. Speculation grows about Fauci's jiaure, The H i.11 (Apr. 14, 2020), https://theb i 11.com/homenews/ad.mi nistration/492606-
the-memo-speculation-grows-about-faucis -foture; Deb Riecbmaon, Aamer Madhani & Jonathan Lemire, Doctors struggle to stay 
true to science but not cross Trump Associated Press (Apr. 24, 2020), https://apuews.com/c5cbe2bb3160af9054al ea5249fffil9 I. 
22 Paul Steinhauser, Trump takes new swipe at push 10 expand voting by mail amid coronavirus crisis, Fox News (Apr. 14, 2020), 
https://www.foxnews.com/po I itics/tmmp-pu ·b-to-expand-voti ng-by-mai 1-am.id-coronavi rus-cri ' is. 
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is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19.23 

25. Communications between your agency and the White House regarding what is now known as SARS­
Co V-2 and/or COVID-19. 

26. Communications between the Executive Branch and non-government entities (including but not 
limited to private-sector companies, academic institutions and/or individuals) capable of developing 
tests, or assisting in testing, for what is now known as SARS-Co V -2 and/or CO V fD-19. 24 

Ill. Executive Branch SARS-CoV-2 and COVID-19 Communications with Congress, State 
Governors, and the WHO 

27. Records including and/or discussing communications (before March 1, 2020) between any member 
of the Executive Branch and Congress regarding what is now known as SARS-Co V-2 and/or COVJD-
19, including but not limited to briefings to Congress, members of Congress, Congr ssional 
Committees or Subcommittees, and/or Congressional staff about what is now known as SARS-Co V-
2 and/or COVID-19.25 

28. Records including and/or discussing communications between the White House and a state governor 
or his/her office about the timjng and duration of social distancing measures and federal assistance to 
states for what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19, including but not limited to any 
direct financial assistance and assistance on medical supplies and equipment (including but not 
limited to drugs, ventilators, and vaccines), personal protective equipment (PPE), masks and testing 
for what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19. 

29. Records including and/or discussing communications between the Executive Branch and the World 
Health Organization ("WHO") about what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19.26 

B. BACKGROUND 

The earliest known case ofCOVID-19 (the dis ase caused by what is now known as SARS-CoV-2) reportedly 
can be traced back to November 17, 2019, in Hubei province, China.27 By December 31 , 2019, health officials 
in Wuhan posted a notice that they were investigating an outbreak of pneumonia in the city, and the World 
Health Organization ("WHO") acknowledged that on that date it "was infonned of a cluster of cases of 
pneumonia of unknown cause."28 As of January 3, 2020, Chinese authorities r ported a total of 44 patients 
with pneumonia ofunlmown etiology to the WHO. 29 

Media reports provide varying accounts of when the U.S. Executive Branch first received notice of what is 
now l01own as S.ARS-CoV-2. ABC News rep011ed, for example, that a November intelligence rep01t by the 
military's National Center for Medical Intelligence (''NCMI") detailed concerns about what is now known as 
SARS-CoV-2, and the report "was bdefed multiple times" to the Defense Intelligence Agency ("DIA"), the 

23 Anun Roston & Marisa Taylor, Exclusive: W11ite House told federal health agency to cla -sify coronavi[us deliberatiou · -
sources, Reuters (Mar. 11, 2020), https:/lwww.reuters.com/article/us-health-coronavirns-secrecy-exclusive/exclusive-white-house­
told-federal-health-agency-to-cla sify-coro1Javirus-de]jbe.ratio.us- oiu·ce, -idUSKBN20Y2LM. 
24 Bob Ortega et al., How the government delayed coronavirus testing, CNN (Apr. 9, 2020), 
https://www. cm1. corn/2020/04/09/politi cs/coronavirus-testing-cdc-fda-red-tape-invs/index. html. 
25 Eric Lipton et al. He Could Have Seen Whal Was Coming: Behind T1w11p 's Failure on the Vims, N. Y. Times (Apr. I l , 2020), 
https://v.rww.nytimes.com/2020/04/ 11/us/politics/coronavims-tmrnp-response.htm.l. 
26 Remarks by President Trump in Press Briefing, Wbite House (Apr. 14, 2020), https://www.wbitehouse.gov/briefings­
statements/remarks-pre ·ide.nt-tnunp-press-briefing/; Karen De Young, Lena Sun & Emily Rauhala, Americans at World Health 
Organ ization Tra11smit1ed Real-Time lnformatio11 about Coronavirus to Executive Bmnch, Wash. Post (Apr. 19, 2020), 
https://www.washingtonpost.com/world/national-secmity/americans-at-world-health-organization-transmitted-real-time­
infonnation-about-coronavims-to-tmmp-administration/2020/04/ 19/9 51 c77fa-818c-1 I ea-9040-68981 f488eed_story.html. 
27 Helen Davidson, First Covid-19 case lwppe11ed in November, China government records show Tue Guardian (Mar. 13, 2020), 
https ://www. tbeguardj an .com/ world/2020/ma r/ 13/fi rst-covid- I 9-case-happe.□ed-in-november-china-govemmeut-records-sbow­

report. 
28 Wtthan Mu1Jjcipal HeaJtb Conunission 011 the cttrrent situation ofpnewnonia in om city (trans lated_fi-orn Mandarin) , Dec. 31, 
2020, available at http://wjw.wuhan.gov .cn/front/web/showDetail/2019123108989; World Health Organization, Coronavirus 
di ease ( OVID-2019) R&D, available athttps://www.wbo.int/bluepriut/priority-diseases/key-action/novel-coronavims/en/. 
29 World Health Organization, Pneumonia of unknown cause - China (Jan. 5, 2020), https://www.who.int/csr/don/05-januaiy-2020-
puewnouia-of-unkowu-cause-china/en/ . 
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Pentagon's Joint Staff, and the White House.30 According to the New York Times, in early January 2020, the 
State Department's epidemiologist wrote in a report to the director of national intelligence that the virus was 
likely to spread across the globe and become a pandemic, and NCMI independently arrived at the same 
conclusion.3 1 The New York Times also reported that in January 2020, U.S . intelligence agencies regularly 
provided information about the global danger of what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 to Executive Branch 
officials and members of Congress, including in daily briefing papers and digests from the Office of the 
Director of National Intelligence ("ODNI") and the Central Intelligence Agency ("CIA"). 32 According to the 
Washington Post, on January 3, 2020, a 01inese official info1med Robe1t Redfield, Director for the Centers 
for Disease Control and Prevention ("CDC"), of the outbreak of a respiratoty illness in the city of Wuhan. 33 

Redfield relayed the report to Alex Azar, Secretary for Health and Human Services ("HHS"), who reportedly 
relayed it to the White House.34 

Although the Executive Branch has publicly promised transparency, the White House r portedly ordered 
federal health officials to treat top-level coronavirus meetings as classified to keep meeting participation low 
and prevent leaks.35 Classification prevented relevant officials from attending the meetings because they did 
not possess the requisite security clearances.36 

On January 21 , 2020, the CDC publicly confirmed the first U.S. novel coronavirus case, what is now known 
as SARS-CoV-2, in the state of Washington.37 In a memorandum dated January 29, 2020, Peter Navarro, 
President Trump's trade advisor, warned the White House of "a full-blown pandemic, impe1iling the lives of 
millions of Americans."38 Although President Trump said he did not know about the memorandum at that 
time, press reports indicate that the President knew about it and was unhappy that Navarro had put bis warning 
in writing. 39 The same day, the White House announced the formation of "a coronavirus task force," while 
noting that "[tJhe risk of infection for Americans remains low."40 

On Januaty 30 2020, the WHO declared the outbr ak a "Public Health Emergency of International 
Concern."41 Hours after that declaration, President Trump said during a speech on trade at a Michigan 
manufactming plant, that the virus was "going to have a ve1y good ending for us. So that I can assure you."42 

JO Josh Margolin & James Gordon Meek, Jn1ellige11ce report warned of coronavirus crisis as earz,, as November: Sources, ABC 
New. (Apr. 8, 2020), https://abcnews.go.com/Politic iotelligeuce-report-wanied-coro11avirus-crisis-early-novelnber­
sources/storv?id=70031273. 
31 Eric Lipt~n, et al., He Could Have Seen What Was Coming: Behind Trump's Failure on the Virus, N. Y. Ti me (Apr. 11, 2020), 
https://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/ 11/us/politics/coronavirns -tnunp-response.html. 
32 Sba.oe Harris et al., US intelligence reponsfi'om Janua,y and Februa,y warned about a like!v pandemic, Wa b. Po ·t (Mar. 20, 
2020), bttps://www. washiDgtonpo t.corn/national- ecu.rity/u -intelligence-report -from-january-and-febmary-warned-about-a­
likely-pandem.ic/2020/03/20/299d8cda-6ad5- l l ea-b5fl -a5a804 l 58597 _story.html. 
33 Ya meen Abutaleb et al. , The U.S. was beset by denial and dysfimction m,· the coronavirus raged, Wash. Po t (Apr. 4, 2020), 
https://www.washingtonpost.com/national-securiry/2020/04/04/coronavirns-govenuneDt-dysfunction. 
J4 Id. 
35 Aram Roston & Marisa Taylor, Exclusive; White House told federal health agency to classijj, coro11avirus deliberations -
sources, Reuters (Mar. ] I , 2020), https://www.reuter .com/article/u -health-coro11avin.1 -secrecy-exclu ive/exclusive-white-bou e­
told -federal -health-agency-to-classify-coronavirus-deliberations-somces-idUSKBN20Y2LM. 
36 Jd. 
37 Press Release, First Travel-related Case o/2019 Novel Coro11avirus Detected in Un ited States, CeLJters for Di sease ontrol and 
Prevention (Jan. 21, 2020), https://www.cdc.gov/media/releases/2020/p012l -novel -coronavims-travel-case.html. 
38 Maggie Haberman. Trade Adviser Warned White House in Janucuy of Risks ofa Pandemic, N.Y. Times (Apr. 6, 2020). 
https://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/06/us/poJitics/uavarro-wa.mjng-trump-coroLJavims.btml 
39 Elie Lipton et al ., He Could Ha ve Seen What Was Coming: Behind Trump's Failure 011 the Virus, N. Y. Times (Apr. 11 , 2020), 
https:/ /www.nytimes.com/2020/04/ 1 I / us/politics/corona vi.rus-tnun p-response. ht.rn 1. 
40 Statement from the Press SecretCIIJ' Regarding the President's Coronavim s Task Force, White 
House (Jan. 29, 2020) bttps://www. whitehou e.gov/briefings-statements/statement-pres -secretary-regarrung-pre ident -
coronavirus-ta ·k-force/. 
41 Statement 011 the second meeting of the J11ter11atio11al Hea //h Regulations (2005) Eme1ge11cy Committee regarding the outbreak of 
novel coronavirus (201 9-nCo V), World Health Organization (Jan. 30, 2020), https://www.wbo.int/new -room/detail/30-01-2020-
statement-on-t.he-second-meeting-of-the-intemational-health-regu.Jations-(2005)-emergency-committee-regarding-the-outbreak-of­
novel-coronavirus-(2019-ucov). 
42 Caitlin Oprysko, Trump: Coronavi111s will hC/ ve 'a ve,y good ending/or us,' Politico (Jan. 30, 2020), 
https://www.po litico.com/news/2020/0 I /30/tnu11p-close-cooperatio11-chi11a-coro11avirn -10970 I . 
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The WHO began supplying diagnostic test kits to various countiies in January, but the U.S. did not use that 
test, choosing to develop its own.43 Contrary to an April 2018 agreement between the CDC and three of the 
biggest associations involved i11 lab testing, the Executive Branch reportedly prevented non-government 
laboratories from assisting in testing.44 The CDC released a flawed test in February 2020 that took weeks to 
con-ect.45 

The Executive Branch has responded disparately to state governors' requests for drugs, medical supplies and 
equipment, prompting questions about whether politics influenced their allocation across states.46 

From January until early March 2020, President Trump continued to downplay the threat posed by the novel 
coronaviru .47 On January 22, President Trump said he was not wonied about a pandemic, stating, "We have 
it totally under control. . .It's one person coming in from China, and we have i.t under control. Ct 's going to be 
just fine."48 On January 24, Pr sident Trump tweeted that the "United States greatly appreciates [China's] 
effot1s and transparency," and "it will all work out well."49 On February 7, 2020, he tweeted that "as the 
weather sta1is to warm ... the virus hopefoJly becomes weaker, and then gone."50 On February IO, he stated at 
a New Hampshire rally, "looks like, by Ap1il, you know, in theory, when it gets a little wa1m r, it miraculously 
goes away."51 On February 24, he tweeted that "[t]he Coronavirus is very much under control in the USA."52 

On March 7, President Trump publicly stated that "[a]nybody that needs a test, gets a test. They're there. 
They have the tests. And the tests ar beautiful. "53 

On March 13, 2020, however, President Trump declared a national state of emergency to combat the novel 
coronavirus. 54 On March 16, 2020, in response to a question about his repeated claim of everything being 
"under control" he said, "If you're talking about the viru , no, that's not under control for any place in the 
world .. .I was talking about what we're doing is under contrnl, but I'm not talking about the virns."55 On 
March 19, President Trump publicly suggested during his daily coronavirus briefing that the drugs 
Remdesivir, Choloroquine and Hydroxycloroguine were a possible "game changer" for treating COVID-19,56 

despite insufficient evidence of their efficacy.57 A few days later, a man died and his wife was hospitalized 

43 Donald McNeil, Did Federal Oj}1cials Really Question W.H.O. Tests for Coronavirus?, N.Y. Times (Mar. 17, 2020), 
http "://www.nytime .com/2020/03/ 17/healtb/corouaviru ·-te ·t --who.html . 
44 Bob Onega et al., Ho w the govemment delayed coronavirus Jesting , CNN (Apr. 9, 2020), 
http, ://www.cn.u.com/2020/04/09/politics/coronaviru -te ti.ng-cdc-fda-red-tape-i nvs/index.htrnl. 
45 Id. 
46 Toi use Olonl.llll.ipa et al. , Governors plead for medical equipment ji-om federal stockpile plagued by ·hortages and confusion, 
Wash. Post (Mar. 21 , 2020), https: //v.rww.washingtonpost.com/politics/goveruors-plead-for-medical -equipme.ut-from-federal ­
tockpile-plagued-by- -hortage -and-coufusion/2020/03/31/ l 8aadda0-728d- I I ea-87da-77a8 J 36c I a6d_ "!Ory.html. 

47 David Leouhardt. A Complete Lisi ofTmmp 's Alf empts 10 Play Down Corona virus, N. Y. Time (Mar. 15, 2020), 
https ://www.nytimes. corn/2020/03/ 15/ opinion/tnunp-coronavirus.html . 
48 Matthew J. Belvedere, Trump says he lru. ts China's Xi on coronaviru. and the US has ii 'totally under control, NB (Jan. 22, 
2020), https://www.cnbc.com/2020/01/22/trump -on-coronavirns-from-china-we-have-it-total I y-under-control .html. 
49 Donald J. Trump (@rea1DonaldTn1rnp), Twitter (Jan. 24, 2020, 4: 18 PM), 
https://twitter.com/realdonaldtnunp/status/ l 220818115354923009. 
so Donald J. Tnmip (@realD011aldTmmp), Twitter (Feb. 7. 2020, 5:31 AM:), 
https ://twitter.com/realdonaldtnunp/status/ 1225 7287 564 56808448. 
51 David Leonhardt, A Complete list of Ttwnp 's Altempts lo Play Down Coronavims, N.Y. Times (Mar. 15, 2020), 
bttps://www. nyti mes. com/2020/03/ l 5/opi nion/tmmp-coronavi ms.html. 
52 Donald J. Tnunp (@rea!DonaJdTmmp), Twitter (Feb. 24, 2020, 4:42 PM), 
https://twitter.com/ rea!DonaldTm.mp/status/ 1232058127740174339. 
53 Remarks by President Trump Aft.er Tour of the Cenlers.forDisease Control and Prevention, Atlanta. GA, White Hou ·e (Mar. 7 
2020), https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefings-statements/remarks-president-tnunp-tour-centers-disease-control-prevention-atlanta­
ga/. 
54 Adam Edelman, Peter Alexander & Kristen Welke, Trump declares 11atio11al emergency to combat coronavirus. authorizes 
waiving of laws and regulations , NBC News (Mar. 13, 2020), https://www.nbcnew .com/politics/donald-tnunp/tnunp-hold-friday­
aftemoon-press-conference-coronavirus-11 I J 5 7981 . 
55 Aaron Blake, The incr<Uts ingly damning limeline ofTrwnp 's coro11avi111s response, Wash. Post (Apr. 8, 2020), 
https://www.washingtonpost.com/politics/2020/04/07/timeline-tnunps-coronav ims-response-is-increasingly-danming/. 
56 Remarks by Preside111 Trump, Vice President Pence, and Members of the Corona virus Task Force in Press Briefing, White House 
(Mar. 19 2020), https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefiugs- tatements/remarks-pre ident-tnunp-vice-president-pence-members­
coronavims-task-force-press-briefing-6/. 
57 Charles Ornstein, What We Know - and Don 'i Know - About Possible Coro11avirus Treatments Promoted by Trump, Politico 
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after the couple ingested a fonn of Chloroquine.58 

On April 3, 2020, President Trump reversed pr vious guidance on masks while announcing that people in the 
U.S . should wear face cove1ings in public to slow the spread of what is now known as SARS-CoV-2. 59 On 
April J 4, contrary to his previous praise for China's "effotis and transparency,"60 President Trump announced 
that he had instructed the Executive Branch to suspend funding to the WHO because it "willingly took China's 
assurances to fac value" and "pushed China's misinfonnation."61 

On April 16, 2020, after the White louse released nonbinding guidelines recommending how and when states 
and localities should begin to reopen pai1s of the economy, President Trump stated that governors could 
reopen businesses by May 1 or earlier if they believed it prudent.62 On April 22, 2020, Dr. Rick Bright, former 
director of HHS Biomedical Advanced Research and Development Authority and deputy assistant secretary 
for preparedness and response, said that he was dismissed from his positions and transferred to the National 
Institutes of Health after he pr ssed for rigorous vetting of Hydroxychloroquine, the drng embraced by 
President Trump for treating the virus.63 

On April 23 , 2020, President Trump suggested at a White House briefing that an "injection inside" the human 
body with a disinfectant could help combat COVID-19. 64 The same day, the Environmental Protection 
Ag ncy issued a press release warning against ingesting disinfectants or applyi11g them on the human body.65 

The day after the President suggested that a disinfectant injection could counter the virus, New York City's 
poison control center reported receiving a higher-than-normal number of calls, many of them relating to 
exposure to disinfectants.66 

C. APPLICATION FOR EXPEDITED PROCESSING 

The Justice Initiative requests expedited processing pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(E), as the information 
and records requested are urgently ne ded to inform the public about actual or alleged government activity, 
see 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(E)(v)(II), and as explained below, the Justice Initiative is an organization "primarily 
engaged in disseminating inforn1ation . .. to inf01m the public concerning" that activity. 5 U.S.C. § 
552(a)( 6)(E)(v)(I-1I). 1n addition, the Justice Initiative requests expedition on the grounds that failw-e to obtain 
requested records on an expedited basis could reasonably be expected to pose an imminent threat to the life 

(Mar. 29, 2020), https://www.propubJica.org/article/what-we-know-and-dont-know-about-po sib le-coronavi.rus-treatmeuts­
promoted-by-tmmp; see also M:icbael Crowley et al. , Ignoring Expert Opinion, Trump Again Promotes Use o/Hydroxychloroquine, 
NY. Times (Apr. 5, 2020), http ·://www.nytime ·.coni/2020/04/05/us/politic · tnunp-bydroxycWoroquine-coronaviru ··.btmJ ; Peter 
Baker et al., Trump's Aggressive Advocacy of.Malaria Drug for Treaiing Coronavirus Di1•ides Afedical Community, N. Y. Time 
(Apr. 6, 2020), https ://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/06/us/politics/cornnavims-trump-malaria-dmg.ht:J.nl. 
58 Scott Netm1ao, Man Dies, Woman Ho~pitalizcd After Ta/ring Form Of hloroquine To Prevent COVID-19, NPR (Mar. 24, 2020), 
https:/ /www.npr.org/sections/coronavirns-live-u pdates/2020/03/24/8205 l 2 l 07 /man-dies-woman-hospitalized-after-taking-form-of­
cWoroqui.ue-to-prevent-covid-19 
59 Lena Sun & Josh Dawsey, New face mask guidance comes after battle between White House and CDC, Wash. Post (Apr. 4, 
2019), http ://www. wa bjngtoupo t.coui.lhealtb/2020/04/03/wh ite-bouse-cdc-turf-battle-over-gu.idance-broad-u e-face-masks-figbt­
coronavirns/. 
60 Donald J. Trnmp (@rea!DonaldTnunp), Twitter (Jan. 24, 2020, 4:18 PM), 
bttps://twitter.com/realdonaldtrump/status/ 12208181 15 354923009. 
61 Remarks by President Trump in Press Briefing , White House (Apr. 14, 2020), https://www.whitehou.se.gov/briefings­
statemeuts/remarks-president-trnmp-press-b.riefing/. 
62 Peter Baker & Michael D. Shear, Trump Says States Ca11 Start Reope11i11g While Acla1owledging the Decision ls Theirs, N. Y. 
Times (Apr. 16, 2020), https://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/16/us/pojjtics/coronavirns-tn1mp-gujdeli.ues.h tml. 
63 A doctor says he was removed ji-om hisfedeml post aier pressing for rigorous vetting of treatments embraced by Trump N.Y. 
Times (Apr. 22, 2020), https://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/22/us/coronavin1s-live-cover-age.ht111l#link-652aa9c3 . 
64 Remarks by President Trump, Vice President Pence, and Members oftl1e Coro11a11irns Task Force i11 Press Briefing, /¥11ite House 
(Apr. 23 , 2020), http ://www.whitehouse.gov/briefiog ·-statements/remark ·-pre ·ident-tnunp-vice-president-pence-members­
coronavirns-task-force-press-briefing -31/. 
65 EPA provides critical i11formatio11 to the America11 public about safe disinfectant use (Apr. 23, 2020), 
bttps://www.epa.gov/newsreleases/epa-provides-critical-information-americarr-public-about-safe-disinfectant-use . 
66 Jason Slotkin , NYC Poison Control Sees Uptick Jn Calls After Trump's Disi11fectant Comme11ts , NPR (Apr. 25, 2020) 
https ://www.npr.org/sections/coronavims-live-updates/2020/04/25/84 50 I 5236/nyc-poi son-cont:J.·ol -sees-u ptick-iu-ca IJs-after­
trnmps-disi nfectaut-conunents. 
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or physical safety of an individual. See 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(E)(v)(I) . 

The Executive Branch's efforts to counter SARS-Co V-2 are literally a matter of life and death for the 
American public. The virus is quickly spreading, killing thousands of people daily in the United States. 67 As 
of April 27, 2020, there were nearly one million confinned cases of COVID-19 and over 55,000 individuals 
had died from the virus in the United States.68 The eventual national death toll will be in the tens to hundreds 
of thousands, according to estimates by health expe1is and the govenunent. 69 

The timing and content of the Executive Branch's response to the novel coronavirus, incl uding what it lo1ew 
or should have known about the virus and when, what measures it ha taken to stem the spread, and how it is 
has engaged with Congress, state governors, WHO and other relevant bodies, is the subject of ongoing and 
intense public debate.70 Executive Branch officials have issued conflicting statements about the threat of th 
virus, th availability of testing, the duration of the risk of transmission, and the efficacy of masks and 
particular medications and treatment for the disease.71 As such , there is significant uncertainty about how to 
interpret government statements and actions relevant for detennining how individuals in the U.S. should 
protect themselves from the coronavirus. 72 Significantly, after President Trump publicly suggested that 
Chloroquine was a possible "game changer," a man died and his wife was hospita lized after the couple 
ingested a form of the chemical. 73 The day after the President suggested that a disinfectant injection could 

67 ee e.g., Coro11avirus in the US: Latest Map and Case Count, N.Y. Times, 
https://www.nytimes.com/interactive/2020/us/coro11avims-us-cases.hunl. 
68 See e.g., OVID- 19 Dashboard by the euter for System· Science aud Engineering ( SSE) at John Hopkin Univecity US 
Map , http ://coronavirus.jhu.edu/map.htrnl (la t acce ed Apr. 27, 2020 at 3:41 pm (EST)). 
69 See e.g., Peter Sullivan, Fauci: 'Looks like' US deaths will be lower than original projection , Tue Hill (Apr. 8, 2020), 
http ://thehill .com/homenews/corouavin1s-repo1t/49 J 779-fauci-looks-J ike-u -death -will-be-lower-than-origiual-projectioo. 
70 See, Section B, supra; see also Yasmeen Abutaleb et al. , The US. was beset by denial and dysfunction as the coronavirus raged, 
Wa ·h. Post (Apr. 4, 2020), https://www.washiugtonpost.com/national- ·ecuriry/2020/04/04/coronavirn -government-dysfunction; 
Josh Margolin & James Gordon Meek, Intelligence report warned of coronavirus crisis as ear(J' as November: Sources, ABC News 
(Apr. 8, 2020), http ://abcuew .go.com/ Po litics/i1Jtelligeuce-report-warned-coronavirus-crisi -early-november­
sources/sto1y?id=70031273; Eric Lipton, et al. , He Could Have Seen Whal Was Coming: Behind Trump's Failure on the Virus , 
N.Y. Times (Apr. 11, 2020), https://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/l l /us/politics/coronavirns -trnmp-response.hUnl; Steve Benen, 
White Hou ·e's ca ·e again ·t World Health 01ganizatio11 crumbles, MSNB (Apr. 20, 2020), https://www.111 ·ubc.contlrachel­
maddow-show/whi te-house-s-case-against-world-health-orgauization-cnunbles-nl 187776; Michael C. Bender & Rebecca Ballhaus 
Tmmp 's Coronmfrus Focus Shift. to Reopening Economy, Defending Hi. Response, WSJ (Apr. 17, 2020), 
https://www. wsj .contlarticlesltnunp-assails-critics-of-his-coronavirus-response-as-he-focuses-on-reopening-u-s-11587149080. For 
ongoing coverage by rnajor media outlets updated in real-ti.rne, see. e.g., oronavin 1s, Wa h. Po t, 
https://www.washingtonpost.com/coronavirns/; The Coro11avirns Outbreak, N.Y. Times, https://www.nytimes.com/news­
eveot/coronavirns; oronaviru ·, Fox New , bttps://www.foxnew .com/category/healtb/iofectiou ·-di ·ea e/corouavirus. 
71 See Section B, supra; see also The Executive Branch keeps contradicting itself on coronavirus, Wash. Po t (Mar. 9, 2020), 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=QiJ I tAdCsTo; Jesse Naranjo & Rachel Roubein, Trump vs. Pence.- The administration 
contradicts itself on coronavirus, Politico (Mar. 13, 2020), http ://www.poJitico.com/new 2020/03/13/tnunp-v -pence­
coronavirns-contradictions-127636; Linda Qiu, BiJI Marsh & Jon Huang, The President vs. 1he Experts; How Trump Played Down 
the Coronavirus, N.Y. Time· (Mar. 18, 2020), http ://www.nytimes.com/interacti ve/2020/03/ 18/us/trump-coronavirn .. _ tatemeots­
t:imeline.htrn.1 ; Brad Brooks, Like the flu? Trump's corona virus messaging confuses public, pandemic researchers say, Reuters (Mar. 
13, 2020), https: //www .renters.com/aitic le/u -heal th-coronavirus-mixed-message like-the-flu-trump -coronavirus-messaging­
confuses-pu blic-pandem.ic-researchers-say-idUSKBN2102GY. 
72 See e.g., David Leonhardt, A Complete List of Trump's Al/empts to Play Down Corona vims. N. Y. Times (Mar. 15. 2020), 
bttps://www.nytimes.contl2020/03/l5/opiuion/tmmp-coronavirus.html; Josh Margoli □ & James Gordon Meek, Intelligence report 
warned of coronavirus crisis as early as November: Sources, ABC News (Apr. 8, 2020), 
https ://abcnews. go.com/Politi cs/inte l ligence-report-warned -coronavims-c.ri sis-earl y-november-sources/sto.ry?id=7003 1273; Caitli11 
Oprysko, Tnunp says he didn't know of. still hasn 'I seen Naval'l'o memos on possible pandemic, Politico (Apr. 7, 2020), 
https ://www.politico.com/news/2020/04/07/tnunp-peter-navarro-coronavirns-memos-174237; Yasmeen Abutaleb et al. , Th e U.S. 
was beset by denial and dysfunction as the coronavirus raged , Wash. Post (Apr. 4, 2020), 
https://www.washingtonpost.com/nationaJ-security/2020/04/04/coronavims-goverrunent-dysfunct:ion; Rachana Pradhan & Christina 
Jewett 'Red Dawn Breaking Bad': Officials Warned About Safety Gear Shortfall Early On, Emails Show Kaiser Heal th News 
(Mar. 28, 2020), bttps://khu.orglnews/red-dawn-breakiug-bad-officials-wamed-about-safety-gear- ·hortfal l-early-on-emails-show/; 
Christopher Carbone, America can't reopen wi1how massive increase in coronavirus tests, experts warn, Fox News (Apr. 20, 2020), 
https://www.fox11ews.com/science/america-cant-reope1J-without-more-coronaviru -tests-experts-warn; Beaches in Jacksonvi.lle, 
Florida reopen with restrictions, Fox News (Apr. 20, 2020), https: //video.foxnews.com./v/6 I 5087926600 I #sp=show-clips; Tamara 
Keith & GeoffBnunfiel, Examining Trump's COVJD-19 Rhetoric Against Factual Evidence NPR (Apr. 17, 2020) 
https ://www.npr.org/2020/04./17/836719931 /examini ng-tnunps-covid-19-rhetoric-against-factual -evidence. 
73 Scott Neuman, Man Dies, Woman Hospitalized Afier Talcing Form Of Chloroquine To Prevent COVID-19, NPR (Mar . 24, 2020), 
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counter the virus, New York City's poison control center reported receiving a higher-than-nmmal number of 
calls, many of them relating to exposure to disinfectants.74 

h1 this context, failure to obtain the requested records on an expedited basis could reasonably be expected to 
pose an imminent threat to the life or physical safety of individuals in the United States. The information 
requested here is urgently needed for individuals in the United States to assess the government's response to 
the virns and to make informed decisions about life and physical safety. 

Frnthennore, the Justice Initiative is "primarily engaged in disseminating infom1ation" \vithin the meaning 
of the FOJA. 75 Am. Civil Liberties Union v. Dep 'tof Ju. tice, 321 F. Supp. 2d 24, 29 n.5 (D.D.C. 2004) (finding 
that a non-profit, public interest group that "gathers info1mation of potential interest to a segment of the public, 
uses its editorial ski lls to turn the raw material into a distinct work, and distributes that work to an audience" 
is "p1ima1ily engaged in disseminating information" within the meaning of the statute and regulations); cf 
Elec. Privacy Info. Ctr. v. U.S. Dep't of Def, 241 F. Supp. 2d 5, 11 -12 (D.D.C. 2003) (finding that the 
Electronic Privacy Information Center was a representative of the news media based on its publication of 
seven books about national and international policies relating to privacy and civil tights); see also Nat'! Sec. 
Archive v. U.S. Dep't of Def , 880 F.2d 1381, 1386 (D.C. Cir. 1989) (National Security Archive deemed a 
representative of the news media after publishing one book and indicating its intention to publish a set of 
documents on national and international politics and nuclear policy). 

The Justice Initiative is an operating public interest law center dedicated to upholding human rights and the 
rule oflaw through litigation, advocacy, research, and technical assistance, with offices in New York, London, 
and Berlin. It is prut of the Open Society Institute ("OSI"), a tax-exempt, non-partisan, not-for-profit 
organization, headquaitered in New York City. OSI believes that solutions to national, regional, and global 
challenges require the free exchange of ideas and thought, and works to build vibrant and inclusive societies, 
grounded in respect for human rights and the rule of law, whose govemments are accountable and open to 
the participation of all peopl . In support of their shared missi011, OSI and the Justice Initiative share 
information with the public free of charge, through their websites, newsletters, and other publications to 
promote public understanding and robust debate. Dissem.inating information is among the Justice Initiative's 
core activities. To accomplish its goals, the Justice Initiative maintains a website, www.justiceinitiative.org, 
through which it disseminates repmts, b1iefing pap rs, fact sheets and other publications relating to its mission 
(https://www.justiceinitiative.org/publications). It also directly distributes hard copies of publications and 
disseminates infonnation through quatterly email newsletters, blogs 
(wW\v.opensocietyfoundations.org/voices), Twitter (W\vw. twitter.com/OSF Justice) and Facebook 
( www .facebook.com/OpenSocietyF oundations) . 

We affirm that info1mation and statements concerning the need for expedited processing are true and correct 
to the best of our knowledge and belief. 

D. APPLICAUON FOR FEE WAIVER 

We request a waiver of search, review and duplication fee on the grounds that disclo ure of the requested 
information " is ·in the public interest because it is likely to contribute significantly to public understanding of 
the operations or activities of the govenunent and is not primarily in the commercial interest of the requester." 
5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(iii). 

As set forth in Section C above, the information and record at issue will contribute significantly to the public 
understanding of the timing and content of the government's response to COVID-19. Moreover, the Justice 
Initiative, a non-profit entity, does not seek di closure of these records for commercial gain and intends to 

https://www.npr.org/sections/ coronavirns-live-u pdates/2020/03/24/8205 l 21 07 /man-dies-woman-hospitalized-after-taking-form-of­
ch loroquine-to-prevent-covid-19 
74 Jason Slotkin, NYC Poison Co111rol Sees Up1ick !11 Calls Ajier Trump's Disinfec1ant Comme111s, NPR (Apr. 25, 2020), 
https:/ /www.npr.org/sections/ corouavi rus-li ve-updates/2020/04/25/845015236/Dyc-poi s011-coDtro 1-sees-u ptick-in-ca 11s-after­
tnunps-d isinfectant-comments. 
75 See 5 U.S. . § 552(a)(6)(E)(v)(Il). 
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disseminate the information disclosed from this request to the public at no cost. 

In addition, for the same reasons that render it "ptimarily engaged in disseminating information," see Section 
C supra, the Justice Initiative is also a "representative of the news media" within the meaning of the FOIA. 
As such, it is entitled to a fee waiver. See 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(A)(ii)(II); see also Judicial Watch, Inc. v. 
Rossotti, 326 F.3d 1309, 1312 (D.C. Cir. 2003) (recognizing Congress's intent that FOIA's fee waiver 
provision is to be "liberally construed in favor of waivers for noncommercial requesters."). 

* * * * * 
Pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(E)(ii)(I) and 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(A)(i), respectively, we look forward to 
your reply to the request for expedited processing within ten calendar days, and to the request for disclosure 
within twenty days. 

We request that responsive records be provided electronically in their native file format, if possible. See 5 
U.S.C. § 552(a)(3)(B). Alternatively, we request that the records be provided electronically in a text­
searchable, static-image format (PDF), in the best image quality in the agency's possession, and that the 
records be provided in separate, Bates-stamped files. 

If this request is denied in whole or part, please justify all withholdings by reference to specific exemptions 
and statutes, as applicable. For each withholding please also explain why your agency "reasonably foresees 
that disclosure would harm an interest protected by an exemption" or why "disclosure is prohibited by law[.]" 
5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(8)(A)(i). We seek the release of all segregable portions of otherwise exempt material, see 
5 U.S.C. § 552(b ). We also reserve the right to appeal any decision in relation to this Request. 

Thank you for your prompt attention to this Request. Please send all records and correspondence by email 
to Amrit Singh at amrit.singh@opensocietyfoundations.org. 

Sincerely, 

~--- ri ' 
~ :::-oi 
A1mit Singh 
Natasha Ampriester 
James A. Goldston 
Open Society Justice Initiative 
224 West 57th Street 
New York, New York 10019 
T: (212) 548 0600 
Fax: (212) 548 4662 
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OPEN SOCIETY 
JUSTICE INITIATIVE 

Open Society 
Justice Initiative 
224 West 57th Street 
New York, NY 10019. USA 

p. -+1 212-548-0600 
t . +-1 212-548-4608 

James A. Goldston 
Executive Director 

Via email 

National Institutes of Health 
Gorka Garcia-Malene 
Building 31 Room 5B35 
9000 Rockville Pike 
Bethesda, MD 20892 
Email : nihfoia@mail.nih.gov 

justiceinitiative.org 

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
tbe-coronavims-disease-( covid-20 19)-aud-the-vims-that-causes-it. 
2 For the purpose of this request, the tenn "records" includes, but is not limited to, any and all 
agendas, agreements; analyses; calendars; correspondence; data; databases; clirec6ves; documents; 
e-mai ls and e-mail attachments, i.ncludiug sent through personal emai.1 accolluts (e.g. , Gmail); 
reports; mies; schedules; studies; tables of contents and contents of binders; talking points; 
teclmica] specificatioDs; training materials; examination ; faxes; files; f,'11idance; guidelines; 
evalt,atiou·; illstructions; letters; mallifosts; manuals; memoranda; notes; orders; prepared 
documentation for meetings, caJls, teleconferences, or other discussions responsive to our request; 
policies; procedllres; protocols; text messages and messages sent or received through otber 
messaging applications (e.g. , WhatsApp, iMessage, Signal); voicemai]s; and any other materials. 
In tlJe event that such records once existed but have oow been destroyed please disclose any 
records that are i11tegraUy related to, summarize, or are interchangeable with said records. Press 
clippings and news articles that are tmaccompanied by any coinmeDtary need not be produced. 
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

Records including and/or discussing communications (from January l, 2020 to February 29, 2020) 
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
AB News (Apr. 8, 2020), bttps://abcnew ·.go.conJ/Politics/ioteJligence-report-warued-coronaviru ·-c1i si ·-early-novernber­
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
Times (Apr. 22, 2020), https://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/22/us/coronavirus-first -uuited-states-death.html. 
11 Toi use Olonmni pa et al., Governors plead for medical equipment fi'om federal stockpile plagued by shorwges and co11.fusion, 
Wash. Post (Mar. 21 , 2020). https://www.washingtonpost.com/politics/governors-plead-for-medical -equipment-from-federa l­
stockpi.le-plagued-by-shortages-and-coufu ·ion/2020/03/31 / 18aadda0-728d-1 I ea-87 da-77a8136c J a6d_ tory.btml. 
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
conclusion.3 1 The New York Times also reported that in January 2020, U.S. intelligence agencies regularly 
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
New. (Apr. 8, 2020), https://abcnews.go.com/ Politic iotelligeuce-report-wanied-coro11avirus-crisis-early-novelnber­
sources/storv?id=70031273. 
31 Eric Lipt~n, et al. , He Could Have Seen What Was Coming: Behind Trump's Failure on the Virus, N. Y. Time (Apr. 11, 2020), 
https://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/ 11/us/politics/coronavirns-tnunp-response.html. 
32 Sba.oe Harris et al., US intelligence reponsfi'om Janua,y and Februa,y warned about a like!v pandemic, Wa b. Po ·t (Mar. 20, 
2020), bttps://www. washiDgtonpo t.corn/ national- ecu.rity/u -intelligence-report -from-january-and-febmary-warned-about-a­
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
35 Aram Roston & Marisa Taylor, Exclusive; White House to ld federal health agency to classijj, coro11avirus deliberations -
sources, Reuters (Mar. ] I , 2020), https://www.reuter .com/article/u -health-coro11avin.1 -secrecy-exclu ive/exclusive-white-bou e­
told -federal -health-agency-to-classify-coronavirus-deliberations-somces-idUSKBN20Y2LM. 
36 Jd. 
37 Press Release, First Travel-related Case o/2019 Novel Coro11avirus Detected in United States, CeLJters for Di sease ontrol and 
Prevention (Jan. 21, 2020), https: //www.cdc.gov/media/releases/2020/p012l -novel -coronavims-travel-case.html. 
38 Maggie Haberman. Trade Adviser Warned White House in Janucuy of Risks ofa Pandemic, N.Y. Times (Apr. 6, 2020). 
https://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/06/us/poJitics/uavarro-wa.mjng-trump-coroLJavims.btml. 
39 Elie Lipton et al ., He Could Ha ve Seen What Was Coming: Behind Trump's Failure 011 the Vims, N. Y. Times (Apr. 11 , 2020), 
https:/ /www.nytimes.com/2020/04/ 1 I / us/politics/corona vi.rus-tnun p-response. ht.rn 1. 
40 Statement from the Press SecretCIIJ' Regarding the President 's Coronavims Task Force, White 
House (Jan. 29, 2020) bttps://www. whitehou e.gov/briefings-statements/statement-pres -secretary-regarrung-pre ident -
coronavirus-ta ·k-force/. 
41 Statement 011 the second meeting of the J11ter11atio11al Hea //h Regulations (2005) Eme1ge11cy Committee regarding the outbreak of 
novel coronavirus (2019-nCo V), World Health Organization (Jan. 30, 2020), https://www.wbo.int/new -room/detai l/30-01-2020-
statement-on-t.he-second-meeting-of-the-intemational-health-regu.Jations-(2005)-emergency-committee-regarding-the-outbreak-of­
novel-coronavirus-(2019-ucov). 
42 Caitlin Oprysko, Trump: Coronavi111s will hC/ ve 'a ve,y good ending/or us,' Politico (Jan. 30, 2020), 
https://www.politico.com/news/2020/0 I /30/tnu11p-close-cooperatio11-chi11a-coro11avirn -10970 I . 
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
it totally under control. . .It's one person coming in from China, and we have i.t under control. Ct's going to be 
just fine."48 On January 24, Pr sident Trump tweeted that the "United States greatly appreciates [China's] 
effot1s and transparency," and "it will all work out well."49 On February 7, 2020, he tweeted that "as the 
weather sta1is to warm . .. the virus hopefoJly becomes weaker, and then gone."50 On February IO, he stated at 
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
world .. .I was talking about what we're doing is under contrn l, but I'm not talking about the virns."55 On 
March 19, President Trump publicly suggested during his daily coronavirus briefing that the drugs 
Remdesivir, Choloroqu ine and Hydroxycloroguine were a possible "game changer" for treating COVID-19,56 

despite insufficient evidence of their efficacy.57 A few days later, a man died and his wife was hospitalized 

43 Donald McNeil, Did Federal Oj}1cials Really Question W.H.O. Tests for Coronavirus?, N.Y. Times (Mar. 17, 2020), 
http "://www.nytime .com/2020/03/17/healtb/corouaviru ·-te ·t --who.html. 
44 Bob Onega et al., Ho w the govemment delayed coronavirus Jesting , CNN (Apr. 9, 2020), 
http, ://www.cn.u.com/2020/04/09/politics/coronavi m -te ti.ng-cdc-fda-red-tape-i nvs/index.htrnl. 
45 Id. 
46 Toi use Olonl.llll.ipa et al. , Governors plead for medical equipment ji-om federal stockpile plagued by ·hortages and confusion, 
Wash. Post (Mar. 21 , 2020), https: //v.rww.washingtonpost.com/politics/governors-plead-for-medical -equipme.ut-from-federal ­
tockpile-plagued-by- -hortage -and-coufusion/2020/03/31/ l 8aadda0-728d- I I ea-87da-77a8 J 36c I a6d_ "!Ory.html. 

47 David Leouhardt. A Complete Lisi ofTmmp 's Alf empts 10 Play Down Corona virus, N. Y. Time (Mar. 15, 2020), 
https ://www.nytimes. corn/2020/03/ 15/ opiniou/tnunp-coronavirus.html . 
48 Matthew J. Belvedere, Trump says he lru. ts China 's Xi on coronaviru. and the US has it 'totally under con1rol, NB (Jan. 22, 
2020), https://www.cnbc.com/2020/01/22/trump -on-coronavirns-from-china-we-have-it-total I y-under-control .html. 
49 Donald J. Trump (@rea1DonaldTn1rnp), Twitter (Jan. 24, 2020, 4: 18 PM), 
https://twitter.com/realdonaldtnunp/status/ l 220818115354923009. 
so Donald J. Tnmip (@realD011aldTmmp), Twitter (Feb.7.2020, 5:31 AM), 
https ://twitter.com/realdonaldtnunp/status/ 1225 7287 564 56808448. 
51 David Leonhardt, A Complete list of Ttwnp 's Altempts lo Play Down Coronavims, N.Y. Times (Mar. 15, 2020), 
bttps://www. nyti mes. com/2020/03/ l 5/opi niou/tmmp-coronavi ms.html. 
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
waiving of laws and regulations , NBC News (Mar. 13, 2020), https://www.nbcnew .com/po litics/do11ald-tnu11p/tnunp-hold-friday­
aftemoo11-press-conference-coronavirus-n I J 5 798 1 . 
55 Aaron Blake, The incre<"tsingly damning timeline ofTrwnp 's coro11avi111s response, Wash. Post (Apr. 8, 2020), 
https://www.washingtonpost.com/politics/2020/04/07/timeline-tnunps-coronavims-response-is-increasingly-danming/. 
56 Remarks by Preside111 Trump, Vice President Pence, and Members of the Corona virus Task Force in Press Briefing, White House 
(Mar. 19 2020), https://www.whitebouse.gov/briefiugs- tatements/remarks-pre ident-tnunp-vice-president-pence-members­
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
(Apr. 6, 2020), https://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/06/us/politics/coronavims-trump-malaria-dmg.ht:J.nl. 
58 Scott Netm1ao, Man Dies, Woman Ho~pitalizcd After Ta/ring Form Of hloroquine To Prevent COVID-19, NPR (Mar. 24, 2020), 
https:/ /www.npr.org/sections/ coronavims-live-u pdates/2020/03/24/8205 l 2 l 07 /man-dies-woman-hospitalized-after-taking-form-of­
cWoroqui.ue-to-prevent-covid-19 
59 Lena Sun & Josh Dawsey, New face mask guidance comes after battle between White House and CDC, Wash. Post (Apr. 4, 
2019), https://www. wa bjngtoupo t.coui.lhealtb/2020/04/03/wh ite-bouse-cdc-turf-battle-over-gu.idance-broad-u e-face-masks-figbt­
coronavirns/. 
60 Donald J. Tmmp (@rea!DonaldTnunp), Twitter (Jan. 24, 2020, 4:18 PM), 
bttps://twitter.com/realdonaldtrump/status/ 12208181 15 354923009. 
61 Remarks by President Trump in Press Briefing, White House (Apr. 14, 2020), https://www.whitehou.se.gov/briefings­
statemeuts/remarks-president-trnmp-press-b.riefing/. 
62 Peter Baker & Michael D. Shear, Trump Says States Ca11 Start Reope11 i11g While Acla1owledging the Decision ls Theirs, N. Y. 
Times (Apr. 16, 2020), https://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/16/us/pojjtics/coronavirns-tmmp-gujdeli.ues.html. 
63 A doctor says he was removed ji-om hisfedeml post after pressing for rigorous vetting of treatments embraced by Trump N.Y. 
Times (Apr. 22, 2020), https://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/22/us/coronavin1s-1ive-cover-age.ht111l#link-65 2aa9c3. 
64 Remarks by President Trump, Vice President Pence, and Members oftl1e Coro11a11irns Task Force i11 Press Briefing, /¥11ite House 
(Apr. 23 , 2020), http ://www.whitehouse.gov/briefiog ·-statemeuts/remark ·-pre ·ident-tnunp-vice-president-pence-members­
coronavirns-task-force-press-briefing-31/. 
65 EPA provides critical i11formatio11 to the America11 public about safe disinfectant use (Apr. 23, 2020), 
bttps://www.epa.gov/newsreleases/epa-provides-critical-information-americarr-public-about-safe-disinfectant-use . 
66 Jason Slotkin , NYC Poison Control Sees Uptick Jn Calls After Trump's Disi11fectant Comme11ts, NPR (Apr. 25, 2020) 
https://www.npr.org/sections/ coronavims-live-updates/2020/04/25/84 50 I 5236/nyc-poi son-cont:J.·ol -sees-u ptick-iu-ca IJs-after­
trnmps-disi nfectaut-conunents. 
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or physical safety of an individual. See 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(6)(E)(v)(I). 

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

The timing and content of the Executive Branch's response to the novel coronavirus, including what it lo1ew 
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
particular medications and treatment for the disease.71 As such, there is significant uncertainty about how to 
interpret government statements and actions relevant for detennining how individuals in the U.S. should 
protect themselves from the coronavirus. 72 Significantly, after President Trump publicly suggested that 
Chloroq uine was a possible "game changer," a man died and his wife was hospitalized after the couple 
ingested a form of the chemical. 73 The day after the President suggested that a disinfectant injection could 

67 ee e.g., Coro11avirus in the US: Latest Map and Case Count, N.Y. Times, 
https://www.nytimes.com/interactive/2020/us/coro11avims-us-cases.hunl. 
68 See e.g., OVID- 19 Dashboard by the euter for System· Science and Engineering ( SSE) at John Hopkin Univecity US 
Map , http ://coronavirus.jhu.edu/map.htrnl (la t acce ed Apr. 27, 2020 at 3:41 pm (EST)) . 
69 See e.g., Peter Sullivan, Fauci: 'Looks like' US deaths will be lower than original projection , Tue Hill (Apr. 8, 2020), 
http ://thehill .com/homenews/corouavin1s-repo1t/49 J 779-fauci-looks-J ike-u -death -will-be-lower-tban-origiual-projectioo. 
70 See, Section B, supra; see also Yasmeen Abutaleb et al. , The US. was beset by denial and dysfunction as the coronavirus raged, 
Wa ·h. Post (Apr. 4, 2020), https://www.washiugtonpost.com/national- ·ecuriry/2020/04/04/coronavirn -government-dysfunction; 
Josh Margolin & James Gordon Meek, Intelligence report warned of coronavirus crisis as ear(J' as November: Sources, ABC News 
(Apr. 8, 2020), http ://abcuew .go.com/ Politics/i1Jtelligeuce-report-warned-coronavirus-crisi -early-november­
sources/sto1y?id=70031273; Eric Lipton, et al. , He Could Have Seen Whal Was Coming: Behind Trump's Failure on the Virus , 
N.Y. Times (Apr. 11, 2020), https://www.nytimes.com/2020/04/l l /us/poli tics/coronavirns -trnmp-response.hUnl; Steve Benen, 
White Hou ·e's ca ·e again ·t World Health 01ganizatio11 crumbles, MSNB (Apr. 20, 2020), https://www.111 ·nbc.contlrachel­
maddow-show/white-house-s-case-against-world -health-orgauization-cnunbles-nl 187776; Michael C. Bender & Rebecca Ballhaus 
Tmmp 's Coronmfrus Focus Shift. to Reopening Economy, Defending Hi. Response, WSJ (Apr. 17, 2020), 
https://www. wsj .contlarticles/tnunp-assails-critics-of-his-coronavirus-response-as-he-focuses-on-reopening-u-s-11587149080. For 
ongoing coverage by 111ajor media outlets updated in real-ti.rne, see. e.g., oronavin1s, Wa h. Po t, 
https://www.washingto11post.com/coro11avirns/; The Coro11avirns Outbreak, N.Y. Times, https://www.uytimes.com/news­
eveot/coronavirns; oronaviru ·, Fox New , bttps://www.foxnew .com/category/healtb/iofectiou ·-di ·ea e/corouavirus. 
71 See Section B, supra; see also The Executive Branch keeps contradicting itself on coronavirus , Wash. Po t (Mar. 9, 2020), 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=QiJ I tAdCsTo; Jesse Naranjo & Rachel Roubein, Trump vs. Pence.- The administration 
contradicts itself on coronavirus, Politico (Mar. I 3, 2020), http ://www.politico.com/new 2020/03/13/tnunp-v -pence­
coronavirns-contradictions-127636; Linda Qiu, BiJI Marsh & Jon Huang, The President vs. 1he Experts; How Trump Played Down 
the Coronavirus, N.Y. Time· (Mar. 18, 2020), http ://www.nytimes.com/interactive/2020/03/ I 8/us/trump-coronavirn .. _ tatemeots­
t:imeline.htrn.1; Brad Brooks, Like the flu? Trump's corona virus messaging confuses public, pandemic researchers say, Reuters (Mar. 
13, 2020), https: //www .renters.com/aitic le/u -heal th-coronavirus-mixed-message like-the-flu-trump -coronavirus-messaging­
confuses-pu blic-pandem.ic-researchers-say-idUSKBN2102GY. 
72 See e.g., David Leonhardt, A Complete List of Trump's Al/empts to Play Down Corona vims. N. Y. Times (Mar. 15. 2020), 
bttps://www.nytimes.contl2020/03/l5/opiuion/tmmp-coronavirus.btml; Josh Margoli □ & James Gordon Meek, Intelligence report 
warned of coronavirus crisis as early as November: Sources, ABC News (Apr. 8, 2020), 
https ://abcnews. go.com/Politi cs/in tel ligence-report-warned -coronavims-c.ri sis-earl y-november-sources/sto.ry?id=7003 1273; Caitli11 
Oprysko, Tnunp says he didn 't know of. still hasn 'I seen Naval'l'o memos on possible pandemic, Politico (Apr. 7, 2020), 
https://www.politico.com/news/2020/04/07/tnunp-peter-navarro-coronavirns-memos-174237; Yasmeen Abutaleb et al. , Th e U.S. 
was beset by denial and dysfunction as the coronavirus raged, Wash. Post (Apr. 4, 2020), 
https://www.washingtonpost.com/nationaJ-security/2020/04/04/coronavims-goverrunent-dysfunct:ion; Rachana Pradhan & Christina 
Jewett 'Red Dawn Breaking Bad': Officials Warned About Safety Gear Shortfall Early On, Emails Show Kaiser Health News 
(Mar. 28, 2020), bttps://khu.orglnews/red-dawn-breakiug-bad-officials-wamed-about-safety-gear- ·hortfall-early-on-emails-show/; 
Christopher Carbone, America can't reopen wi1how massive increase in coronavirus tests, experts warn, Fox News (Apr. 20, 2020), 
https://www.foxnews.com/science/america-cant-reope1J-without-more-coronavi ru -tests-experts-warn; Beaches in Jacksonvi.lle, 
Florida reopen with restrictions, Fox News (Apr. 20, 2020), https: //video.foxnews.com./v/6 I 5087926600 I #sp=show-clips; Tamara 
Keith & GeoffBnunfiel, Examining Trump's COVID-19 Rhetoric Against Factual Evidence NPR (Apr. 17, 2020) 
https ://www.npr.org/2020/04./17/836719931 /examini ng-tnunps-covid-19-rhetoric-against-factual -evidence. 
73 Scott Neuman, Man Dies, Woman Hospitalized Afier Talcing Form Of Chloroquine To Prevent COVID-19, NPR (Mar. 24, 2020), 
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

https://www.npr.org/sections/coronavirns-live-u pdates/2020/03/24/8205 l 21 07 /man-dies-woman-hospitalized-after-taking-form-of­
ch loroquine-to-prevent-covid-19 
74 Jason Slotkin, NYC Poison Co111rol Sees Up1ick !11 Calls Ajier Trump's Disinfectant Comments, NPR (Apr. 25, 2020), 
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
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH &. HUMAN SERVICES 

May 14, 2020 

A.mrit Singh 
Open Society Justice Initiative 
224 West 57th Street 
New York, NY 10019-19 

Re: FOI Case No. 54077 

Dear Ms. Singh, 

Pubhc Health Sernce 

Nationai Institutes of Health 
Freedom of lnformalion Office 

Buildir.g 31, Room 5B-35 
31 Center Dr,ve, MSC 2107 

Bethesda, Maryland 20892-2107 
phone (301) 496-5633 

fax (301) 402-4541 

This is in reforence to your April 27, 2020, Freedom ofinformation Act (FOIA) request 
addressed to the FOIA Office, National Institute of Allergies and Jnfectious Diseases (NWD), 
National Institutes of Health (NIH) and received in the NIH FOIA Office on office April 27, 
2020. You requested records concerning the timing and substance of the Executive Branch's 
response to the novel coronavirus, now known as severe acute respiratory syndrome coronavirus 
2 or "SARS-CoV-2," the virus that causes the disease known as corona virus disease 2019 or 
"COVID-19." Specifically, you requested the following : 

Notice of SARS-CoV-2 and COVID-19 

l. Records indicating when the Executive Branch was first informed of what is now 
known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVJD-19. 

2. Records indicating the Executive Branch's response when it was first informed of what 
is nov,, known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19. 

3. Records indicating when President Donald Trump was first informed of what is now 
known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19. 

4. Records indicating President Trump's response when he was first infonned of what is 
now knmvn as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19. 

5. Records including and/or discussing communications (before March 1, 2020) to and 
from the National Center for Medical Intelligence (''NCMI") about what is now known as 
SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVJD-19. 
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6. Records including and/or discussing January 2020 communications to and from a State 
Department epidemiologist about what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-
19. 

7. Records including and/or discussing January 2020 communications between Robert 
Redfield, Director, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, and Chinese officials 
about what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19. 

8. Records including and/or discussing communications (from January 1, 2020 to 
Febrnary 29, 2020) between Alex Azar, Secretary, Health and Human Services, and 
President Donald Trump about what is now known as SAR.S-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19. 

9 . Records including and/or discussing communications (from January 1, 2020 to 
February 29, 2020) to and from Dr. Carter Mecher, senior medical advisor, Department 
of Veterans Affairs, about what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 ancl/or COVID-19. 

lO. Records including and/or discussing communications (from January 1, 2020 to March 
3 J, 2020) to and from Robert Kadlec, Assistant Secretary for Preparedness and Response, 
about asymptomatic cases spreading what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or 
COVID-19. 

11. Records discussing communications (from January 1, 2020 to February 29, 2020) 
from Peter Navarro, President Trump's trade advisor, about what is now known as 
SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19. 

U. The Executive Branch's Efforts to Counter SARS-CoV-2 and COVID-19 

12. Records discussing requests and need for and availability and allocation (including 
across states) of resources for testing for what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or 
COVID-19 in the U.S. 

13. Records discussing requests and need for and avai lability and allocation (including 
across states) of medical supplies and equipment (including but not limited to drugs, 
ventilators, and vaccines), Personal Protective Equipment ("PPE") and/or masks for ,vhat 
is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19 in the U.S. 

14. Records discussing immunity to what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-
19 in the U.S. 

15. Records discussing the timing and duration of social distancing measures in the 
U.S.14 

16. Records concerning extraordinary presidential authority, including but not limited to 
"presidential emergency actions" relating to what is now kno\vn as SARS-CoV-2 and/or 
COVID-19. 
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17. Records indicating dates and agendas for meetings and decisions of the official White 
House coronavirus task force during January and February 2020. 

18. Records including and/or discussing "Four steps to mitigation," a Februa1y/March 
2020 plan for addressing what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19. 

l9. Records including and/or discussing a February 2020 document titled "U.S. 
Government Response to the 2019 Novel Coronavirus." 

20. Records including and/or discussing communications to or from Dr. Nancy 
Messonnier, Director of the National Center for Immunization and Respiratory Diseases, 
about her Febrnary 25, 2020 public warning about what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 
ancl/or COVJD-19. 

2 .l. Records discussing Remdesivir, Chloroquine, Hydroxychloroquine ("Plaquenil"), 
Azithromycin ("Zithromax") and/or other drngs or substances, such as disinfectants, for 
treating what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19. 

22. Records discussing federal officials' questioning of and/or divergence from President 
Trump's public positions regarding what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 ancl/or COVID-
19, including but not limited to records concerning Dr. Rick Bright, Director of the 
Biomedical Advanced Research and Development Authority, and Dr. Anthony Fauci., 
Director of the National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases. 

23. Records discussing in-person and/or mail-in voting in the context of what is now 
known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVJD-19. 

24. Records including and/or discussing instructions to classify meetings and/or records 
relating to what is now known as SAR.S-CoV-2 ancl/or COVID-19. 

25. Communications between your agency and the White House regarding what is now 
known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19. 

26. Communications between the Executive Branch and non-government entities 
(including but not limited to private-sector companies, academic institutions ancl/or 
individuals) capable of developing tests, or assisting in testing, for what is now known as 
SARS-CoV-2 ancl/or COVID-19. 

III. Executive Branch SARS-CoV-2 and COVID-19 Communications with 
Congress, State Governors, and the WHO 

27. Records including ancVor discussing communications (before March 1, 2020) 
between any member of the Executive Branch and Congress regarding what is now 
knovm as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COVID-19, including but not limited to briefings to 
Congress, members of Congress, Congressional Committees or Subcommittees, ancl/or 
Congressional staff about what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or COV1D-l 9. 
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28. Records including and/or discussing communications between the White House and a 
state governor or his/her office about the timing and duration of social distancing 
measures and federal assistance to states for what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or 
COVID-19, including but not limited to any direct financial assistance and assistance on 
medical supplies and equipment (including but not limited to drugs, ventilators, and 
vaccines), personal protective equipment (PPE), masks and testing for what is now 
known as SARS-CoV-2 and/or CO\1D-l9. 

29. Records including and/or discussing communications between the Executive Branch 
and the World Health Organization ("\\-'HO") about what is now known as SARS-CoV-2 
and/or COVID-19. 

You also requested expedited processing. 

We wanted to notify you that your request has not been perfected. Specifically, the following 
items should be sought from other government agencies, as they are neither specific to NIH nor 
is NlH in a position to identify these records: at least items 1-4, 7-8, 26-29. In addition, the 
following items are not reasonably described, because agency staff would not be able to 
reasonably ascertain exactly which records are begin requested, or where to locate them without 
an unreasonable amount of effort: at least items 1-4, 6-8, 12-l 6, 21-22, 25-29. 

At this time, we have placed your request in "tolled" status. Please reach out to us to discuss 
your request, at 1::tibfo.i.~1.@94_,.r.1i . .h.-_g9y:. We will review your request for expedited processing as 
soon as your request is perfected. 

If you are not satisfied with the processing and handling of this requests, you may contact the 
NIH FOIA Public Liaison and/or the Office of Government Infonnation Services (OGIS): 

NIH FOIA Public Liaison 
Stephanie Clipper 
Public Affairs Specialist 

OGI~ 
National Archives and Records Admin. 
8601 Adelphi Rel - OGIS 

Office of Communications and Public Liaison 
Building 31, Room 5B35 

College Park, MD 20740-6001 
202-741-5770 (phone) 

31 Center Drive 
Bethesda, MD 20814 
301-496-1828 (phone) 
301-496-0818 (fax) 
nihfoia(a)mail.nih.gov ( email) 

1-877-684-6448 (toll-free) 
202-741-5769 (fax) 
9g_i.-?..@n.?..rn,.g9y (email) 

Sincerely, 
Gorka Garcia!' Digitally signed by Gorka 

}\Garc1a-male11e -S 

malene -5 /.J)at~: 2020.05.1418:13:40 
// -04'00' 

Gorka Garcia-Malene 
Freedom of Information Ot1ice, NJH 
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From: Amrit Singh 

To: "Redmond. Tim {NIH/OD) (El" 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Garcia-Malene, Gorka (NIH/OD) (E]; Natasha Arnpriester: Bordine, Roger (NIH/OD) (El 
RE: NIH FOIA Response to Amrit Singh 

Date: 19 May 2020 14:53:00 

Thank you, in that case, we consent to the consolidation. 

/\rnrit 

Arnrit Singh 

Director, Accountability, Liberty and Transparency Division, 

Open Society .lust.ice Initiative 

2.24 W . 5i,h St 

New York, 1\1.Y. 10019 
Tel:+] 212 5480660 

Fax: +1212548 4662 

(b)(6) From: Redmond, Tim (NIH/OD) [E] -----------Sent: 19 May 2020 14:40 
To: Amrit Singh <amrit.singh@opensocietyfoundations.org> 

Cc: Garcia-Malene, Gorka {NIH/OD) [E) (b)(6); Natasha Arnpriester ------------<natasha.arnpriester@opensocietyfoundations.org>; Bordine, Roger (NIH/OD) [E] 
(b)(6)> 

Subject: RE: NIH FOIA Response to Amrit Singh 

Dear Ms. Singh, 

Yes, that is in fact t he case. The two identica l FOIA requests will be consolidated and it will 

capture all NIH and NIAIO records requested. 

v/r 

Tim Redmond 

FOIA Specialist 

NIH 

From: Amrit Singh <a_m,ri, .singh@vogensocieryfoundations._oni> 

Sent: Tuesday, May 19, 2020 1:10 PM 
To: Redmond, T im (NIH/OD) [E]------~(b)- (6)~ 

Cc: Garcia-Malene, Gorka (NIH/OD) [El (b)(6); Nat asha Arnpriester ------------< n at ash a. a r n priest er ( w o iw n soc if:, t y f o um 1 at 10 n s. or g > 

Subject: RE: NIH FOIA Response to Amrit Singh 

Dear Mr. Redmond-thank you for your emai l. vVe hJd filed two separete FO!A requests, one 

with NIH, and the other with f\l!AID on the understanding t hat a search of NIH records wou!d not 

necessarily capture Nlf\ lD records responsive to our FOIA request to NIAID. If you are 

represent ing that a search of NIH records would capture all records responsive to o ur- NIA!D FOIA 
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request , we have no objection to conso iida ting the two FOi;\ requests. ! would be grateful if you 

could clarify that this is indeed what you are representing. 

Best, 
Arnrlt Singh 

Director, Accountability, Liberty and Transparency Division, 

and Senior Lawyer, National Security and Counten:errorism 

Open Society Justice Initiative 

224 W. sih St 

New York, N.Y. 10019 

From: Redmond, Tim (NIH/OD) [E] ---------(b)(6) 

Sent: 18 May 2020 17:24 

To: Amrit Singh <an,rit.sinr~h (wopensoc:ietyfoundat.ions.oq~> 

(b)(6) Cc: Garcia-Malene, Gorka {NIH/OD) [E] ------------Subject: RE: NIH FOIA Response to Amrit Singh 

Thank you, Ma'am. 

From: Amrit Singh <amrit .singh{cilopensoci etyfoundation,,.org> 

Sent: Monday, May 18, 2020 5 :23 PM 
To: Redmond, T im {NIH/OD) [E) _______ (b_) ~(6) 

Subject: RE: NIH FOIA Response to Amrit Singh 

Thank you, acknowledging receipt of t his email (your previous email had a typo in the cddress), 

and I w ill respond shortly. 

1\rnrit 

Arnrlt Singh 

Director, Accountability, Liberty and Transparency Division, 

Open Society Just1ce lnitiJtive 

From: Redmond, Tim (NIH/OD) [E] ----------(b)(6) 

Sent: 18 May 2020 17:20 

To: Am rit Singh <~t.rn.r..iL.s.l.o.eh@ . .QJi.~~ns.<.1;:.\('.tv,:(c.und.i:tL\m1S.,.Qr.B.> 
Subject: NIH FOIA Response to Amrit Singh 

Dear Ms. Singh, 

It appears I previously sent this email to th e wrong address (a lt hough I was not notified that it 

was w rong). Please respond back as soon as possible. 

v/r 
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Tim Redmond 

NIH FOIA Analyst 

From: Redmond, Tim (NIH/OD) [E) 

Sent: Monday, May 18, 2020 3:30 PM 

To: 2 rnrit.sigh(cilopensoci_etvfouod,~tions.org 

Cc: NIH FOIA <nihfoia{a)od.nih.gov> 

Subject: Recent FOIA Request RE: Expedited Processing 

Dear Ms. Singh, 

I hope t his email finds you well. 

It appears that you sent two separate FOIA request letters covering t he same topic. One was 

sent to t he National Institutes of Healt h (NIH}, and the other sent to the National Institute of 

Allergy and Infect ious Diseases. In each you asked for expedited processing. If t hese are in fact 

the same FOIA request, please let us know, as we can more efficiently respond to your Request. 

I previously sent you a similar letter on Tuesday May 12, 2020, at 2:25 p.m. (EST), stat ing: 

" It appears that you have f iled the same FOIA request with NIH and wit h NIAID. If t hat is the 

case, please acknowledge and we will consolidate your requests." 

Please reply at your earliest possible convenience, and if you have any questions, you can email 

me at t his address. 

v/r 

Timothy Redmond 

FOIA Specia list 

NIH 
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From: 

Sent: 
To: 

CC: 

Subject: 

Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) (E] [/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP 

(FYDI BOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECI Pl ENTS/CN =90FE9C AE30C64CFBB67 ABDS68E882 796-LAU ERM) 
5/6/2020 6:51:58 PM 
Aguirre, Lisa (10S/ONS) [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Exchange AdministrativeGroup 
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Reci pi ents/cn=148a ca8632f14d2ca 6227b9b5cde094 7-Lisa.Agui rr]; Hudgens, Alisa 

(HHS/OS/ON$) [/o=Exchangelabs/ou=Excha nge Administrative Group 
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT}/cn=Recipi ents/cn=deedce492c644b 7097b1ca 2de66dd60c-AI i sa .Hudge); Hol Ii e, Les W (OIG/01) 
[/o=Excha ngela bs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group 
(FYDI BOHF23SPDLT}/cn=Rec i pi ents /cn=8ce86d8b40f64beca 2902 b 1698731 le& -Les .Hol I ie.] 

Lauer, Mi cha el (NIH/OD) (El [/o=Excha ngeLa bs/ou=Excha nge Admi ni strati ve Group 
(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT}/cn=Reci pi ents/cn=90fe9ca e30c64cfbb67a bd568e882 796 -la uerm]; Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) 
[El [/o=Exchangela bs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group 

(FYDIBOHF23SPDLT}/cn=Reci pi ents/cn=02e22836b5ff4e9988e3770cfc7ee770-ta ba kl ]; Muroff, Juli e (NIH/OD) [E) 
[/o=Excha ngel.a bs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group 
(FYDI BOHF23SPDLT}/cn=Rec i pi ents /cn=8f3fd404b36a4d4e8dda4a 3dcb9a 72c0·mu roffj ) 
Wuhan Lab 

Attachments: State Department cables warned of safety issues at Wuhan I ab studying ba t corona vi ruses -The Washington 
Post.pdf; China Lab In Focus Of Corona virus Outbrea k.pdf; Corona vi rus Chi na Origin i n Wuhan Lab Unproven, But 
Denials Unconvincing Nati on al Revi ew.pdf; Botao Xiao origins of COVID 19 virus.pdf; PIIS0140673620301835.pdf; 

Dasza k l etter 4 24 20.pdf; EcoHeal th Al I iance re Al grant 4 19 20.pdf; Hong Kong Wuhan disease control researcher 
was once attacked by bats attacking ma inland scholarsquesti oned virus leakage Hong Kong 01 Socia I News.pdf 

Hi Lisa, Alisa, and Les - as we discussed. 

• Narrative below (scrol I down to my note to Larry) . 
• Video (need to skip the political ads) 

• Two letters (6th and Jth attachments) 

Hope this helps, 

Mike 

(b) (5) 



Michaels Lauer, MD 
NIH Deputy Director for Extramural Resear ch 
1 Cente r Drive, Buil ding 1, Room 1 44 
Bethesda, MD 20892 

Phone: (b)(~ 
Emai l: (~ 

From: "Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [E]" (b)(6) ----------Date: Wednesday, April 22, 2020 at 9:56 AM 
To: "Tabak, Lawrence (NIH/OD) [E]"-------~Cb~H=6) 
Cc: "Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD} [E]" CbH , "Black, Jodi (NIH/OD) [E]" CbH6), --------

(b)(6) 11 Schwetz, Tara (NIH/OD) [E]" ----------
Subject: Wuhan Lab 

Hi Larry - in fol low-up to our 1:1 earliertoday, 

Many thanks, 

Mike 

(b) (5) --------------------
(b) (5) 



State Department cables warned of safety issues at Wuhan lab studying bat coronaviruses - The Washington Post 4/20/20, 11:41 PM 

State Department cables warned of 
safety issues at Wuhan lab studying 
bat coronaviruses 
Josh Rogin 

A woman wearing a protective suit at a hospital in Wuhan, China. (Aly Song/Reuters) 

Two years before the novel coronavirus pandemic upended the world, U.S. 

Embassy officials visited a Chinese research facil ity in the city of Wuhan 

several times and sent two official warnings back to Washington about 

inadequate safety at the lab, which was conducting risky studies on 

coronaviruses from bats. The cables have fueled discussions inside the U.S. 

government about whether this or another Wuhan lab was the source of the 

virus - even though conclusive proof has yet to emerge. 

https://www.washingtonpost.com/opinions/2020/04/14/state-department-cables-warned-safety-issues-wuhan-lab-studying-bat-coronaviruses/ Page 1 of 7 
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In January 2018, the U.S. Embassy in Beijing took the unusual step of 

repeatedly sending U.S. science diplomats to the Wuhan Institute of Virology 

(WIV), which had in 2015 become China's first laboratory to achieve the 

highest level of international bioresearch safety (known as BSL-4). WIV issued 

a news release in English about the last of these visits, which occurred on 

March 27, 2018. The U.S. delegation was led by Jamison Feuss, the consul 

general in Wuhan, and Rick Switzer, the embassy's counselor of environment, 

science, technology and health. Last week, WIV erased that statement from its 

website, though it remains archived on the Internet. 

Full coverage of the coronavirus P-,andemic 

What the U.S. officials learned during their visits concerned them so much 

that they dispatched two diplomatic cables categorized as Sensitive But 

Unclassified back to Washington. The cables warned about safety and 

management weaknesses at the WIV lab and proposed more attention and 

help. The first cable, which I obtained, also warns that the lab's work on bat 

coronaviruses and their potential human transmission represented a risk of a 

new SARS-like pandemic. 

"During interactions with scientists at the WIV laboratory, they noted the new 

lab has a serious shortage of appropriately trained technicians and 

investigators needed to safely operate this high-containment laboratory," 

states the Jan. 19, 2018, cable, which was drafted by two officials from the 

embassy's environment, science and health sections who met with the WIV 

scientists. (The State Department declined to comment on this and other 

details of the story.) 

Global Opinions writer Josh Rogin has obtained a 2018 U.S. diplomatic cable urging Washington to 

better support a Chinese lab researching bat coronavirnses. (Joshua Cano!!, Kate Woodsorne, Josh 

Rogin/The Washington Post) 
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The Chinese researchers at WIV were receiving assistance from the Galveston 

National Laboratory at the University of Texas Medical Branch and other U.S. 

organizations, but the Chinese requested additional help. The cables argued 

that the United States should give the Wuhan lab further support, mainly 

because its research on bat coronaviruses was important but also dangerous. 

As the cable noted, the U.S. visitors met with Shi Zhengli, the head of the 

research project, who had been publishing studies related to bat coronaviruses 

for many_Y.ears. In November 2017, just before the U.S. officials' visit, Shi's 

team had QUb!ished research showing that horseshoe bats they had collected 

from a cave in Yunnan province were very likely from the same bat population 

that spawned the SARS coronavirus in 2003. 

Sign UP- for our Coronavirus U{J.dates newsletter to track the outbreak. All 

stories linked in the newsletter are free to access. 

"Most importantly," the cable states, "the researchers also showed that 

various SARS- like coronaviruses can interact with ACE2, the human receptor 

identified for SARS-coronavirus. This finding strongly suggests that SARS-like 

coronaviruses from bats can be transmitted to humans to cause SARS-like 

diseases. From a public health perspective, this makes the continued 

surveillance of SARS-like coronaviruses in bats and study of the animal­

human interface critical to future emerging coronavirus outbreak prediction 

and prevention.'' 

The research was designed to prevent the next SARS-like pandemic by 

anticipating how it might emerge. But even in 2015, other scientists 

guestioned whether Shi's team was taking unnecessary risks. In October 

2014, the U.S. government had imQosed a moratorium on funding of any 

research that makes a virus more deadly or contagious, known as "gain-of­

function" experiments. 
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As tnany have gointed out, there is no evidence that the virus now plaguing the 

world was engineered; scientists largely agree it came from animals. But that is 

not the same as saying it didn't come from the lab, which spent years testing 

bat coronaviruses in animals, said Xiao Qiang, a research scientist at the 

School of Information at the University of California at Berkeley. 

"The cable tells us that there have long been concerns about the possibility of 

the threat to public health that came from this lab's research, if it was not being 

adequately conducted and protected," he said. 

There are similar concerns about the nearby Wuhan Center for Disease 

Control and Prevention lab, which operates at biosecurity level 2, a level 

significantly less secure than the level-4 standard claimed by the Wuhan 

lnsititute of Virology lab, Xiao said. That's important because the Chinese 

government still refuses to answer basic questions about the origin of the 

novel coronavirus while suppressing any attempts to examine whether either 

lab was involved. 

Sources familiar with the cables said they were meant to sound an alarm about 

the grave safety concerns at the WIV lab, especially regarding its work with bat 

coronaviruses. The embassy officials were calling for more U.S. attention to 

this lab and more support for it, to help it fix its problems. 

"The cable was a warning shot," one U.S. official said. "They were begging 

people to pay attention to what was going on." 

No extra assistance to the labs was provided by the U.S. government in 

response to these cables. The cables began to circulate again inside the 

administration over the past two months as officials debated whether the lab 

could be the origin of the pandemic and what the implications would be for the 

U.S. pandemic response and relations with China. 
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Inside the Trump administration, many national security officials have long 

suspected either the WIV or the Wuhan Center for Disease Control and 

Prevention lab was the source of the novel coronavirus outbreak. According to 

the New York Times, the intelligence community has provided no evidence to 

confirm this. But one senior administration official told me that the cables 

provide one more piece of evidence to support the possibility that the 

pandemic is the result of a lab accident in Wuhan. 

"The idea that it was just a totally natural occurrence is circumstantial. The 

evidence it leaked from the lab is circumstantial. Right now, the ledger on the 

side of it leaking from the lab is packed with bullet points and there's almost 

nothing on the other side," the official said. 

As my colleague David Ignatius noted. the Chinese government's original story 

- that the virus emerged from a seafood market in Wuhan - is shaky. 

Research by Chinese experts published in the lancet in January showed the 

first known patient. identified on Dec. 1, had no connection to the market, nor 

did more than one-third of the cases in the first large cluster. Also, the market 

didn't sell bats. 

The Ogjnions section is looking for stories of how the coronavirus has 

affected Qeo12Je of all walks of life. Write to us. 

Shi and other W!V researchers have categorical!Y. denied this lab was the 

origin for the novel coronavirus. On Feb. 3. her team was the first to gub!ldy_ 

regort the virus known as 2019-nCoV was a bat-derived coronavirus. 

The Chinese government. meanwhile. has put a total lockdown on information 

related to the virus origins. Beijing has yet to provide U.S. experts with samples 

of the novel coronavirus collected from the earliest cases. The Shanghai lab 

that published the novel coronavirus genome on Jan. 11 was quickly shut 

down by authorities for "rectification." Several of the doctors and journalist s 
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who reported on the spread early on have disappeared. 

On Feb. 14, Chinese President Xi Jinping called for a new biosecurity law to be 

accelerated. On Wednesday, CNN reQorted the Chinese government has 

placed severe restrictions requiring approval before any research institution 

publishes anything on the origin of the novel coronavirus. 

The origin story is not just about blame. It's crucial to understanding how the 

novel coronavirus pandemic started because that informs how to prevent the 

next one. The Chinese government must be transparent and answer the 

questions about the Wuhan labs because they are vital to our scientific 

understanding of the virus, said Xiao. 

We don't know whether the novel coronavirus originated in the Wuhan lab, but 

the cable pointed to the danger there and increases the impetus to find out, he 

said. 

"I don't think it's a conspiracy theory. I think it's a legitimate question that 

needs to be investigated and answered," he said. "To understand exactly how 

this originated is critical knowledge for preventing this from happening in the 

future." 

Read this glece in Chinese 

Read thls plece in Spanish 

David Ignatius: How did covid-19 begin? Its initial origin story is shaky. 

Marc A. Thiessen: China should be leg£11Y. !iab!e for the gandemic damage it 

has done 

We need smart solut ions to mitigate the coronavirus1s impact, Here are 23. 

https://www.washingtonpost.com/opinions/2020/04/14/state-department-cables-warned-safety-issues-wuhan-lab-studying-bat-coronaviruses/ Page 6 of 7 



State Department cables warned of safety issues at Wuhan lab studying bat coronaviruses - The Washington Post 4/20/20, 11:41 PM 

Michael L Barnett and David C. Grabowski: Covid-19 is ravaging nursing_ 

homes. We1re getting what we Qald for. 

Megan McArdle: Why_ the !ockdown skegtics are wrong 

XinY.an Yu: My hometown showed us how a gandemic begins. Could it also 

show us how one ends? 
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China Lab In Focus Of Coronavirus 
Outbreak 
Don Reisinger Q5:35pm EDT 

People wearing face masks wait to buy roasted duck at a restaurant in Wuhan, China's central Hubei .. . [ +] 

AFP via Geuy Images 

4/21/20, 12:05 AM 

For months, anyone who said the new SARS coronavirus might have come out 

of a virology research lab in Wuhan, China was dismissed as a right wing 

xenophobe. 

When Zero Hedge - a financial news website whose comment section 

certainly fits the right wing stereotype - f irst put out its own bombastic 

version of the bat-borne virus escaping a research lab, they were banned from 
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Twitter. 

FOX host Tucker Carlson starting banging this drum last week. 

But on Tuesday, the narrative flipped. It's no longer a story shared by China 

bears and President Trump fans. Today, Josh Rogin, who is said to be as 

plugged into the State Department as any Washington Post columnist, was 

shown documents dating back to 2015 revealing how the U.S. government 

was worried about safety standards at that Wuhan lab. In fact, they were 

worried that one day, one of these experiments - including the one on bat 

coronaviruses -could escape and become a global nightmare. 

In a best case scenario, Rogin's reveal may ultimately get China to cooperate 

more in regards to the origins of the virus, setting the table for better drugs to 

mitigate or even cure the deadly COVID-19. At the very least, for a government 

that likes to save face, the fact that the U.S. government helped build and fund 

the Wuhan virology lab in question should be enough for China to open that 

info vault to scientists at the World Health Organization. 

Washington PostO~inion I State De~artment cables warned of safetY., 

issues at Wuhan lab studying bat coronaviruses 

"I don't think it's a conspiracy theory. I think it's a legitimate question that 

needs to be investigated and answered," Xiao Qiang, a research scientist at 

the School of Information at the University of California at Berkeley told Rogin. 

"To understand exactly how this originated is critical knowledge for preventing 

this from happening in the future." 

China has not been forthcoming about the new SARS coronavirus origins. 

They're not being entirely transparent, despite being heralded as such by 

some leaders. 
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An example of that secrecy from Rogin: 

"In January 2018, the U.S. Embassy in Beijing 

took the unusual step of repeatedly sending 

U.S. science diplomats to the Wuhan Institute 

of Virology (WIV), which had in 2015 become 

China's first laboratory to achieve the highest 

level of international bioresearch safety (known 

as BSL-4). WIV issued a news release in 

English about the last of these visits, which 

occurred on March 27, 2018. The U.S. 

delegation was led by Jamison Fouss, the 

consul general in Wuhan, and Rick Switzer, the 

4/21/20, 12:05 AM 

A medical worker cleans up, Wuhan, Hubei 

Province, China, April 14, 2020. Tomorrow, 

leishenshan ... [+] 

Barcroft Media via Getty Images 

embassy's counselor of environment, science, technology and health. Last 

week, WIV erased that statement from its website, though it remains archived 

on the Internet." 

Worth noting, at least one young researcher from the lab - Huang Yan ling - a 

graduate student rumored to be gatient zero - was scrubbed from the lab's 

website. 

The first, mysterious samples from infected individuals arrived at Wuhan 

Institute of Virology on December 30, 2019. 

According to the Scientific American magazine, Shi Zhengli, a renown bat 

scientist in China, was told by the lnstitute's director that the Wuhan Center for 

Disease Control and Prevention - modeled after our own CDC - had 

detected a novel coronavirus in two hospital patients. They were suffering from 

an odd pneumonia. They wanted her laboratory to investigate because the 

virus belonged to the same family of bat-borne viruses that caused SARS, a 

disease that - by comparison - only infected 8,100 people and killed just 
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under 800 in an 8 month period in 2002-03. 

"I had never expected this kind of thing to happen in Wuhan, in central China," 

she was quoted as saying by Scientifk;_ American on March .. 11 Her studies had 

shown that the southern, subtropical areas of Guangdong, Guangxi and 

Yunnan had the greatest risk of coronaviruses jumping to humans from 

animals-particularly bats, a known reservoir for many viruses. If bat 

coronaviruses were the culprit, she recalled to Scientific American, "could they 

have come from our lab?" 

She has since promised the world that it did not come from her lab, though 

how she would know that for sure is unknown. We don't know where she is. If 

she is making the media rounds on Chinese television, few in the U.S. would 

believe her at this point. 

Her research on bat coronaviruses goes back to 2015. Here is one QUblished in 

2015 in Nature magazine. There is a lot of information about this new SARS, 

yet the world still seems stuck in the unknowns. 

The U.S. government helped build and fund Wuhan virology labs. The thinking 

was that it was important for China to get up to par in the global life sciences. It 

was already a known center of previous outbreaks. Investing there and 

educating them on international safety standards was just preventative 

medicine. 

Rogin's reporting suggests that government officials were well aware of the 

research being conducted in the lab on bat coronaviruses and were worried 

that the lab still had sub-par safety standards. 

Ragin writes that, "What the U.S. officials learned during their visits concerned 

them so much that they dispatched two diplomatic cables categorized as 

Sensitive But Unclassified back to Washington. The cables warned about 
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safety and management weaknesses at the 

WIV lab and proposed more attention and help. 

The first cable, which I obtained, also warns 

that the lab's work on bat coronaviruses and 

their potential human transmission represented 

a risk of a new SARS-like pandemic." 

4/21/20, 12:05 AM 

Rogin's article probably stemmed from 

conversations with someone inside the State 
Chinese President Xi ,I in ping hears about the 

progress on a vaccine at the Academy of 

Department boiling at the rim over many weeksMilitary ... l+J 

as the U.S. faces a "stop the world" moment Xinhua News Agency/Getty Images 

because of this pandemic. 

Over the weekend, the Chinese government banned academic and other 

research institutions from publishing its research on coronaviruses on their 

websites. 

The thinking there is, perhaps, that people in the U.S. and Europe are using 

those studies to place blame on the Chinese government. China has been 

working overtime to convince people that questioning the origin of the disease 

is racist. 

The Washington Post story today brings the possibility of a lab leak into the 

mainstream. It moves the needle on getting a clearer handle on the origin of 

the virus, and that could eventually lead to more cooperation between the U.S. 

and China in making sure this does not happen again. 

7 Of The Best Gaming Chairs For The Serious 

Gamer 
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ShoQ.Qing 

I write about technology and video games for Forbes Finds. 

Forbes and/or the author may earn a commission on sales made from links on 

this page. 

If you've been playing video games all this time without cushioning yourself 

within the comforting confines of a bespoke gaming chair, you're missing out. 

Gaming chairs are designed to offer a supportive and cozy experience while 

looking right at home alongside your gaming PC or console. 

With gaming chairs, you'll find seats that are typically comfortable, look good 

and offer a variety of color and material options. Maintaining a good posture 

while sitting for long periods is of paramount importance, and these chairs will 

help you do just that. 
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The following were selected as some of the best gaming chairs due to their 

build quality, support and comfort, as well as style, looks and any additional 

features. They are also all reasonably priced for what they offer. 

Vertagear Racing Series S-Line SL4000 Gaming 
Chair Black/Blue Edition 
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Walmart 

Vertagear Racing Series $-Line SL4000 Gaming 
Chair Black/Blue Edition 

450 

The Vertagear S-Line SL4000 is built for comfort. The chair has supportive 

padding, which is perfect for gamers who want to game for multiple hours in a 

single session. The chair is easy to assemble too- one person can put it 

together within 30 minutes or so. 

On the bottom of the chair, there are custom Penta RS1 casters, which are 

coated with PU for a soft and smooth gliding experience on the chair, so 

moving around shouldn't feel bumpy. 

The chair is a little expensive depending on the color you get, but it's still a 

great choice and should create an awesome gaming experience. 

Noblechairs Epic Gaming Chair 
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Amazon 

Noblechairs Epic Gaming Chair 

419 

4/21/20, 12:05 AM 

The Noblechairs Epic is an excellent gaming chair that comes in your choice of 
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PU leather, NAPPA leather or real leather. It has air gaps at the top to improve 

airflow to help keep you cool and is built with ergonomics in mind, so you can 

sit more comfortably. In fact, Noblechairs said that the chairs will conform to 

the shape of your back and has obtained international certifications for the 

design. 

Like the Secret Lab Omega, the Noblechairs Epic has a tilting mechanism that 

will allow you to lock it into place wherever you see fit. That allows you to 

obtain the perfect recline while you're playing games and dramatically 

enhances the broader experience. It even comes with what Noblechairs calls 

4D armrests that let you adjust their height, depth, width and angle to 

maximize comfort. 

Secretlab Omega 2020 Prime 2.0 PU Leather LCS 
Gaming Chair 
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Arnazon 
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Secretlab Omega 2020 Prime 2.0 PU Leather LCS 
Gaming Chair 

350 

If you like your gaming chair to look a little more refined, a little less colorful 

and more demure, then the Secretlab Omega is a great choice. Not only is it 

competitively priced, but it offers heavy discounts if you shop directly, whether 

you opt for the more affordable PU leather, fabric covering or even its more 

premium leather option, though that does come at an added cost. 

Updated in 2020, the Omega is the mid-size option that Secretlab offers, 

fitting everyone up to and below 5'11. There are larger and smaller offerings for 

those who fall outside the standard height and weight range though, with all 

shapes and sizes catered to. 

Whichever size you opt for, you'll be able to enjoy the Omega's built-in lumbar 

support (no pillow required), durable armrests and even a gel-lined neck pillow 

to help keep you cool during the most intense of gaming sessions. 

GTRACING Gaming Chair Racing Chair 
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Amazon 

GTRACING Gaming Chair Racing Chair 
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156 

It might not have the catchiest of names, but the GTRacing Pro GTF88 is an 

excellent gaming chair at an even more excellent price. Reduced to under 

$150 at the time of writing, it's supremely affordable when compared with 

some of its contemporaries, and though it doesn1t have the most high-end of 

feature sets, it's still a great gaming chair that will both support and comfort 

you no matter what game you're playing and for how long. 

With a sturdy metal frame and ergonomic design, your back, shoulders and 

arms are all well supported, making sure that you don1t develop poor posture 

habits, the bane of any gamer. That includes pillows for lumbar support and 

headrest, each of which - and the chair itself- are packed with high-density 

foam for a superior seating experience. 

You can also customize the chair to your heart's desire, with options for swivel, 

reclining, rocking and height adjustment. Even the armrests can be rotated and 

height adjusted. 

Available in a variety of colors and coated in 100 percent Grade A PU leather, 

this racing-inspired seat will be a great addition to your gaming arsenal at an 

affordable price. 

Corsair CF-9010029-WW T3 RUSH Gaming Chair 
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Newegg 

Corsair CF-9010029-WW T3 RUSH Gaming Chair 

424 

Corsair might be most well known for starting the RGB revolution on PC 

components, but it also makes fantastic gaming chairs; particularly of the 

mesh fabric kind. Its T3 Rush is the latest generation of gaming chair from the 

component company and it's only improved on what came before. 

Designed to help alleviate heat buildup that is all too commonplace on some 

gaming chairs (particularly with PU leather) the T3 Rush is covered entirely in a 

soft fabric that makes it breathable, comfortable and soft to the touch. 
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With included neck cushion and memory foam lumbar support, the T3 Rush 

sacrifices nothing in its goal to improve comfort and support. Supremely 

adjustable, you can change the angle of the seat until it's practically a bed, sit 

straight up, tweak the height and even adjust the orientation of the armrests 

through four dimensions to make your T3 look and feel exactly how you like it. 

Arozzi Verona Junior Gaming Chair for Kids 
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Arnazon 
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Arozzi Verona Junior Gaming Chair for Kids 

249 

4/21/20, 12:05 AM 

Not everyone is as hulking as their gaming avatars, and not everyone who 

needs a gaming chair is an adult. The Arozzi Verona Junior gaming chair is 

designed for growing gamers and those with a smaller than average physical 

footprint, with a maximum weight of just 130Ibs. But by catering to such a 

niche, it offers a fantastic experience specifically tailored to that body type. 

Ergonomically designed for a healthy posture, the Verona Junior enjoys both 

lumbar and headrest pillows, as well as armrests that can be tweaked to the 

exact position you need them to be in. You can rotate them, or adjust them up 

and down, though there are no lateral movement options. 

Available in a variety of color options and with a comfortable, easy-to-clean 

pleather exterior, the Verona Junior is a fantastic gaming chair for a growing 

gamer or someone with a slighter build. 

Nitro Concepts S300 EX Gaming Chair 
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Amazon 

NITRO CONCEPTS S300 EX Gaming Chair 

300 
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Designed to be its most comfortable gaming chair yet, Nitro Concepts' S300 
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EX builds on its already sterling pedigree for gaming chair production, with a 

few new additions. Integrating its new Health Enhancing Adjustment 

Technology, or H.E.A.T., it leverages lumbar and head support pillows for 

individual adjustment to the unique contours of your body. They're backed up 

by cooling holes in the neck-rest, making sure that even with the nylon seat­

coating, you'll never get too hot during intense play. 

They're built atop a steel frame for additional support, which can be leaned 

back, rocked, height adjusted and rotated, while the armrests can move up, 

down, forward and backwards, letting you make this gaming chair just right for 

your particular seating habits. It's also available in four stylish color options, 

each with color matching stitching and attractive accents. 

Don't want something gaudy? Nitro Concepts has you covered too. The 

Stealth color option makes everything black, letting your gaming chair blend 

into the background so you can focus on your game and not look like a 

stereotypical "gamer" while doing it. You might even be able to swing it as an 

office chair upgrade. 
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l1m a freelance technology/ video game/ and entertainment journalist. I've been 

writing about the world of technology, video games, and entertainment for the 

last decade. 
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The Trail Leading Back to the Wuhan 
Labs 
Jim GeragtrtY April 3, 20201:20 PM 

Medical workers in protective suits attend to a patient inside an isolated ward of the Wuhan Red Cross Hospital in 

Wuhan, the epicenter of the novel coronavirus outbreak, in Hubei Province, China, February 16, 2020. (China Daily via 

Reuters) 

There's no proof the coronavirus accidentally escaped from a laboratory, 

but we can't take the Chinese government's denials at face value. 

NRPLUS MEMBER tis understandable that many would be wary of the 
ARTICLE notion that the origin of the coronavirus could be 

/ discovered by some documentarY. mm maker who 

used to live in China. Matthew Tye, who creates YouTube videos, contends he 

has identified the source of the coronavirus - and a great deal of the 

information that he presents, obtained from public records posted on the 
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Internet, checks out. 

The Wuhan Institute of Viro!ogY. in China indeed gosted a job opening on 

November 18, 2019, "asking for scientists to come research the relationship 

between the coronavirus and bats." 
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The Google trans!ation of the job gostin~: "Taking bats as the research 

object, I will answer the molecular mechanism that can coexist with Ebola 

and SARS- associated coronavirus for a long time without disease, and its 

relationship with flight and longevity. Virology, immunology, cell biology, and 

multiple omics are used to compare the differences between humans and 

other mammals." ("Omics" is a term for a subfield within biology, such as 

genomics or glycomics.) 
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On December 24, 2019, the Wuhan Institute of Virology gosted a second job 

posting. The translation of that posting includes the declaration, "long-term 

research on the pathogenic biology of bats carrying important viruses has 

confirmed the origin of bats of major new human and livestock infectious 

diseases such as SARS and SADS, and a large number of new bat and rodent 

new viruses have been discovered and identified." 
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Tye contends that that posting meant, "we've discovered a new and terrible 

virus, and would like to recruit people to come deal with it ." He also contends 

that "news didn't come out about coronavirus until ages after that." Doctors in 
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Wuhan knew that theY. were dealing with a cluster of Qneumonia cases as 

December r;2rogressed, but it is accurate to say that a very limited number of 

people knew about this particular strain of coronavirus and its severity at the 

time of that job posting. By December 31, about three weeks after doctors first 

noticed the cases, the Chinese government notified the World Health 

Organization and the first media reports about a "mystery pneumonia" 

appeared outside China. 

Scientific American verifies much of the information Tye mentions about Shi 

Zhengli, the Chinese virologist nicknamed "Bat Woman" for her work with that 

species. 

Shi - a virologist who is often called China's 11 bat womanfl by her 

colleagues because of her virus-hunting expeditions in bat caves over the 

past 16 years - walked out of the conference she was attending in 

Shanghai and hopped on the next train back to Wuhan. 11! wondered if [the 

municipal health authority] got it wrong," she says. HI had never expected 

this kind of thing to happen in Wuhan, in central China.fl Her studies had 

shown that the southern, subtropical areas of Guangdong, Guangxi and 

Yunnan have the greatest risk of coronaviruses jumping to humans from 

animals-particularly bats, a known reservoir for many viruses. If 

coronaviruses were the culprit, she ren1embers thinking, 11could they have 

come frorn our lab?'' 

... By January 7 the Wuhan team determined that the new virus had indeed 

caused the disease those patients suffered - a conclusion based on 

results from polymerase chain reaction analysis, ful! genome sequencing 1 

antibody tests of blood samples and the virus's ability to infect human lung 

cells in a petri dish. The genomic sequence of the virus - now officially 

called SARS-CoV-2 because it is related to the SARS pathogen-was 96 

percent identical to that of a coronavirus the researchers had identified in 
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horseshoe bats ln Yunnan, they reported in a QaQer published last month 

in Nature. Hit's crystal clear that bats, once again, are the natural reservoir/' 

says Daszak, who was not involved in the study. 

Some scientists aren't convinced that the virus jumped straight from bats to 

human beings, but there are a few groblerns with the theorv. that some other 

animal was an intermediate transmitter of COVlD-19 from bats to humans: 

Analyses of the SARS-CoV-2 genome Indicate a single spillover event 1 

meaning the virus jumped only once from an animal to a person, which 

makes it likely that the virus was circulating among people before 

December. Unless more information about the animals at the Wuhan 

market is released, the transmission chain may never be clear. There are, 

however, numerous possibilities. A bat hunter or a wildlife trafficker might 

have brought the virus to the market. Pango!lns happen to carry a 

coronavirus, which they might have picked up from bats years ago, and 

which Is, in one crucial part of its genome, virtually identical to SARS-CoV-

2. But no one has yet found evidence that pangolins were at the Wuhan 

market, or even that venders there trafficked pango!Ins. 

On February 4 - one week before the World Health Organization decided to 

offldany: name this vlrus 11COV!D-1911 - the journal Cell Research posted a 

notice written by scientists at the Wuhan Institute of Virology about the virus, 

concluding, "our findings reveal that remdesivir and chloroquine are highly 

effective in the control of 2019-nCoV infection in vitro. Since these 

compounds have been used in human patients with a safety track record and 

shown to be effective against various ailments, we suggest that they should be 

assessed in human patients suffering from the novel coronavirus disease." 

One of the authors of that notice was the "bat woman," Shi Zhengli. 

In his YouTube video, Tye focuses his attention on a researcher at the Wuhan 
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Institute of Virology named Huang Yanling: '1Most people believe her to be 

patient zero, and most people believe she is dead." 

There was enough discussion of rumors about Huang Yanling online in China 

to spur an official denial. On February 16, the Wuhan Institute of Virology 

denied that patient zero was one of their employees, and interestingly named 

her specifically: "Recently there has been fake information about Huang 

Yanling, a graduate from our institute, claiming that she was patient zero in the 

novel coronavirus." Press accounts guote the institute as saying, "Huang was 

a graduate student at the institute until 2015, when she left the province and 

had not returned since. Huang was in good health and had not been 

diagnosed with disease, it added." None of her publicly available research 

QaQers are dated after 2015. 
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The web Qage for the Wuhan Institute of Virology1s Lab of Diagnostic 

MlcrobiologY- does indeed still have "Huang Yanling" listed as a 2012 graduate 

student, and her picture and biography appear to have been recently removed 

- as have those of two other graduate students from 2013, Wang Mengyue 

and Wei Cuihua. 
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Her name still has a hyperlink, but the linked gage is blank. The pages for 

Wang Mengyue and Wei Cuihua are blank as well. 

~~w~<lt'\trofu~\as 

~~~~ 

(For what it is worth, the South China Morning Post- a newspaper seen as 

being_genera!ly_Qro-Beijing - reQorted on March 13 that "according to the 
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government data seen by the Post, a 55 year-old from Hubei province could 

have been the first person to have contracted Covid-19 on November 17.") 

On February 17, Zhen Shuji, a Hong Kong correspondent from th~_french 

public-radio servlce Radio France Internationale, reQorted: "when a reporter 

from the Beijing News of the Mainland asked the institute for rumors about 

patient zero, the institute first denied that there was a researcher Huang 

Yanling, but after learning that the name of the person on the Internet did exist, 

acknowledged that the person had worked at the firm but has now left the 

office and is unaccounted for." 

NOW WATCH: 'Health Officials Warn There Is No Proof Coronavirus Is 

Impacted By Spring And Summer Weather' 
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Tye says, "everyone on the Chinese internet is searching for [Huang Yanling] 

but most believe that her body was quickly cremated and the people working 

at the crematorium were perhaps infected as they were not given any 

information about the vi rus." (The U.S. Centers for Disease Control and 
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Prevention says that handling the body of someone who has died of 

Q.Oronavirus !$ $.pf_e - including embalming and cremation - as long as the 

standard safety protocols for handing a decedent are used. It's anyone's guess 

as to whether those safety protocols were sufficiently used in China before the 

outbreak's scope was known.) 

As Tye observes, a public appearance by Huang Yanling would dispel a lot of 

the public rumors, and is the sort of thing the Chinese government would 

quickly arrange in normal circumstances - presuming that Huang Yanling was 

still alive. Several officials at the Wuhan Institute of Virology issued public 

statements that Huang was in good health and that no one at the institute has 

been infected with COVID-19. In any case, the mystery around Huang Yanling 

may be moot, but it does point to the lab covering up something about her. 

China Global Television Network, a state-owned television broadcaster, 

illuminated another rumor while attempting to dispel it in a February 23 report 

entitled "Rumors Stop With the Wise": 

On February 17, a Weibo user who claimed herself to be Chen Quanjiao, a 

researcher at the Wuhan Institute of Virology, reported to the public that the 

Director of the Institute was responsible for leaking the novel coronavirus. 

The Weibo post threw a bomb in the cyberspace and the public was 

shocked. Soon Chen herself stepped out and declared that she had never 

released any report information and expressed great indignation at such 

identity fraud on Weibo. It has been confirmed that that particular Weibo 

account had been shut down several times due to the spread of 

misinformation about COVID-19. 

That Radio France Internationale report on February 17 also mentioned the 

next key part of the Tye's YouTube video. "Xiaobo Tao, a scholar from South 

China University of Technology, recently published a report that researchers at 
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Wuhan Virus Laboratory were splashed with bat blood and urine, and then 

quarantined for 14 days." HK01, another Hong Kong-based news site, 

regorted the same claim. 

This doctor's name is spelled in English as both "Xiaobo Tao" and "Botao 

Xiao." From 2011 to 2013, Botao Xiao was a QOStdoctora! research fellow at 

Harvard Medical School and Boston Chi!dren1s Hosgital, and his biograi:2hy is 

still on the web site of the South China University: of Techno!ogy.!, 
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At some point in February, Botao Xiao posted a research paper onto 

ResearchGate.net, " The Possible Origins of 2019-nCoV coronavirus.(I He is 

listed as one author, along with Lei Xiao from Tian You Hospital, which is 

affiliated with the Wuhan UniversitY. of Science and Technology_. The paper 

was removed a short time after it was posted, but archived images of its pages 

can be found here and here. 
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The first conclusion of Botao Xiao's paper is that the bats suspected of 

carrying the virus are extremely unlikely to be found naturally in the city, and 

despite the stories of "bat soup," they conclude that bats were not sold at the 

market and were unlikely to be deliberately ingested. 

The bats carrying CoV ZC45 were originally found in Yunnan or Zhejiang 

province, both of which were more than 900 kilometers away from the 

seafood market Bats were normally found to live in caves and trees. But the 

seafood market is in a densely-populated district of Wuhan1 a metropolitan 

[area] of ~15 mnlion people. The probability was very low for the bats to fly 
to the market. According to municipal reports and the testimonies of 31 

residents and 28 visitors/ the bat was never a food source in the city, and 

no bat was traded in the market. 

The U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention and the World Health 

Organization could not confirn1 if bats were present at the market. Botao Xiao's 

paper theorizes that the coronavirus originated from bats being used for 

research at either one of two research laboratories in Wuhan. 

We screened the area around the seafood market and identified two 

laboratories conducting research on bat coronavirus. Within ~ 280 meters 

from the market, there was the Wuhan Center for Disease Control & 

Prevention. WHCDC hosted animals in laboratories for research purpose, 

one ot which was specialized in pathogens co!!ection and identification. In 

one of their studies, 155 bats including Rhinolophus affinis were captured 

in Hubel provlnce, and other 450 bats were captured in Zhejiang province. 

The expert in Collection was noted in the Author Contributions (JHT). 

Moreover, he was broadcasted for collecting viruses on nation-wide 

newspapers and websites in 2017 and 2019. He described that he was 

once by attacked by bats and the blood of a bat shot on his skin. He knew 

the extreme danger of the infection so he quarantined himself tor 14 days. 

https://www.nat ionalreview.com/2020/04/coronavirus-china-trail-leading-back-to-wuhan-labs/ Page 13 of 17 
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In another accident! he quarantined himself again because bats peed 

on him. 

4/20/20, 11 :58 PM 

Surgery was performed on the caged animals and the tissue samples were 

collected for DNA and RNA extraction and sequencing. The tissue samples 

and contaminated trashes were source of pathogens. They were only ~280 

meters from the seafood market. The WHCDC was also adjacent to the 

Union Hospital (Figure 1, bottom) where the first group of doctors were 

infected during this epidemic. !t is plausible that the virus leaked around 

and some of them contaminated the initial patients in this epidemic, though 

solid proofs are needed in future study. 

The second laboratory was ~ 12 kilometers from the seafood market and 

belonged to Wuhan Institute of Virology, Chinese Academy of Sciences ... 

In summary, somebody was entangled with the evolution of 2019-nCoV 

coronavirus. !n addition to origins of natural recombination and 

intermediate host, the killer coronavirus probably originated from a 

laboratory in Wuhan. Safety level may need to be reinforced in high risk 

biohazardous laboratories. Regulations may be taken to relocate these 

laboratories far away from city center and other densely populated places. 

However, Xiao has told the Wat f Street Journal that he has withdrawn his 

Qager. "The speculation about the possible origins in the post was based on 

published papers and media, and was not supported by direct proofs," he said 

in a brief email on February 26. 

The bat researcher that Xiao's report refers to is virologist Tian Junhua, who 

works at the Wuhan Centre for Disease Control. In 2004, the World Health 

Organization determined that an outbreak of the SARS virus had been caused 

by two separate leaks at the Chinese Institute of Virology in Beijing. The 

Chinese government said that the leaks were a result of "negligence" and the 
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responsible officials had been punished. 

In 2017, the Chinese state-owned Shanghai Media Group made a seven­

minute documentarY.. about Tian Junhua, entitled "Youth in the Wild: Invisible 

Defender." Videographers followed Tian Junhua as he traveled deep into 

caves to collect bats. "Among all known creatures, the bats are rich with 

various viruses inside," he says in Chinese. "You can find most viruses 

responsible for human diseases, like rabies virus, SARS, and Ebola. 

Accordingly, the caves frequented by bats became our main battlefields." He 

emphasizes, "bats usually live in caves humans can hardly reach. Only in these 

places can we find the most ideal virus vector samples." 

One of his last statements on the video is: "In the past ten-plus years, we have 

visited every corner of Hubei Province. We explored dozens of undeveloped 

caves and studied more than 300 types of virus vectors. But I do hope these 

virus samples will only be preserved for scientific research and will never be 

used in real life. Because humans need not only the vaccines, but also the 

protection from the nature." 

The description of Tian Junhua's self-isolation came from a May 2017 report 

by Xinhua News Agency, regeated by the Chinese news site JQKNews.com: 

The environment for collecting bat samples is extremely bad. There is a 

stench in the bat cave. Bats carry a large number of viruses in their bodies. 

If they are not careful, they are at risk of infection. But Tian Junhua is not 

afraid to go to the mountain with his wife to catch Batman. 

Tian Junhua summed up the experience that the most bats can be caught 

by using the sky cannon and pulling the net. But in the process of 

operation, Tian Junhua forgot to take protective measures. Bat urine 

dripped on him like raindrops from the top. If he was infected, he could not 

find any medicine. lt was written in the report. 
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The wings of bats carry sharp claws. When the big bats are caught by bat 

tools, they can easily spray blood. Several times bat blood was sprayed 

directly on Tians skin, but he didn't flinch at alL After returning home, Tian 

Junhua took the initiative to isolate for half a month. As long as the 

incubation period of 14 days does not occur1 he wm be lucky to escape, the 

report said. 

Bat urine and blood can carry viruses. How likely is it that bat urine or blood 

got onto a researcher at either Wuhan Center for Disease Control & Prevention 

or the Wuhan Institute of Virology? Alternatively, what are the odds that some 

sort of medical waste or other material from the bats was not properly 

disposed of, and that was the initial transmission vector to a human being? 

Virologists have been vehement!Y. skegtical of the theory that COVI0-19 was 

engineered or deliberateiY. constructed in a laboratorY.; the director of the 

National Institutes of Health has written that recent genomic research 

"debunks such claims by providing scientific evidence that this novel 

coronavirus arose naturally." And none of the above is definitive proof that 

COVID-19 originated from a bat at either the Wuhan Center for Disease 

Control & Prevention or the Wuhan Institute of Virology. Definitive proof would 

require much broader access to information about what happened in those 

facilities in the time period before the epidemic in the city. 

But it is a remarkable coincidence that the Wuhan Institute of Virology was 

researching Ebola and SARS-associated coronaviruses in bats before the 

pandemic outbreak, and that in the month when Wuhan doctors were treating 

the first patients of COVID-19, the institute announced in a hiring notice that 

"a large number of new bat and rodent new viruses have been discovered and 

identified." And the fact that the Chinese government spent six weeks 

insisting that COVID-19 could not be spread from person to person means 

that its denials about Wuhan laboratories cannot be accepted without 
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independent verification. 

Jim GeraghtY. is the senior political correspondent of National Review. @jimgeraghtY. 
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The 2019-nCoV coronavirus has caused an epidemic of 28,060 laboratory-confirmed 

infections in human including 564 deaths in China by February 6, 2020. Two descriptions 

of the virus published on Nature this week indicated that the genome sequences from 

patients were 96% or 89% identical to the Bat CoV ZC45 coronavirus originally found in 

Rhinolophus affinis 1-2. It was critical to study where the pathogen came from and how it 

passed onto human. 

An article published on The Lancet reported that 41 people in Wuhan were found to 

have the acute respiratory syndrome and 27 of them had contact with Huanan Seafood 

Market 3. The 2019-nCoV was found in 33 out of 585 samples collected in the market after 

the outbreak. The market was suspicious to be the origin of the epidemic, and was shut 

down according to the rule of quarantine the source during an epidemic. 

The bats carrying CoV ZC45 were originally found in Yunnan or Zhejiang province, 

both of which were more than 900 kilometers away from the seafood market. Bats were 

normally found to live in caves and trees. But the seafood market is in a densely-populated 

district of Wuhan, a metropolitan of ~15 million people. The probability was very low for the 

bats to fly to the market. According to municipal reports and the testimonies of 31 residents 

and 28 visitors, the bat was never a food source in the city, and no bat was traded in the 

market. There was possible natural recombination or intermediate host of the coronavirus, 

yet little proof has been reported. 

Was there any other possible pathway? We screened the area around the seafood 

market and identified two laboratories conducting research on bat coronavirus. Within ~280 

meters from the market, there was the Wuhan Center for Disease Control & Prevention 

(WHCDC} (Figure 1, from Baidu and Google maps). WHCDC hosted animals in laboratories 

for research purpose, one of which was specialized in pathogens collection and identification 4-

6. In one of their studies, 155 bats including Rhinolophus affinis were captured in Hubei 

province, and other 450 bats were captured in Zhejiang province 4• The expert in collection 

was noted in the Author Contributions (JHT). Moreover, he was broadcasted for collecting 

viruses on nation-wide newspapers and websites in 2017 and 2019 7,8. He described that 

he was once by attacked by bats and the blood of a bat shot on his skin. He knew the 

extreme danger of the infection so he quarantined himself for 14 days 7 • In another accident, 

he quarantined himself again because bats peed on him. He was once thrilled for capturing 

a bat carrying a live tick 8• 

Surgery was performed on the caged animals and the tissue samples were collected for 

DNA and RNA extraction and sequencing 4· 5. The tissue samples and contaminated trashes 

were source of pathogens. They were only -280 meters from the seafood market. The 

WHCDC was also adjacent to the Union Hospital (Figure 1, bottom) where the first group 

of doctors were infected during this epidemic. It is plausible that the virus leaked around 

and some of them contaminated the initial patients in this epidemic, though solid proofs 

are needed in future study. 

The second laboratory was ~12 kilometers from the seafood market and belonged to 

Wuhan Institute of Virology, Chinese Academy of Sciences 1• 9• 10. This laboratory 

reported that the Chinese horseshoe bats were natural reservoirs for the severe acute 

respiratory syndrome coronavirus (SARS-CoV) which caused the 2002-3 pandemic 9 • 

The principle investigator participated in a project which generated a chimeric virus using 



the SARS-CoV reverse genetics system, and reported the potential for human 

emergence 10 . A direct speculation was that SARS-CoV or its derivative might leak from 

the laboratory. 

In summary, somebody was entangled with the evolution of 2019-nCoV coronavirus. 

In addition to origins of natural recombination and intermediate host, the killer coronavirus 

probably originated from a laboratory in Wuhan. Safety level may need to be reinforced in 

high risk biohazardous laboratories. Regulations may be taken to relocate these 

laboratories far away from city center and other densely populated places. 
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Clinical features of patients infected with 2019 novel 

coronavirus in Wuhan, China 
Chao/inHoan9•, Yernin9 Wang •, Xingwang l.i*, Lili P.en",}ianpir,g Zhao', Yi Hu", Li Zhang, Guohui Fan,}iuyan9 Xo, XiaoyingGu, 

Z!ienslwn 01en9, Ting Yu,jiaan Xio, Yuan Wei, \1/enjuan Wu. Xuelei Xie, Wen Yin. Hui Li. Min Liu. Yan Xiao. Hong Gao, Li Guo.Jun_gnng Xie, 
Guangfa Wang, Rongmengjiang, Zlmncheng Gao, Qi Jin,JianwciWangf, BinCaot 

Summary 
Background A recent cluster of pneumonia cases in Wuhan, China, was c.aused by a novel betacoronavirns, the 
2019 novel coronavirus (2019-nCoV). We report the epidemiological, clinical, laboratory, and radiological characteristics 
and treatment and clinical outcomes of these patients. 

Methods All patients with suspected 2019-nCoV were admitted lo a designated hospital in Wuhan. We p rospectively 
collected and analysed data on patients with lahoratory-confumed 2019-nCoV in fection by real-time RT-PCR and 
next-generation sequencing. Data were obtained with standardised data collt.'Ction forms shared by WHO and the 
Inter national Severe Acute Respiratory and Emerging Infection Con sortium from electronic medical records. 
Researchers also directly communicated with patients or their families to ascertain epidemiological and symptom 
data. Outcomes were also compared between patients who had been admitted to the in tensive care unit (ICU) and 
those who had not. 

Findings By Jan 2, 2020, 41 admitted hospital patients had been identified as having laboratory-confirmed 2019-nCoV 
infection. Most of the infected patients were men (30 [73%] of 41); less than half had underlying diseases (13 [32%]), 
including diabetes (eight [20%]), hype11ension (six [15%]), and cardiovascular disease (si.x [1S%1). Mt.'liian age was 
49 •O years (!QR 41 ·0-58 -0). 27 (66%) of 41 patients had been exposed to Huanan seafood market. One family cluster 
was found. C,ommon symptoms at onset of illness were fever (40 [98%] of 41 patients), cough (31 [76%1), and myalgia or 
fatigue (18 [44%]); less common symptoms were sputum production (11 (28%) of 39), headache (three (8%) of 38), 
haemoptysis (two [5%] of39), and diarrhoea (one (3%) of38). Dyspnoea developed in 22 (55%) of40 patients (median 
time from illness onset to dyspnoea 8· 0 days [IQR 5-0-13-0]). 26 (63%) of 41 patients had lymphopenia. All 41 patients 
had pneumonia with ahnonnal findfogs on chest CT. Complications included acute respiratory distress syndrome 
(12 (29%]), RNAaemia (six (15%]), acute cardiac injmy (five (12%]) and secondary infection (four (10%1). 13 (32%) patients 
were admitted to an ICU and sh: (15%) died. Compared with non-ICU patients. ICU patients had higher plasma levels 
of1L2, IL7, 1110, GSCF, IPlO, MCPl, MIPlA, and TNFo. 

lnterpretatio1, Tile 2019-nCoV infoction caust.>d dusters of severe rt.-spiratory illness similar to severe acute respiratory 
syndrome coronavirus and was associated with ICU admission and high mortality. Major gaps in out· knowledge of 
the origin, epidemiology, duration of human transmission, and clinical spectrum of disease need fulfilment by futllre 
studies. 

Fundin9 Ministry of Science and Technology, Chinese Academy of Medical Sciences, National Natural Science 
Foundation of China, and Beijing Municipal Science aud Technology Commission. 

Copyright © 2020 ·Elsevier ltd. All rights reserved. 

Introduction 
Coronaviruses are enveloped non-segmented positive­
sense RNA viruses belonging to the fa mily Coronaviridae 
and the order Nidovirales and broadly distributed in 
humans and other mammals.' Although most tnm1an 
coronavirus infections are mild, the epidemics of 
the two betacoronaviruses, severe acute respira tory 
syndrome coronavirus (SARS-CoV)2-' and Middle East 
re spirato ry syndrom e coronavirus (MERS-CoV),' ·" have 
caused more than 10000 cumulative case s in the past 
two decades, with mortality rates of JO% for SARS-CoV 
and. 37% for MERS-CoV.7·• The coronaviruses already 
identified might on1y be the tip of the iceberg. with 
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potentially more novel and severe zoonotic events to be 
revealed. 

In December, 2019, a series of pneumonia cases of 
unknown cause emerged in Wu han, Hubei, China, 
with clinical presentations greatly resembling viral 
pneumonia.' Deep sequencing analysis from lower 
respiratory tract samples indicated a novel coronavirus, 
wh ich was named 2019 novel coronavi rus (2019-nCoV). 
Thus far, more than 800 confirmed cases , including in 
health -care workers. have been iden tified i.n Wuhan. and 
several exported cases have been confirmed in other 
provinces in China, ~nd.in Thailand . Japan, South Korea, 
and the USA.1~ 13 
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Research in context 

Evidence before this study 
Human coronaviruses, including hCoV-229E, 00\3, Ni.63, 
and HK U1, cause mild respiratory diseases. Fatal coronavirus 
infections that have emerged in the past two decades are severe 
acute ;·espiratory syndrome coronavirus (SARS-CoV) and the 
Middle East re5piratory syndrome coronavirns. We searched 
PubMed and the China National Knowledge Infrastructure 
database for articles published up to Jan 11, 2020, using the 
keywords "novel coronovirus", "2019 novel corona.virus", 
or "2019-nCoV". No published work about the hunian infection 
,a used by the 2019 novel coronavirus (2019-nCoV) could be 
identified. 

Added value of this study 
We report the epidemiological, clinical, laboratory. and 
radiological characteristics, t reatment, and clinical outcom~ of 
41 laboratoiy-c.onfirmcd cases infected with 2019-nCoV. 

We aim to describe epidemiological, d inical. laborato1y, 
and radiological characteristics, trcatrnent. and outcomes 
of patients confirmed to have 2019-nCoV ir1fection, and to 
compare the clinical fea tures between intensive care unit 
{ICU) and non-ICU patients. We hope ou.r study findings 

or will inform the global community of the emergence of 
this novel corona virus and its clinicai features. PmfJianwci Wang, NHC Key 

1.al>oratory of Systems Biology of 
P athogons and Ch ri stop he 

Merieux Laboratory, Ins ti tute of 

Pathogen e;ology, Chine"" 
Ac.ademy of Medical Xienc.e.r, 

-:::ind Peking Union Medical 
College, lkiji11g 100730, Chi11<1 

wangjw28@163,rnm 
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Methods 
Patients 
Following the p11eumo11ia cases of unknown cause 
reported in Wuha n and considering the shared history 
of exposure to Huanan seafood market across the 
patients. an epidemiological alert was released by the 
local heaith au thor.ity on Dec 31, 2019, a11d the market 
was shut down on fan 1, 2020. Meanwhile, 59 suspected 
cases with fever and dry cough were transferred to a 
designated hospital starting from Dec 31, 2019. An 
expert team of physicians, epidemiologists, virologists . 
and government officials was soon formed after the 
aiert. 

Since the cause was unknown at the 011set of these 
emerging infections, the diagnosis of pneumonia of 
unknown cause in Wuhan was based on clinjcai 
characteristics, chest imaging, and the ruling out of 
common bacterial and ..,;ral pathogens that cause 
pneumonia. Suspected patients were isoiated using 
airborne precautions in the designated hospital, Jin Yin­
tan Hospital (Wuhan, China), and fit-tested N95 masks 
and airborne precautions for aerosol-generating 
procedures were taken. This study was approved by the 
National Health Commission of China and Ethics 
Commission of Jin Yin-tan Hospital (KY-2020-01..01) . 
Wri tten informed consent was waived by the Ethics 
Commission of the d signated hospital for merging 
infectious diseases. 

27 (66%) of 41 patients had a histoiy of direct exposure to the 
Huanan seafood market '!he median age of patients was 
49.oyears (!QR 41.0.58,0), and 13 {32%) patients had underlying 
disease. All patient, had pneumonia.A third of patients were 
admitted to intensive care units, and six died. High concentrations 
of cytokines were recorded in plasma of critically ill patients 
infected with 2019-nCoV. 

Implications of all the available evidence 
2019-nCoV caused dusters oHatal pneumonia with d inical 
presentation greatly resem bl ing SAHS-CoV. Patients i,1fected 
with 2019-nCoV might develop acute respiratory distress 
syndrome, have a high likelihood of admission to intensive care, 
and n1ightdie. The cytokine storm could be associated with 
disease severity. More efforts should be made to knowthe 
whole spectrum and pathophysiology of the new dise.1se. 

Procedures 
l.i)cal centres for disease control and prevention collected 
respiratory, blood, and faeces sp,x:irncns, then shipped 
them to designated authoritative laboratories to detect the 
pathogen (NHC Key U1boratory of Systems Biolog>' of 
Pathogens and Christophe Merieux Laboratory, Beijing, 
China). A novel coronavirus, which was named 2019-nCoV, 
was isolated then from lower respiratory tract specimen 
and a diagnostic test for this virus was developed soon 
after that t4 Of 59 suspected c.1ses. 41 patients were 
confirmed to be infected with 2019-nCoV. The presence of 
2019-nCoV in respiratory specimens was detected by next­
generation sequencing or real-time RT-PCR methods. The 
primers and probe target to envelope gene of CoV were 
used and the sequences were as follows: fo1ward primer 
5' -ACTICTTITICITGCTITCGTGGT-3'; reverse primer 
5'-GCAGCAGTACGCACACAATC-3'; and the probe 
5'CYS-CTAGTTACACTAGCCATCCrfACTGC-3' B H Ql. 
Conditions for the amplifications were so•c for 15 min, 
95°C for 3 min, followed. by 45 q 'cles of 95•c for 15 s and 
Go·c for 30 s. 

Initial in estigations included a complete blood count, 
coagulation profile, and serum biochemical test {including 
renai and liver ftmction, creatine kinase. lactate dehydro­
genase. and electrolytes). Respirato1y specimens, including 
nasal and pharyngeal swabs, bronchoalveolar lavage fluid. 
sputum, 01· broncbfai aspirates were tested for common 
vim ses, including influenza, avian in£1.uenza, respiratory 
syncytial ..,;rus, adenovirus, parainfluenza vims, SARS-CoV 
and MERS-C.oV using real-time RT-PCR assays approved 
by the China Food and Drug Administration. Routine 
bacte1ial and fungal examinations were aiso performed. 

Given the emergence of the 2019-nCoV pneumonia 
cases during the influenza season, antibiotics {orally and 
intravenous!y) and oseltamivir {oraliy 75 mg t\'1ice daily) 
were empiricaliy administered .. Co1iicosteroid therapy 
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(methylprednisokme 40-120 1ng per day) was given as 
a combined regimen if severe community-acquired 
pneumonia was diagnosed by physidans at the 
designated hospitai. Oxygen support {eg, nasal cannula 
and invasive mechanical ventilation) was administered 
to patients according to the severity of hypoxaemia. 
Repeated tests for 2019-nCoV were done in patient'> 
confirmed to have 2019-nCoV infection to show viral 
clearance before hospital discharge or discontinuation of 
isolation. 

Data collection 
We reviewed clinical charts, nursing records, laboratory 
findings, and cbest x-rays for all patients with Jaboratory­
confo:mcd 2019-nCoV infection who were reported by 
the local health anthorily. The admission data of 
these patients was from Dec 16, 2019, to Jan 2, 2020. 
Epidemiological. clinical. laboratory, and radiological 
characteristics and treatment and outcomes data were 
obtained with standardised data collection forms 
{modified case record form for severe acute respira­
tory infection clinical characterisation shared by WHO 
and the In ternational Severe Amte Respiratory and 
Emerging Infection Consortium) from electronic 
medical records. Two researchers also independently 
reviewed the data collection forms to double check the 
data collected. To ascertain the epidemiological and 
symptom data , which were not avaiiable from electronic 
medical records, the researchers also directly 
communicated with patknts or their families to ascertain 
epidemiologicai and symptom data. 

Cytokine and chemokine measurement 
To characterise the effect of corona virus on the production 
of cytokines or chemokines in the acute phase of the 
illness. plasma cytokines and chemokines (I L1 B, ILlRA, 
II..2, Il.4, ILS, II.6, 11..7, 11..8 (also known as CXCI..8), IL9. 
ILlO, IL12p70, IL13, !LIS, IL17A, Eotaxin (also known as 
CCLll), basic FGF2, GCSF (CSF3), GMCSF (CSF2), 
!FNy, IP1O (CXCUO), MCPl (CCL2), MJPJA (CCU). 
MJPlB (CCL4), PDGFB, RANTES (CCl..5), TNFa, and 
VEG FA were measured using Human Cytokme Standard 
27-Plex Assays panel and the Bio-Plex 200 system 
(Bio-Rad. Hercuies, CA, USA) for all patients according 
to fhe manufoctt:u-er's instructions. The plasma samples 
from fom he-.althy adults were used as controls for cross­
cornparison. The median time from being transferred to 
a designated hospital to the biood sample collection was 

4 days {IQR 2-Sj. 

Detection ofcoronavirus in plasma 
Each 80 µL plasma sample from the patients and contacts 
was added. into 24-0 itL of Trizol LS (J0296028; Thermo 
Fisher Scientific, Carlsbad, CA, US1>-\) in the Biosafety 
Level 3 laboratory. Tot.al RNA w:is extr:icted by Direct-zol 
RNA Miniprep kit (R2050; Zymo research. Irvine. CA. 
USA) according to the ma1111fach1rer's instructions and 
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.50 pl.. elution was obtained for each sample. 5 pl.. RNA 
was used for rcal-tirne RT-PCR, which ta1geted the 
NP gene using AgPath-lD One-Step R1:PcR Reagent 
{AM1005; Thermo Fisher Scientific). The final reaction 
mix concentration of the primers was 500 nM and probe 
was 2.00 nM. Real-time RT-PCR was performed using the 
following conditions: so•c for 15 min and 95°Cfor 3 min, 
SO cycles of amplification at 95•c for 10 s and 60°C for 
45 s. Since we did not perform tests for detecting 
iJ1fectious virus in blood, we avoided the term viraemia 
and used RNf\aemia instead. RNAaemia was defined as a 
positive result for real-time RT-PCR in the plasma sample. 

Definitions 
Acute respiratory distress syndrome (ARDS) and shock 
were defined according to the interim guidance of WHO 
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Ailpatients(n-41) ICU care (n43) No ICU care (n-28) pval11t 

Charad,ristks 

Age,years 49·0 (41-0-58 0) 49·0 (41 0-61-0) 49·0 (41-0-57·5) 0-60 

Sex 0 -24 

MNl 30 (73%) 11 (85%) 19(68%) 

Women 1l (27%) 2 (15%) 9(32%) 

fiuanan seafood market 27(66%) 9(69%) 18(64%) 0-75 
exposure 

Current srnoldng 3 (7%) 0 3 (11%) 0 ·31 

Anycort1()rbidity 13 (32";o) 5(38%) 8(29'1,) 0·53 

Diabet<!'s 8(20¼) l (8½) 7(25¾) 0-16 

Hypcrte:nsion 6(15%) 2(15%) 4(14%) 0-93 

c~diOV.)S<ular diw.:aS<' 6(15%) 3 (23%) 3(11%) 0-32 

Chronic.: obstn,ctivo l (2%) 1(8<(,) 0 0-14 

pulmonary disease 

Malignancy 1(2%) 0 1(4¼) 0-49 

Chronic fi v<?-:- di~~ase t(2%) 0 1(41(,) 0,68 

Signs and ~ymptOm$ 

Fever 40(98%) 13 (100%) 27(96%) 0-68 

liighesttemperature, 'C 0-037 

<37·3 1(2%) 0 1(4o/o) 

37·3-38-0 8 (20%j 3 (23%) 5(18%) 

36·1··39·0 16(44%) 7(54%) 11. (39%) 

>39 ·0 14 (34%) 3 (23%) 11 (39%) 

Cough 31 (76%) 11 (85%) 20(71%) 0·35 

Mya!9ia or fo1i9t...•c 18(44%) 7(54%) 11 (39%) 0-38 

Spvtvo, prodv<.ti<>r"l ll/39(28¼) 5(38%) 6/26(23¾) 0 -32 

HCfadadle 3/38(8%) 0 3/'25(12¼) O,lO 

►famnoptysis J/39(5%) 1 (8¼) 1/26 {4~) 0-46 

Diarrhoea 1i38(3%) 0 1/25(4%) 0 ,66 

Dyspnoea 22i40(55%) 12 (92%) 10/27(37%) 0-0010 

Days from il!n~s on~t to 8-0 {5 -0-13-0) 8,0 (6,0-17,0) 5.5 (2-0-10-0 ) 0-22 
d1-spr.O<!a 

Days from first adrniss!on 5•0 {1·0-8·0) 8 ,0 (5·0-14·0) 1,0 (l·0-6·5) 0 ,0023 

to transfer 

Systoiic pressure-, mrn Hg 125·0 (119·0-·135·0) 145·0 (123-0-167-0) 122·0 (118·5··129·5) 0-018 

Respir.itory rntc 12 (29-l<.) 8 (62%) 4(14%) 0 -0023 
>24 breaths perrn!n 

l).ata are-mt..><l:.1:i (IQR):. n {%), -::>r n/rt (~) wh-::re N i$ tht tot.ii number of pa,fomb wHh d'(ail(tb:e Wu,. p-vah.u. .. 'i 
<.omi,anng !(lJ c~re ,nd"" ICU <.arear~ from x' t-.s!, Fi,he.r's<:xa,tte-;t, or lf.a,,n.\1/hitr.e, U t-.st 2◊19-nC◊V•2019 
11ovelcor<>navin,:;.. ICU-irit!'.?nsiv;i c.a.r,:: unjt. 

Ta.blc t : lnmographics and baseline charact~ristics of patients infected with 20l9•-nCoV 
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for novel coronavims.9 Hypoxaemia was defined as arterial 
oxygen tension (PaO2) over inspirato1y o>.-ygen fraction 
(Fl02) ofless than 300 mm Hg.'s Acute kidney injury was 
identified and classified on the basis of the highest sernm 
a ·eatini.ne level or urine output c1iteria according to the 
kidney disease improving global outcomes classification.'° 
Secondary infection was diagnosed if the patient.'> had 
clinical sympton1s or signs of nosocomial pneumonia or 
bacteraemia, and was combined with a positive culture of a 
new pathogen from a lowe.r respiratory tract specimen 
(including the sputum, transb:ache;1l aspirates, or imm­
choa1veo1ar lavage fluid. or from blood samples taken 2:48 h 

after admission)." Cardiac injury followed the definition 
used in our previous study in H7N9 patients.'' In brief, 
cardiac inju,y was diagnosed. if scrum levels of cardiac 
biomarkers (eg, troponin I) were above the 99th percentile 
u pper reference limit, or new abnonnalities were shown in 
electrocardiography and echocardiography. 

Statistical analysis 
Continuous variables were expressed as median (IQR) 
and compared with the .Mann-Wh itney U test; categorical 
variables were expressed as number (%) a11d compared 
by x2 test or Fisher's exact test between ICU care and 
no ICU care groups. Boxplots were drawn to describe 
plasma cytokine and chemokine concentrations. 

A two-sided a of less than 0 -05 was considered statis­
ticaily significant. Statistical analyses were done using the 
SAS software. version 9.4, unless otherwise indicated. 

Role of the funding source 
The fond.er of the study had no roie in study design, data 
collection, data analysis, data interpretation, or writing of 
the report. 'D1e corresponding authors had ful1 access to 
all the data in the stud}' and had Gnal responsibility for 
the decision to submit for publication. 

Results 
By Jan 2, 2020, 41 ,idmitted ho~pital patienn; were 
identified as laboratory-confirmed 2019-nCoV infection in 
Wuhan. 20 j49%]) of the 2019-nCoV-infoctcd patients were 
aged 25-49 >•ears, and 14 (34%) were aged 50--64 years 
(figure lA). The medjan age of the patients was 49 • 0 years 
(!QR 41-0-58-0; table 1). In our cohort of the fi rst 
41 patients as of Jan 2, no children or adolescents were 
infected. Of the 41 patients, 13 {32%) were admitted to the 
ICU because they required high-Row nasal cannula or 
higher-level oxygen support measures to correct hypox­
aemia. Most ofthe infected patients were men (30 [73%]); 
less than half had underlying diseases (13 (32%]) , inc­
luding diabetes (eight [20%]). hypertension (six [15%]), 
and cardiovascular disease (six [l 5%]). 

27 {66%) patients had dlrcd exposure to Huanan 
seafood. market (figu.re 18). Market exposure was simil:i.r 
between the patients with ICU care (nine [69%]) ;.nd 
those with non-ICU care (]8 [64%]). The symptom onset 
date of the first pat ient identified was Dec 1. 2019. None 
ofhis family members developed fever or any respiratory 
symptoms. No epidemiological link was found between 
the fi.rst patient and later cases. The first fatal case, 
who had continuous exposure to the market. was 
admitted to hospital because of a 7-day history of fever, 
cough, and dyspnoea. s days after illness onset, his wife, 
a 53-}'Car-old woman who ha.d no known history of 
exposure to the market, also presented with pneumonia 
and was hospitalised in the isolation ward. 

The most common symptoms at onset of .illness we.re 
fever (40 [98%] of 41 p.1tients), cough (31 [76%]). and 
myalgia or fatigue (18 [44%]); less common symptoms 
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were sputum production (11 [28%] of 39), head.ache 
(three [8%] of 38), h,1emoptysis (two [5%] of 39). and 
diarrhoea (one {3%] of 38: table J). More than haif of 
patients (22 [55%] of 40) developed dyspnoea. The median 
durahon from illness on,.qet to dyspnoea was 8- 0 days 
(IQR 5-0-13-0) . The median time from onset of symp· 
toms to first hospital admission was 7-0 days (4· 0-8 • 0), 
to shortness of breath was 8 -0 days (5·0-13 ·0), to ARDS 
was 9-0 days (8·0-14-0), to mechanical ventilation 1Nas 
10-5 days (7 ·0-14-0), and to ICU admission was 10· 5 days 
(8 • 0 ... 1,7 -0; figure 2). 

Tue blood counts of patients on ad.mission showed 
Jeucopenia (white blood cell count less than 4-xJ09/L; 
ten (25%] of 40 patients) and lymphopenia ~ymphocyte 
count <1·0xJ09/J..; 26 (63%] patients; tabk 2) . Pro­
thromb.in time and D-dimer level o.n admission were 
higher in ICU patients (median prothrnmbin time 
12 ·2 s (lQR 11 · 2-13 -4]; median D-dimer level 2-4 mg/L 
[O • 6-14-4]) than non-I CU patients (median prothrombin 
time 10-7 s 19·8-12·1], p=0-012; median D-dimer level 
0-5 rng/L (0 •J-0-8], p=0-0042). Levels of aspartate 
aminotransferase were increased in 15 (37%) of 
41 patients, induding eight (62%) of l3 ICU patients 
and seven (25%) of28 non-ICU patients. Hypersensitive 
troponin I (hs-cTnl) was increased substantially in 
five patients, in whom the diagnosis of virus-related 
cardiac inju.ry was made. 

Most patients had nom1al serum levels of procakitonin 
on admi.ssio.n (procalci.tonin <0-lng/mL; 27 [G9%]patients; 
table 2). Four ICU pJ!il•nts developed. secondary infec­
tions. Three of the four patients with secondaiy infection 
had procakitonin greater than 0- 5 ng/mL (0-69 ng/mL. 
l. ·46 ng/mL, and 6-48 ng/mL). 

On .drnission, abnormalities in chest CT images were 
detected among all patients. Of the 41 patients, 40 (98%) 
had bilatera1 involvement (table 2). The typical findings 
of chest CT images of ICU patients on admission were 
bilateral multiple lobttlar and subsegmental areas of 
consolidation (figure 3A). TI1e represent&tive chest CT 
find.ings of non-ICU patients showed bi.lateral ground­
glass opacity and subsegment-al areas of consolidation 
(figure 38). Later chest CT images showed bilateral 
ground-glass opacity, whereas the consolidatioJ1 had 
been resolved (figure 3C). 

Ini tial plasma IUB. !URA, IL7. Il..8. IL9. ILl0. basic 
FGF, GCSF, GMCSF, IFNy. IPlO, MCPl, MIPlA, MIP1B, 
PDGF. TNFo:, and VEG F concentrations were higher in 
both ICU patients and non-ICU patients than in healthy 
adults {appendix pp 6-7). Plasma ievels of ILS, IL12p70, 
IL15, Eo1',xin. and RANTES were similar between healthy 
adults and patients infected with 20l9-nCoV. Further 
comparison between ICU and non-ICU patients showed 
that piasma concentrations ofll2. IL7, IL10, GCSF, JP10, 
MCP1 .. MIP1A, and TN Fa were higher in ICU patients 
i:han non-ICU patients. 

Ail patient<; had pneumonia. Common complications 
included ARDS (12 (29%] of 41 patients). followed by 

www.thelancn.,on, Vol 395 February 15, 2020 

Onset Adm:ssior. 

Dyspnoea 

Articles 

Acute 1espi1at<»)' 
cf stress syndrome 

I 

l:1!ensivt.' u1re 
unit ;,.dmi$$:on 

41 
{1000,) 

I 

'l 

8 

Days 

9 

10-S 

Medicmltmc 

41 21 11 

(100~) (5~%) (17:"'; 

NlJmber of cases 

F19ure 2: Tin1eline of 2019-nCoV cases after onset of illness 

RN.t\aemia (six [15%] patients), acute c.ardiac m1ury 
{Ji.ve [J2%] patients), and secondary infection (four [10%) 
patients; table 3). Invasive mechanical ventilation was 
required in four (10%) patients. with two of triem (5%) had 
refractory hypoxaemia and received extracorporeal mem­
brane oxygenation as salvage therapy. All pali.ents were 
admi_nistered with empirical antibiotic treatment, and 
38 (93%) patients received antiviral therapy (oseltamivir). 
Additionally, nine (22%) patients were given systematic 
corticosteroids. A comparison of clinical features between 
patients who received and did not receive systematic 
co1ticosteroids is in the appendix {pp J. .. S). 

As of Jan 22, 2020, 28 (68%) of 41 patients have been 
discharged and six (15%) patients have died. Fitness 
for discharge was based on abatement of .fever for at 
least 10 days, with improvement of chest radiographic 
evidence and viral clearance in respiratory samples from 
upper respiratory tract. 

Discussion 
We report here a cohort of 4-1 patients with laboratory­
confirmed 2019-nCoV infection. Patients had serious, 
sometimes fatal, pneumonia and were admitted to the 
designated hospital in Wuhan. China, by Jan 2. 2020. 
Clinical presentations greatly resemble SARS-CoV. 
Patients with severe illness deve1oped ARDS and 
required ICU admission and oxygen therapy. The time 

16 
(39%) 

between hospital ad.mission and ARDS was as short seeo,,i;.,dorappendix 

as 2 days. At this stage, fae mortality rate is high for 
2019-nCoV, because six (15%) of 41 patients in this cohort 
died. 

The number of deaths is rising quickly. As of 
Jan 24, 2020, 83S laboratory-confirmed 2019-nCoV 
infections were reported .in China. wi th 25 fatal 
cases. Reports have been released of exported cases in 
many provinces in China. and in other countries; 

.,. 

50'1 



I Articles 

502 

All patients (n<-4.1} 1<.U e31e (n .. 13) NolCUcare(n"'28) pval11e 

White blood c~lkount, x 10' pe: I. 6 -2 (4·1-10·5) 

<4 10140 ('25%) 

4•·10 18140(45%) 

>10 12/40(30%) 

Noutrophil count, x 10• ["" L 5 ·0(3-3-8•9) 

Lymphoc;t.? e-ount, x 10'pet l 0,8 (06-·1·1) 

<1·0 26141(63¾) 

>1·0 15/41 (37%) 

11·3 (5·8-12-1) 

1/13 (8%) 

5113 (3°8%) 

7/13 (54%) 

10-6 (5·0-11·8) 

o.,i (0-2--0-8) 

11113 (85¾) 

2/13 (15~4) 

S·7(3'1-7-6l 

9i27/33'.~) 

nm{48%J 
5!27(19%) 

4·4 (2-0-6, 1) 

f.,0 (0•7••1~1) 

lS/28(54%) 

13/28(46%) 

0 -011 

0-041 

0 -00069 

().0()41 

0-045 

H,er.ioglobin. g/L 126,D(118,0-1,40-0) 122·0 (11.1.,0 -128-0) 130.5 (120,f>-140-0) 0-?.0 

0-45 

045 

Platt?let COVflt► x10" per l 164.5 (131·5-263--0) 196-0 (165,0-263.oJ 1490(131·0-263-0) 

<lOIJ 2 /40 (5%) 

,100 38/40(95%) 

Prothrombin time, s l l-t(lQ.1-12 ·4) 

Activated p,'trtiai thrornh.op(asfin tinJe, s- ZJ,()(24·2-]4·1) 

{)·dimc.:r, m9/l. O·S (0·3•·1.·3) 

Albo,,, .-,,9/t. 31,.4 (28,9 .. 36-0) 

Al,rnine 3n,inobans:fe:._:ts.e, U/L 32-0 (21-0-50,0) 

A!,f.t:Jt!<n·e :Jminotransfor.lse, U/1. 34.0 (26-0.-48-0) 

<40 26/41 (63%) 

>40 15/41 {37%) 

Total bilirubin, rr::i,ol/L 1.1-7(9·5••1.3'9) 

Potassium. mmol/L 4 2 (3·8-4-8) 

1/13'!)¾) 

12/l3i92%) 

12·2 (11·2-13·4) 

26·2 (22·5-33-9) 

2·4 (0-6-14·4) 

27.9 (26.3-30,g) 

4 g.o (29 ,0-115-0J 

4 4.0 (30-0.-70-t)) 

S/'13{38%) 

8i13{52%) 

l.40 (11-9··32·9) 

4 -6 (4-0-5·0) 

1/27(4%) 

26/27(95%) 

10·7 (9·8-12-1) 

zn (24-8-34·1) 

0.5 (0·3· -0-8) 

34, 7 (30,2-36,S) 

·27.0 (19 ·5-40 ,0) 

34•0 (24-0-40-S) 

2t/28(75'll) 

7/28(25%) 

10,8 (9-4--12-3) 

4·1.(3 8-4-6) 

0·012 

0·57 

0-004 2 

0 -00066 

0 -038 

0-10 

0-025 

Scdivn,, mmol/L l39·0 (137·0-140·D) 138,0 (137·0-139·0) 139.0 (137·5-140·5) 

0-011 

0·17 

026 

0-84 

0 -42 

Cmatinine, pmni/1. 74•2 (57·5•·85-7} 79-0 (SH~92•7l 73'3 (57-5--84-7) 

•133 37/41(90%) 11/13 {85%} 26/28(93%) 

>133 4/41(10 %) 2i13 {15%) .2/28(7%) 

Creatine kinase, lJ/t 132-5 (62-0--21.9·0) 132·0 (82-0-493-0) 133-0 (61.-0--189-0) 0 -31 

0 -21 <185 27/40(68%) 7/13 (54%) 20/ 27(74%) 

>185 13i40 (33%) 6!13 (46%) 7/27(26%) 

l.a:tatodehydrag<masc, U/~ 286,() (242•\)-4t)80) 400.0 (323-0.5i8,0J 28!,0 (i33•0·-357·0) 0,0044 

◊036 s.245- 11/4() (23!~) 

>245 29/40(73%) 

H:,persensitive troponin I, pg/rnl 3-4(1-1-·9·1) 

>28 {99th perce ntile) 5/41 (12%) 

Procakit<m?n, l'19l01l 0-1 (0-1- 0-1) 

<O•l 27139(69%) 

w ·l to <v-,5 7/39(18 %) 

~0-2:, tO <0·5 2/39(5%) 

.0.5 3/39(8%) 

Bilateral involvement of chest 40/41(98%) 
radiograph; 

Cyde threshold of respiratory tract 32·2 (310-34·5) 

1/13 (8%) 

l 2/l3 (92'!'.) 

3-3 (3·0-1.630) 

4/13 (3'.l.%) 

().1 (0-1-04) 

6M !50%) 

3fl2 l,5%) 

Oi12 
3f1.2 {?.5%)' 

13/13 (10011,) 

31·1 (~00-33·5) 

10trf (;37%J 

17/27(63%) 

3·5 (07-5-4) 

1/28(4%) 

0-1 (<i-1- 0.l) 

21/27 (78%) 

4rz7c1s•~1 

2/27("/%) 

0/27 

27/28(96%) 

32·2 (31-1-34-i') 

0-075 

0 -017 

0 .031 

0 ,019 

0 ,68 

Dati: art:>m,~ r:n (iQR) or nJN· (%} wher~ N is the t◊til r:ur.,be? of p,H.ients with available d,1ta p vatu\~ comp,1riJ1~J ICU i.":are and no i(lJ c~re a1e·frorn x~. Fish'!'r'5 ~a<.tte-st:, 
er Mc,nn-.Wh:t.n,-:ylJ te:~t. 2019 .. necv ... 201.9 nO\~! c~-onavit'lJS. tc;J .. mtensive cnre umt .,.Com.t'llkatedt.}"Pkal se<Qnditty infe..-:tion.during-theiirsthospitalisation. 

fob/e 2, laborat◊ry foidings of 1>atie11ts infectEd with 2019-nCoV 011 <1dmission t.o hospital 

some hea!th-care workers have also been infected in 
Wuhan. Taken together, evidence so far indicates 
human transmission for 2019-nCoV. We are concerned 
that 2019-nCoV could have acquired foe abiiity for 
efficient h.:rrr1:rn transmission.19 Airborne precautions, 
such as a fit-tested N9S respira tor, and. other personal 
protective equipment are strongly recommended. To 

prevent further spread of the disease in health-c.are 
settings that are ca.ring for patients infected with 
2019-nCoV, on$et of fever and respiratory symp• 
toms should be closely monitored among health-care 
workers. Testing of respiratory specimens should be 
done immedia tely once a diagnosis is st1spected. Senun 
antibodies shou1d be tested among health-care workers 
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before and after thei r exposure to 2019-nCoV for iden­
tification of asymptomatic infrctions. 

Similari ties of clinical features between 201.9-nCoV and 
previous betacoronavirus infections have been noted. In 
this cohort, most patients presented with fever, dry 
cough. dyspnoea. and bilateral ground-glass opacities on 
chest er scans. ·11tese features of 2019-nCoV infection 
bear some .resemblance to SARS-CoV and MERS-CoV 
infections.'°·" However, fow pat ients with 2019-nCoV 
infection ha(l prominent upper respiratory tract signs 
and symptoms (eg, rh inorrhoea, sneezing. or sore 
throat), indicatiug that the target cells might be located in 
the lower airway. Furthermore, 2019-nCoV patients rarely 
developed intestinal signs and symptoms (eg, diarrhoea), 
whereas about 2{}-25% of patients with MERS-CoV or 
SARS-CoV infection had diarrhoea.'-' Faecal and urine 
samples should be tested to exclude a potential alternative 
route of transmission that is unknown at this stage. 

The pathophysiology of unusually high pathogenicily 
for SARS-CoV or MERS-CoV has not been completely 
understood. Early studies have shown that increased 
amounts of proinfl.ammatory cytokines in serum (eg, 
II.18, IL6, 11 . .12, IFNy, IPlO, and MCPl ) were associated 
with puhnonary inflammation ami extensive lung 
damage in SARS patients." MERS-CoV infection was 
also reported to induce increasro concentrations of 
proinflarnmatory cytokines (IFNy, TNFu. ILlS, and 
II.17).21 We noted that patients infected with 2019-nCoV 
also had high amounts of !LlB, IFNy. IP10, and MCP1 . 
probably leading to activated T-helper-1 (T.hl) cell re­
sponses. Moreover. patients requiring ICU admission 
had higher concentrations ofGCSF. TPlO, MCPl. Ml P1A. 
and TNFa than did those not requiring ICU admission, 
suggest ing that the cytokine storm was associated with 
disease severity. However, 2019-nCoV infection also 
initiated increased secretion ofT-heiper-2 (]'h2) cytokines 
(eg. ll.4 and ILl0) that suppress inflammation, which 
differs from SARS-CoV infection." Further studies are 
necessary to characterise the Thl and Th2 responses in 
2019-nCoV infection and to el ucidate the pathogenesis. 
Ac1topsy or b iopsy studies would be the key tounde.rstand 
the disease. 

In view of the high amount of cytokines induced by 
SARS-CoV,?l.?• MERS-CoV,11•1' and 2019-nCoV infections. 
co1ticosteroids were used frequently for treatment of 
patients with severe illness. for possibie benefit by 
reducing inflammatory-induced lung injmy. However, 
current evidence in patients with SARS and MERS 

Figure 3: Chest CT images 
(A) nar.svtrsc chest CT im39es from a 40-year-old nMn showing bil3t~ral 
multipfo l-0bobr ~nd subsagmental ;Jir<'.is of ~ons.oiid.ition ond.3.y 15 aftor 

syir.ptor:i onwt. Transverse chest CT images fron, a 53·ycar•oldwoman 
showing bi!ateral ground-glass opacity and sol>sejjmer.tal areas of consolidation 
on day 8 after symptom ooset (8), and bilatera:I 9round·gktss opacity on day12 

after symptom onset (C). 
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All patients (n-41) ICU care (r>-ll) NoKUcare(n-28} pv•lue 

Duration from illness onset 7.0 (4-C>-8-0) 7-0(4-0-8-0) 7 •0 (40-8-5) 0 -87 
to !\m: a.dmission 

Complications 

Awte :espiratory distress 12 (29 %) 11 (85%) 1(4%1 <0-0001 
syndrorne 

RNA<len1i.!1 6(15%) 2 {15%) 4(14%) 0·93 

Cycle threshold of 35·1(347··35·1) 35·1 (35 -1- 351) 348 (3-H-35·4) 035 
RNAacmia 

Acute cardiac !njlliY~ 5(12%) 4 (31%) 1(4%) 0 -017 

Arntt" kidn~y injury 3 (7%) 3(23%) 0 0-027 

St'CondJry infoction 4 (10%) 4 (31%) 0 0-0014 

Shock 3 (7%) 3 (23%) 0 0 ,027 

Trl?atmc-nt 

Anttviral therapy 38(93%) 12(92%) 26(93%) 0 -46 

Antibiot ic therapy 41(100%) 13 (100%) 28(100%) NA 
\Jse Qf cortir.ost,o,roid 9(22%1 6(46%) 3(11%) 0-013 

Continuous r~nal 3 (7%) 3 (23%) 0 0-027 
repl.1<:omu"lt thorJpy 

Oxy94n support <0-000! 

Nas~! <annola 27(66%) 1(8%) 26(!)~%) 

NOE.1~invasi1,c- vt;ih1atkm O f 10(24%1 8(62%) 2(7%) 
high-tlow r.a,aicannula 

tm·asi"-e rr:~~hani~I 2(5%) ·2 (15%) 0 
vcr:tifation 

bw.a~rv~ O"lt'chanical 2 (5~) 2 (15%) 0 
vei,tilation and ECMO 

Progr.osts 0 ·014 

Hospitalisation 7(17%) 1(8%) 6 (21%) 

Discharg~ 28 (68%) 7(54%) 21(75%) 

Death 6 (15%) 5(38%) 1(4%) 

O::ta ;n~ roedia:i-(IQ.R} or n (%). p v.alves arc <t)n1p.3ringfCUam a1u.l flQ KU car<' ;1019-riCoV~101.9 novci co1-on;,vir.,,s 
JCu .. ::aer.siV\! ~re unit. NA-- not applicable. ECM{hextr~ccrporC:.\31 rnembranc~l>.Yst:m.Jtian. ~Defined .-.s bbcdlcvcl>of 
h>'l'et"'ns.~iv;, trol'Q'lin I abo-.,., the991h p<!t<l!Otil~vpper re-f~re11,e li!l\•t (>:/8 P9ifllL) or oew aboorm.,liues ${l<J'.vnon 
,k>ctrncarefoograµ hy md «hocardicg,aphy. 

Tal>le3:Treatmentsand outcomes of patients infected with 2019-,,cov 
. ,,. .. ,., .... ,..,,, ..... ~, .. ' ... ' ................... _,,.,._.,,,., .......... · .......... ,._.,,., ..... ~·· ................. ' .. ' ... ' ...... , 

suggests that receiving corticosteroids did not have an 
effect on mortality, but rather delayed viral clearance."'-" 
Therefore, corticosteroids shouid not be routinely given 
systemically, according to WHO interim guidance.i0 

Among our cohort of 41 laboratory-confirmed patients 
with 2019-nCoV infection, corticosteroids were given to 
very few non-ICU cases. and low-to-moderate dose of 
corticosteroids were given to less than half of severely 
ill patients wifa ARDS. Fuxther evidence is urgently 
.needed to assess whether systematic corticosteroid 
treatment is beneficia1 or harmful for patients infected 
with 2019-nCoV. 

No antiviral treatment for coronavirns infection has been 
prove.n. to be effective. In a historical control study," the 
combination oflopinavir and ritonavir among SARS-CoV 
patients was associated with substantial clinical benefit 
(fe-wer adverse clinical outcomes). Arabi and colleagues 
initiated a placebo-contrnlk-d trial of interferon beta-lb, 
lopinavir, and ritonavi.r among patients with MERS 
infection in Saudi Arabia.l2 Preclinical evidence showed 

the potent. efficacy of rerodcsiviJ (a broad-spectrum 
antiviral nucleotide prodrug) to treat M ERS-CoV and 
SARS-CoV i1.1fections.ll·34 As 20l9-nCoV is an emerging 
virus, an effective treatment has not been developed for 
disease resulting from th is virus. Since th e combination 
of lopinavir and ritonavir was already available in the 
designated hospital, a randomised controlled trial has 
been initiated quickly to assess the efficacy and safet}' of 
combined use of lopinavir and ritomvir in patients 
hospitalised with 2019-nCoV inftxtion. 

Our study h2s some limitations. First. for most of the 
41 patients, the diagnosis was confirmed with lower 
rt'Spirntory tract spE·cimens and no paired nasopharyngeal 
swabs were obtait1ed to investigate the difference in the 
viral RNA detection i:atc between upper and lower 
respiratory tract specimens. Serological detection was not 
done to look for 2019-nCoV antibody rises in 18 patients 
with undetect:ab1e viral RNA. Second, with the limited 
n umber of cases, it is diffi.c.iit to assess host risk factors 
for disease severity and mortality with multivariable­
adiusted methods. 'I1iis is a modest-sized case series of 
patient~ admitted to hospital; coilection of standardised 
data for a larger cohort would help to further define the 
clinical presentation, natural history. a nd risk factors. 
Further studies io outpatient, primary care, or community 
settings are needed to get a ful! pk.1.ure of tbe spectrum of 
clinical severity. Al the same time, finding of statisticai 
tests and p values should be interpreted. with caution. 
and non-significant p values do not necessarily rule out 
difference between ICU and non-ICU p:atkmts. Third, 
since the causative pathogen has just been identified. 
kinetics of viral load and antibody titres were not available. 
Finally, the potential exposu.re bias in our study might 
account for why no paediatric or adolescent patients were 
reported in this cohort. .More effo1t should be made to 
answer these questions in future studies . 

Both SARS-CoV and MERS-CoV were believed to 
originate in bats. and these infections were transmitted 
directly to humans from market civets and dromedary 
camels, respectively." Extensive research on SARS-CoV 
a11d MERS-CoV has driven the discovery of many 
SARS-like and MERS-like coronaviruses in bats. In 2013, 
Ge and co!leagues16 r eported the whole genome sequence 
of a SARS-like coronavirus in bats with that ability to use 
human ACE2 as a receptor, thus ha.ving replication 
potentials in human cells. 3

; 2019-nCoV still needs to be 
studied deeply in case it becomes a global health threat. 
Reliable quick pathogen tests and feasible differential 
diagnosis based on clinical description are crucial for 
clinicians in their fi.rst contact with suspected patients. 
Because of the pandemic potential of2019-nCoV, careful 
surveillance is essential to monitor its future host 
adaption, viral evolution, infectivity, transmissibility, and 
pathogenicity. 

Cont ributors 

RC aru! JW had the idea for arid designe<I t he stud y an d had foil access 
to all <bta in tl:-e snidy and rake responsibili;y for the integrily of the 

,,.ww.thelancet.corn Vol 39'5 February 15, 2020 



data and 1he accuraly of ,h<:: dJta anaiysis. YWa, Cl', XG, )iXu, JU, 
and BC contribute-a to Wl'iting of the report. BC contributt-<l to critical 
revision of tl:le report. YWa, GF, XG, jiXu, and HL contributed to the 
statis>jc3l am1lysis. All authors contributed to data acquisition. 
dot" an.aly$is, or data interpretation, a11d reviewed and appro,-ed the 
fin3l version. 

Deeb.ration of interests 

All authors dedare no competing in1t 1·es1s. 

Data sharing 
TI1e data that support the find ings orniis study are available from tl1e 
corresponding amhor on reasonable requt.'St. Participant data without 
n:1n1es and identit-ier:s will be m:ule :l\'ailablP after lpprov:1i from the 
corresponding anthot lnd National Health Commission. After 
publication of srndy r,r,dings, the data wiU be available for others to 
request. Therese-arch ,earn will txoviJe an email aJdress for 
cornrnuri ication once th~ dat, are approved to l.:e shared with others. 
TI1e proposal with detailed description ofsrudy obiectivc-s J11d s>.atistkal 
analysis plan wm be nt-edcd for evaluation oftl1e reasonability to request 
for our data.11,t corrc,,pond;ng author and National llcol~, Commission 
will make a decision l:>3sed on these fil3terials. Additi.onal materials may 
also iJe rc,quire<l du1ing tlw process. 

Acknowledgments 
'll1is work is funded by the Spc'<'ial l'roje<:t for Emeq;ency of the Mirlistry 
of Science and Tc-chnology (2020YFC0841300) Chinese Academy of 
Mc,:lical Sciences (CAMS) Jnnovation Fund for Medical Sdcncc'S 
(Cl fMS 2013-l2M-1-003), a Nltiooal Science Grant ror l)istinguishecl 
Young Scholars (61425001/ H 0104), tile National Key Research and 
Development Program of Chin:, (2018YFC1200l02), The Bei jing Scient-e 
ar;d ·1ech.nology Project (ZJ9110700660C<l0), CAMS lnuovation Fund for 
Medical Sciences (2016-l2M-l·Ol4) , and National Mega-projects for 
Jntectious Diseases in Chl11a (20l7ZX10103004 and 20l8ZX103054-09). 
We acknowledge all h~alth-car~ workers involve<! in the diagnosis and 
l(ea1ment of ;>atients i.n Wuhan; we Lhank the Chinese Nltion~l Heahh 
Con1mission·/·orcoordi1mi.11g data collection for patients with 2019-nCoV 
infection; ,ve thank \VHO and the lnten1ationa! Severe 1\cute Respiram1y 
and Er11erging Jnfectious Consortium (ISARfC) for sharing dat.a 
colkctio.'1 tcmplJtcS publicly on the website; and we thank 
Prof Chen \VJng and Prof George F Gao for gJidance in s~..idy<lcsign 
a.-,d in terpreta,ion or results. 

References 
1 Richman DD. \\1iitiey RJ. Hayden f'G. eds. Clinical ,irnlogy. 

-ttb eclo. Wa.~hir.gtou: ASM Press, 2016. 
2 Ksiazek TG, Erdm,m D, Goldsmith CS, tt ai. A novel coronavirus 

ns:,<,c;ia1ed wi1h severe amtc rc-spirstory syndrome. N Fin[j J Mtd 
2003; 348: 1953-66. 

3 Kuikcn T. fouchicr RAM , Schutien M, et al. Newly d isco,-ered 
corona,·i:us as the primary <:aU!>C of severe acute respirator>' 
syndrome. Laricei, 2003; 362: 263-70. 

4 Drosteu C. Gl!nther S, Prei:ser W, et al. Identification of a no,•el 
coronavlrus in paUents with severe acute respiratory syndrome. 
N ling/] Me,l 2003; H 8: 1967-76. 

5 de Groot Rj, 13aker SC, lllric RS, et al. Middle fa;t rcspirat01)' 
syndrome coronavims (Mf; RS·C<>V): announcement of the 
Cor<>navirus Study Cr<>up. J Viro/ 2013; 87: 7790---92. 

6 Zaki AM. van Boheemen S. flesiebroer'TM. Osterhaus ADME. 
Fouchicr RAM. Isolation ofa novel corooa,•ims from a man with 
pneumonia in Saudi Arabia. N Engl J Med 2012; 367: 1814-20. 

7 WHO. Sumrnaryofprob:ibie SA RS e1ses witl1 oosetofillness 
from l November 2002 to 31 July 2003. Dec 31. 2003. https://www. 
who.int/csr/sars/cOL>ntry/t:Jble20<}4_04.J.l/en/ {accessed 
Jan 19, 2020) . 

8 \VllO. Middle East respiratory syndrome coronavirus (MERS-CoVJ. 
November; 2019. http:jjwww.who.int/emergencies/mers-cov/enj 
(acce,;$ed ) iitl 19, 2020). 

9 \:(/HO. Novtl corona.virus ... China. Jan 12. 2020. http://www.who. 
int i~1;r i<lon/12 -january-2020-no\'el-coronavirus-chinaf en/ (accessed 
Jan 19, 2020). 

10 WHO. Novel corona,irv.s -TI,:lifand (ex-China). f:m 14, 2020. 

http:/ /www. who. intf csr /don/ 14-jamia ry-2020-novel-coron3vims­
thailand /cn/ iaccessed Jan 19, 2020). 

www.thelancn.,on, Vol 395 February 15, 2020 

u WHO. l'iO\'cl coronavlrus- Japan (ex-Ch!;1a) . )JO 17, 2020. 
http:/jwww.who.int/csr/don/17-january-2020-no,ei-corona,irus­
jap3r~x-c..11inl/e11i (3ccessed Jan 19, 2020). 

12 WHO. Novel corona,iru;- Republic of Korm (ex-China) . 
Jan 21, 2020. ilttp://www.who.,nvc~ti<k>n/21-•ilrru,ry-2020-nov,,J .. 
coror:JviiuS-repubiics>f.kore"H!X•dtina/en/ (accessed Jan 23, 2020). 

13 CDC. fllt'>'t 1.rave l-,related c:ase of 2019 n<>ve! coronavirttS detected ir1 
United State:;. Jan 21, 2020. https:Jlwww.cdc.gov/rn<:diaJ 
rcleascs/2020/p0121-novel-coronavirns-travel-case.iltml (acc~'Ssed 
Jao 23, 2020). 

14 ·1an w, Zhao x, Ma x, et al. A novel t-oronavirus genome identified 
in a duster ofpneumon i:.casg- Wuhan, China 2019-2020. 
http: i jweekly.ch ir.acdc.cnf en/arli< 1e/id /l3':J0720J -fc,4f-4I 54-a 19e-
425 Jb,}:> 3d 10<: (accessed J3n 2:1, 2020). 

lS Sanz F, Cimeno C, Uoret T. et a I. Re1"tionshi p between the 
p!'esence of ll)·poxen1ia ar:d tl'ie inflarnrnatot)' l'es1xmse rnea~1.1red 
uy C-reJ<tive protein in bacteremic pneumococcal pneumonia . 
Eur R,·spir J 2011; 38 (suppl SS): 2492, 

l <, Kidney disease: improving global outcomt'S (Kl)JGO) amlc kidney 
injury work group. KDI GO clil'ital practice guideline for acute kidney 
injury. March, 2012. https://kdigo.c,rgi"'P•Contenr;uploads/7.016/10/ 
KD IG0 -2012-AKI-Guideline-fo1g1ish .pdf(accessed Jan 23. 2020). 

17 Garner JS. Jarvig \VR, Emori TC, lloran TC, Hughes ) M. 
CDC definrtions for nosomrnial infections, 1988. Am J /'!fed Controi 
19$8; 16: 128--40. 

18 Gao C, \l,'ar,g Y. Gu X, et al. t.ssocia,ion be--ween , ardiac injury and 
mortality in h<>spitaH,ed palien1s inf'e<:t~d with avi'1!! influenza A 
(H7N9) virus. Crit Care Med 2020; published 011linc ja n 20. 
DOl:10.i097 /CCM.0000000000004207. 

19 Perlman S, Nct]lnd j . Coronaviruscs post-SARS: update 011 
repl ,cation and pathogenesis. Nat. Rev Miuobioi 20<l'J; 7: 439- 50. 

20 lee N, I iui D, Wu A, <:t ol. A n,ojor outbreak of severe ,cut~ 
respiratory syndrome in Hong Kong. N Hngl J M,<12003; 
348; 19$(,.,94. 

2l /lsslrl A,Al.'f•wfiq )A,Al·R;llJe..anA,'1., etal. Epidtrnlo1ogi<:al, 
Jemogrnpltic. and clinical characteristics of 47 casE'S of Middle East 
respirato1y syndrorne coror1avirus disease from Saudi Arabia: 
J <lcscrlptive study. L&1ce1. J-r,ftct Ois 2013; 13: 752--01. 

22 \Von~ Cl<, L:lin CIVK, Wu Al<L, ct al. Plasma inflamnuto,:y 
cytokincs and chcmokincs in sc-vcre acute respiratory ~yndrome. 
Clin Ii."<!> rmmunol 2004; 136: 95-10J. 

23 Mahal~wi WH, Khabour OP, Zhang Q, Makhdounl 1-JM. 
Sul imln llA. M l:.RS-CoV in fection in humans is associated with a 
pro-inflamma10,,Tnl and ·ni17 q1okitte profile. Cyiokin• 2018; 
104: $--13. 

24 He L ning Y. Zhang Q. et al. Exp,essiou of eleva,ecl 1e,e1s of 
pro-infiammatory cytoki."lts in SARS-CoV-infcctc-d AC£2+ cells in .. 
SARS patieniS: relation to the arnte lung injury and pathogenesis or 
SARS.j PnrJwi 2(10<;; 210, 288-97. 

2S Faure E, Poissy f. Conard A, et a l. Distinct inunune m;ponsc ili 
two M F. RS-CoV-infected patients: can we go rrom bench lo bedside? 
J>L.oS One 20)4: 9 : eS8716. 

26 Fal:r.arano D. de Wit E. lt:lsmussen Al., et 3l. ·neaL."11ent with 
i1,terfe1·on-u2b ;,ml r ibaviriu improvt'soutconie in MERS-CoV­
inf<:cu,<1 rhesus r11a<:,u1ues. Nai M..-1 ZOU; 19: !313-17. 

27 Stockrnan LJ, Bei~my R. CaruE-r J>. S1\RS: systern.aiic review of 
treatment effects. PLoS Med 2006; 3: e343. 

28 Lansbury L, Rodrigo C, Leonardi-Bee J. Nguyco-VJn-Tam J, 
Lin1 WS. Cor'J.cosleroids as adjunctive therapy in the treatment of 
L1flucnza. Coclirane Dn.tabase SysJ. Rtv 2019; 2: Cl)010406. 

29 Arabi YM, Mandourah Y, AI-Hameed F, et al. ilirticosteroiJ therapy 
for cri11cally ill patients with Middle East respi:3tory syndrome. 
Ani ) Respir CrU Cur~ Mtd 2018; 197: 7))-<,7. 

30 WHO. Clinical managemern orsevere acure respi1•at01y ir:fectioo 
when uovel cornuavirus (n,...oVj ir,fe<:tion is suspected. J,,n 11, 2020. 
1Jttps:i jW\vw.,vho.it1tiinLNrial-pub1i,c:1tio.t1s-dct3ilidioical­
management-0!:scvere-acute-respiratory•infoction-whcn·novcl­
coroua,•irus-(ncov) -infection-is-suspece<l (acct.'Ss~'() jan 19, 2020). 

31 Chu CM. Role ofloplnavir/rltonavt;- ln t11c 1rcatmC1H of SARS: 
ini lil l virologica1 rnd cl inicll findings. 11wmx20<i4-: 59: 252-56. 

32 Arabi YM, Al0Llm13o A, Balkhy HH, et al. 'li:rotment of Middle East 
respiratory syndrome with a combination of lopmavir-ritor,avir arid 
interieror.-~lh (MI RAC LE trul): studi· protocol for a ra11dom1zed 
<:Outmlled trial. 7iials20J8; 19: 81. 

Articles I 

505 



I Articles 

506 

33 Sheaha.u TP, Sims AC, Graham RL, e1 a l. l:lroa,l-spe<:lrum antivira! 
GS-5734 inhibits both epidemir and zoonotic coronaviruse . 
Sci Transl Mtti 2017; '); caal3653. 

34 Sheahan T P, Sims AC, Lei t SR, ct al. Comparative therapeutic 
efficacy of remdesivi.r and combination lopinavir, ritona,~r. 
and interferon beta agai11sL M ERS-CoV. Nnl- Con,n:,m 2020; ll: 222. 

35 Cui j, Li I', Sh i Z-L Origi11 a nd evolut io11 of pathogenic 
corooaviruses. Na/. Rev Microbial 2019; 17; ISl--92. 

36 Ge X--Y. Li J·L, Y"tll( X-L, et ,il. Isolation ,i nd character ization of a hat 
SA RS-like rnrornviru lhat u es the AC E2 rec:epror. Nnuore 2013; 
503: 535-38. 

rJ Wang M. I-Ju z. Bats as animal rcscn•oirs for the SARS corona,'it~,s: 
hypothesis proved after 10 years of ,im hunting. \1rol Sin-2013; 
28: 315--17. 

www.thelancet.con, Vol 395 February 15, 2020 



/ ~ t_-:J. DEPABTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES Public Health Service 

National Institutes of Health 
National Institute of Allergy 
and Infectious Diseases 
Bethesda, Maryland 20892 

Drs. Aleksei Chmura and Peter Daszak 
EcoHealth Alliance, Inc. 
460 w 34th St 
Suite 1701 
New York, NY 10001 

Re: Termination ofN1H Grant ROl All 10964 

Dear Drs. Chmura and Daszak: 

24 Aptil 2020 

I am writing to notify you that the National Institute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases (NIAID), an 
Institute within the National Institutes of Health (NlH), under the Department of Health and Human 
Services (HHS) has elected to terminate the project Understanding the Risk of Bat Coronavirus 
Emergence, funded under grant RO I Al 110964, for convenience. This e,rrant project was issued under the 
authotization of Sections 30 l and 405 of the Public Health Service Act as amended (42 USC 241 and 
284). This grant was funded as a discretionary grant as outlined in the NJH Grants Policy Statement, 
which states that the decision not to award a grant, or to award a grant at a pa1ticular funding level, is at 
the discretion of the agency, in accordance with NIH's dual review system. 

At this time, NIH does not believe that the cuITent project outcomes align with the program goals and 
agency priorities. N1AJD has determined there are no animal and human ethical considerations, as this 
project is not a clinical t1ial, but rather an observational study. 

As a result of this termination, a total of $369,819.56 will be remitted to NIAID and additional 
drawdowns will not be supported. The remaining funds have been restricted in the HHS Payment 
Management System, effective immediately. 

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning the information in this letter. 

cc: Dr. Erik Stemmy 
Ms. Emily Linde 

Sincerely, 
Olgft.llly ilgMd by Loiluor, k!li<h.lQ,I (NIH/ 

Lauer, Michael (NIH/OD) [El OO)(EJ 
0.itc: 2020.~.2◄ 16:41:16 •04'00' 

M ichael S Lauer, MD 
NIH Deputy Director for Extramural Research 
Email: Cb) (6) 



Date: April 19, 2020 

From: Michael S Lauer, MD 
NIH Deputy Director for Extramural Research 

Lauer Michael Digitally signed by Lauer, 
, Michael (NIH/OD) [El 

(NIH/OD) [E] ~~~;020.04.1910:47:40 

To: Kevin Olival, PhD 
Vice-President for Research 
EcoHealth Alliance 

(b)(6) 

Naomi Schrag, JD 
Vice-President for Research Compliance, Training, and Policy 
Columbia University 

(b)(6) 

Subject: Project Number 2R0lAil 10964-06 

Dear Dr. Oliva! and Ms. Schrag: 

EcoHealth Alliance, Inc. is the recipient, as grantee, of an NIH grant cntiHed "'Undersmnding the 
Risk of Bat Coronavirus Emergence." It is our understanding that one of the sub-recipients of 
the grant funds is the Wuhan Institute of Virology ("WIV"). It is our undetstanding that WN 
studies the interaction between corona viruses and bats. The scientific community believes that 
the coronavirus causing COVID-19 jumped from bats to humans 1.ikely in Wuhan where the 
COVID-19 pandemic began. There are now allegations that the current crisis was precipitated 
by the release from WIV of the coronavirus responsible for COVID-19. Given these concerns, 
we are pursuing suspension of WIV from participation in Federal programs. 

While we review these allegations during the period of suspension, you are instructed to cease 
providing any funds from the above noted grant to the WIV. This temporary action is authorized 
by 45 C.F.R. § 75.37l(d) ("Initiate suspension or debarment proceedings as authorized under 2 
C.F.R. part 180"). The incorporated 0MB provision provides that the funding agency may, 
through suspension, immediately and temporarily exclude from Federal programs persons who 
are not presently responsible where "immediate action is necessary to protect the public interest." 
2 C.F.R. § 180.700(c). It is in the public interest that NIH ensure that a sub-recipient has taken 
all appropriate precautions to prevent the release of pathogens that it is studying. This 
suspension of the sub-recipient does not affect the remainder of your grant assuming that no 
grant funds are provided to WN following receipt of this email during the period of suspension. 
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[Wuhan Pneumonia] Wuhan disease control researcher was once 
attacked by bat attacked mainland scholars questioning virus leak 

Social News 

Written by; Wei Jingquan 0) 2020-02-1517:44 Last update date:2020-02-1519:26 

The new coronavirus (2019-nCoV) pneumonia epidemic continues, and 
WHO experts point out that the virus may originate from bats, especially 
Rhinolophus Bat. Xiaobo Tao, a professor at South China University of 
Technology, published a report entitled 11 Possibility of New Coronavirus 
(2019-nCoV) Source", pointing out that the Wuh.an Disease Control Cer;' A ~ 

less than 300 meters away from the South China Seafood Market, wt\9U ,/ 
was allegedly the source of the outbreak, had captured bat To study"" 
coronavirus, more researchers were splashed by the blood and urine of 
bats. The researchers had to isolate themselves for 14 days, 
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academic journal, but only on the scientific paper sharing website. The 
paper has not been found. 11 Hong Kong 01 11 reporter wanted to call Xiao 
Botao for verification, but the other party did not listen to the call. Earlier it 
was suspected that the epidemic was related to another laboratory in 
Wuhan and the Wuhan Institute of Virology, Chinese Academy of Sciences, 
but officials denied it many t imes. 

'T The process of capturing bats in Wuhan CDC 'T 

+4 
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The scholar who wrote this report is Professor Xiao Botao of the School of 
Biological Science and Engineering of South China University of Technology. 
He used to work at Harvard Medical School and has collaborated with 
Northwestern University in the United States. He has been awarded the 
National Natural Science Foundation many times. Fund support. As of 
February 6, the report refers to the new coronavirus gene sequencing found 
that 96% and 89% are similar to the coronavirus (CoV ZC45) found in the head 
bat (CoV ZC45), but it is necessary to study the pathogen and how to pass it 
to humans. The report cited medical journal research, stating that 27 of the 41 
people infected in Wuhan were linked to South China Seafood City, and 33 of 
the 585 samples collected in South China Seafood City had detected new 
coronaviruses. 

However, the bat carrying CoV ZC45 was first discovered in Yunnan and 
Zhejiang provinces, more than 900 kilometers away from South China Seafood 
City. !n addition, bats usually live in the wild, and the population is dense. The 
possibility of bats flying to the p lace is 11very low.11 

• Although the South China 
Seafood Market sells game meat, it does not sell bats. 

market and identified two laboratories conducting research on bat coronavirus. Within ~280 
meters from the market. there was the Wuhan Center for Disease Control & Prevention 

(WHCDC) (Figure 1, from Baidu and Google maps). WHCDC hosted animals in laboratories 

for research purpose. one of which vvas speciallzed in pathogens collection and identification 4-

6 . In one of their studies. 155 b13ts inducting Rhinotophus affinis wer:e captured in Hllbei 

province, and other 450 bats were captured in Zhejiang province 4 . The expert in collection 

was noted in the Author Contributions (JHT}. Moreover, he was broadcasted for collecting 

viruses on natiorHNide newspapers and websites In 2017 and 2019 7•8. He described that 

he was once by attacked by bats and the blood of a bat shot on his skin. He knew the 
extreme danger of the infection so he qua.rantined himself for 14 days 1. In another accident, 

he quarantined himself again because bats peed on him. He was once thrilled for capturing 
a bat carrying a live tick 8. 

Surgery was performed on the caged animals and the tissue samples were collected for 

DNA and RNA extraction and sequencing 4• 5. The tissue samples and contaminated trashes 

were source of pathogens. They were only ~280 meters from the seafood market The 

WHCDC was also adjacent to the Union Hospital (Figure 1, bottom) where the first group 

of doctors were infected during this. epidemic. It rs plausible that the virus leaked around 
and sorne of them contaminated the initial patients in this epidernic, though solid proofs 
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The report mentions the p'ossibility·of ot er ways, noting t at t ere are two 
laboratories in Wuhan, in addition to the Wuhan Institute of Virology of the 
Chinese Academy of Sciences, which is 30 kilometers away from the South 
China Seafood Market and at the P4 level. WHCDC) 1 the center possesses 
animals for research purposes including collecting and distinguishing 
pathogens. 

The report quotes past official information that the Wuhan CDC once captured 
155 bats from Hubei Province, including the chrysanthemum bat, and another 
450 bats from Zhejiang Province. However, the researcher in charge of the 
research had been interviewed by the media in 2017 and 2019 to mention two 
accidents, including that he had been attacked by a bat, and the blood of the 
bat splashed on his skin, so he was isolated for 14 days; The bat urinates and 
must be isolated; he has found a live tick on the bat. 
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kilometers away from South China Seafood City, it has been tracking SARS­
CoV virus research in 2003, such as using reverse genetics methods. 
Therefore, "direct speculation11 refers to the possibility that the laboratory has 
leaked SARS-CoV or its derivatives. 

'T Professor Xiao Botao of South China University of Technology Full Paper .. 
Originsof2019-NCoV XiaoB Res by Zerohedg~ on Scribd 
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The possible origins of 2019-nCoV coronavirus 
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Summary quoted opinion that high .. risk laboratories should stay away 
from people 

The report concluded that some people are concerned about the evolution of 
the 2019-nCoV coronavirus. In addition to the natural reorganization and the 
origin of the intermediate host, the lethal coronavirus may also come from the 
Wuhan laboratory. The safety level of the high-risk biological laboratory may 
need to be strengthened. Regulations should be taken to keep the laboratory 
location away from the city center and other densely populated places. (g[J } 
This report was published on the research sharing website Research Gah:~-(l 
February 6, and was not published in an authoritative academic journal, but 
Research Gate has not found the article. 11 Hong Kong 01 11 reporter called Xiao 
Rnt~n for Pnn1 iirit:><: h11t tht:> otht:>r n~rtv rlirl not ;:in.::::w~r th~ r-~11 

Aa 
6/ 14 



4/21/2020 [Wuhan Pneumonia) Wuhan disease control researcher was once attacked by bats auack[ng mainland scholars questioned vims leakage I Hong Kong .. . 

Q tll:11:l 
DOC 
ace 

The city of Wuhan was dosed, public trnnsportaUon stopped, tens of thousands or people were 
infected, peopfe in the cHy were panicked, residents wore masks when they went out, and even 
more people went to the supermarket to protect thernse!ves with plastic bags. (Chinatopix i 
Associated Press} 

WHO: No intermediate host found 

A World Health Organization official said on February 11th that after the 
Chinese health department disclosed the viral gene sequencing, scientists 
found that the new coronavirus may have come from bats, and then 
transferred to an intermediate host, and then infected humans. However, it is 
temporarily unknown which animal the intermediate host is. Sylvie Briand, 
director of the Infectious Diseases Hazard Management Department, attended 
a press conference at the Geneva headquarters and said that after the 
scientists arrived at the South China Seafood Market in Wuhan, the epid/ ,A, , 
stricken area, a large number of bats were not found, and further researc\, __ QLJ) 
needed. .,._.,,, 

1' Wuhan pneumonia epidemic spread more than 60,000 people diagnosed 

0 ~ ~ ~ ~ 
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Virus researcher 11guaranteeed by life11 denied laboratory leak 
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There have been doubts about the epidemic related to the laboratories in the 
Mainland, including the laboratory of the Wuhan Institute of Virology, the 
Chinese Academy of Sciences, which is 30 kilometers away from the South 
China Seafood Market and the highest level 4 (P4}. 

Shi Zhengli, a researcher at the Wuhan Institute of Virology, Chinese Aca9P"""" . 
of Sciences, said on February 2 that the 11guarantee of life" was not leak g[J \ 
the laboratory, referring to "the new coronavirus is nature 1s punishmeh" ,,,J -humans• uncivilized living habits," meaning it is related to wild game. Peter 
Daszak, a long-time partner of Shi Zhengli and a disease ecologist of the 
American non-profit organization Environmental Ecology and Health Alliance, 

0 ~ ~ ~ ~ 
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At the press conference of the State CounciPs Joint Defense and Joint Control 
Mechanism today (15th), Wu Yuanbin, director of the Department of Social 
Development and Technology of the Ministry of Science and Technology, said, 
"Guiding Opinions on Strengthening the Biosafety Management of the New 
Coronavirus High-grade Viral Microbiology Laboratory 11 is issued, requiring all 
competent departments to strengthen the management of laboratories, 
especially viruses, to ensure biosecurity. 

T Wuhan CDC captures and studies bat documentary T 

[Wuhan Pneumonia] WHO: Viruses or bats infect humans through 

intermediate hosts 

China releases new coronavirus resource library 80% similar to SARS , - CJ · .. 
[Wuhan Pneumonia • Multiple Images] The latest virus exposure look\>9~,-•') 
SARS and MERS 

[ Wuhan Pneumonia l Researcher of the Institute of Virology: Using life to 
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originated from the Wuhan 
Laboratory Ministry of Foreign 
Affairs: no scientific basis 

Instant China 202(HJ4-16 

New Coronary Pneumonia I Experts 
from Wuhan Virus Institute deny 
artificial synthesis: humans do not 
have such wisdom 

[New Coronary Pneumonia] US 
media: The embassy in China 
warned the Wuhan laboratory of 
safety problems two years ago 

Instant International 2020·· 04 .. 15 

Chinese viruses, laboratory leaks, 
and plague: who can bear the 
heinous guilt? 

! Featured j Analyzt.1 com ments 13 hO\lr'S f.tgo 

[Wuhan Pneumonia) The 
postgraduate on the Internet is 
"Patient Zero" Wuhan Virus Institute: 
No one is infected 

j Featured! Chamber 2020 .. oz ... 15 

[Wuhan Pneumonia] WHO: Viruses 
or bats infect humans through 
intermediate hosts 

Instant lntarnatkinai 202(Hi2··12 

(Wuhan Pneumonia) Get the 
complete poison chain from snake 
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LWunan PneumomaJ New cuscovery 
in virus-infected potential 
intermediary host inland research: 
pangolin 

[Wuhan Pneumonia] Has the 
questioned Wuhan Virus Research 
Institute edited the virus manually? 

Instant China 2020-02-06 

[Wuhan Pneumonia] Mainland 
research refers to snake as virus 
intermediary host Xu Shuchang: only 
inference is not true 

[New Coronary Pneumonia] 
Mainland experts: the virus is not 
artificially recommended to trace the 
source of bat habitat 

Chamber 2020-03-10 
(Wuhan Pneumonia) Deeply 

caught in the eye of public opinion 
storm to deconstruct the 
development history of Wuhan 
Institute of Virology, Chinese 
Academy o'f Sciences 

I Featured I Chamber 202(H}2-"17 

(Wuhan Pneumonia) Researcher 
of the Institute of Virology: Using life 
to guarantee the epidemic has 
nothing to do with the laboratory 

[Wuhan pneumonia] CCTV has 
reported a new coronavirus expert in 
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[Wuhan Pneumonia] Wrong bat? 
Latest research by mainland 
scholars: Coronavirus may be the 
source 

[Wuhan Pneumonia] Research by the 
Chinese Academy of Sciences: 
Viruses have a strong ability to infect 
humans or bats 

I Featured I 1nstant Chln<1 2020-01-22 

[New Coronary Pneumonia] The US 
intelligence community examines 
whether the virus has accidentally 
flowed out from Chinese 
experiments 

Instant !nternationa! 202.0-04-18 

[Wuhan pneumonia] New virus and 
bats in Zhoushan most resemble 
experts: Tracing game is not easy 

I Featured I Scclai News 2020-01-11 

[Wuhan Pneumonia] First exposure 
expert of coronavirus gene 
sequencing: 73% identical to SARS 
gene 

! Featured I Soda! News 2.02.0-01-11 

[Wuhan Pneumonia] South China 
Agricultural University: Pangolin is a 
potential intermediate host for the 
virus 

I Featured I 1nst,~nt Chlna 2020-02-07 

[Wuhan Pneumonia] New 
coronavirus material and two 
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RESEARCH 
Department of Health and Human Services 
National Institutes of Health 

Notice of Award 
Issue Date: 05/27/2014 

NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF ALLERGY AND INFECTIOUS DISEASES 

Grant Number: 1R01Al110964-01 
FAIN: R01Al110964 

Principal lnvestigator(s): 
PETER DASZAK, PHD 

Project Title: Understanding the Risk of Bat Coronavirus Emergence 

Aleksei 
President 
460 West 34th Street 
17th Floor 
New York, NY 100012317 

Award e-mailed to: 

Budget Period: 06/01/2014 - 05/31/2015 
Project Period: 06/01/2014 - 05/31/2019 

Dear Business Official: 

(b)(6) 

The National Institutes of Health hereby awards a grant in the amount of $666,442 (see "Award 
Calculation" in Section I and 'Terms and Conditions" in Section Ill) to ECOHEAL TH ALLIANCE, 
INC. in support of the above referenced project. This award is pursuant to the authority of 42 
USC 241 42 CFR 52 and is subject to the requirements of this statute and regulation and of 
other referenced, incorporated or attached terms and conditions. 

Acceptance of this award including the "Terms and Conditions" is acknowledged by the grantee 
when funds are drawn down or otherwise obtained from the grant payment system. 

Each publication, press release, or other document about research supported by an NIH award 
must include an acknowledgment of NIH award support and a disclaimer such as "Research 
reported in this publication was supported by the National Institute Of Allergy And Infectious 
Diseases of the National Institutes of Health under Award Number R01AI 110964. The content is 
solely the responsibility of the authors and does not necessarily represent the official views of 
the National Institutes of Health." Prior to issuing a press release concerning the outcome of this 
research , please notify the NIH awarding IC in advance to allow for coordination. 

Award recipients must promote objectivity in research by establishing standards that provide a 
reasonable expectation that the design, conduct and reporting of research funded under NIH 
awards will be free from bias resulting from an Investigator's Financial Conflict of Interest (FCOI), 
in accordance with the 2011 revised regulation at 42 CFR Part 50 Subpart F. The Institution 
shall submit all FCOI reports to the NIH through the eRA Commons FCOI Module. The regulation 
does not apply to Phase I Small Business Innovative Research {SBIR) and Small Business 
Technology Transfer (STIR) awards. Consult the NIH website 
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/policy/coi/ for a link to the regulation and additional important 
information. 

If you have any questions about this award, please contact the individual(s) referenced in Section 
IV. 

Sincerely yours, 
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Laura A. Pone 
Grants Management Officer 
NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF ALLERGY AND INFECTIOUS DISEASES 

Additional information follows 
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SECTION I -AWARD DATA-1R01Al110964-01 

Award Calculation (U.S. Dollars) 
Salaries and Wages 
Fringe Benefits 
Supplies 
Travel Costs 
Other Costs 
Consortium/Contractual Cost 

Federal Direct Costs 
Federal F&A Costs 
Approved Budget 
Federal Share 
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARD AMOUNT 

AMOUNT OF THIS ACTION (FEDERAL SHARE) 

SUMMARY TOTALS FOR ALL YEARS 

$167,708 
$54,168 
$21,400 
$35,918 
$10,000 

$227,663 

$516,857 
$149,585 
$666,442 
$666,442 
$666,442 

$666,442 

YR THIS AWARD CUMULATIVE TOTALS 
1 $666,442 $666,442 
2 $630,445 $630,445 
3 $611 ,090 $611 ,090 
4 $597,112 $597,112 
5 $581 ,646 $581,646 

Recommended future year total cost support, subject to the availability of funds and satisfactory 
progress of the project 

Fiscal Information: 
CFDA Num ber: 
EIN: 
Document Number: 

PMS Account Type: 
Fiscal Year: 

IC CAN 2014 

93.855 
1311726494A1 

RAl1 10964A 

P (Subaccount) 
2014 

2015 
Al 8472350 $666,442 $630,445 

2016 2017 2018 
$611.090 $597,112 $581,646 

Recommended future year total cost support. subject to the availability of funds and satisfactory 
progress of the project 

NIH Administrative Data: 
PCC: M51 C / OC: 414A / Released: AMIDONL 05/20/2014 
Award Processed: 05/08/2014 01 :52:21 PM 

SECTION II- PAYMENT/HOTLINE INFORMATION-1R01Al110964-01 

For payment and HHS Office of Inspector General Hotline information, see the NIH Home Page 
at http://grants.nih.gov/grants/policy/awardconditions.htm 

SECTION Ill - TERMS AND CONDITIONS - 1 R01Al1 10964-01 

This award is based on the application submitted to, and as approved by, NIH on the above-titled 
project and is subject to the terms and conditions incorporated either directly or by reference in 
the following: 

a. The grant program legislation and program regulation cited in this Notice of Award. 
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b. Conditions on activi ties and expenditure of funds in other statutory requirements, such as 
those included in appropriations acts. 

c. 45 CFR Part 7 4 or 45 CFR Part 92 as applicable. 
d. The NIH Grants Policy Statement, including addenda in effect as of the beginning date of 

the budget period. 
e. This award notice, INCLUDING THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS CITED BELOW. 

(See NIH Home Page at http://grants.nih.gov/grants/policy/awardconditions.htm for certain 
references cited above.) 

An unobligated balance may be carried over into the next budget period without Grants 
Management Officer prior approval. 

This grant is subject to Streamlined Noncompeting Award Procedures (SNAP). 

This award is subject to the requirements of 2 CFR Part 25 for institutions to receive a Dun & 
Bradstreet Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number and maintain an active registration in 
the Central Contractor Registration. Should a consortium/subaward be issued under this award , 
a DUNS requirement must be included. See 
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/policy/awardconditions.htm for the full NIH award term implementing 
this requirement and other additional information. 

This award has been assigned the Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) R01Al110964. 
Recipients must document the assigned FAIN on each consortium/subaward issued under this 
award. 

Based on the project period start date of this project, this award is likely subject to the 
Transparency Act subaward and executive compensation reporting requirement of 2 CFR Part 
170. There are conditions that may exclude this award; see 
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/PQ1icy/awardconditions.htm for additional award applicability 
information. 

In accordance with P.L. 110-161, compliance with the NIH Public Access Policy is now 
mandatory. For more information, see NOT-OD-08-033 and the Public Access website: 
http://publicaccess.nih.gov/. 

Treatment of Program Income: 
Additional Costs 

SECTION IV- Al Special Terms and Conditions - 1R01Al110964-01 

THIS AWARD CONTAINS GRANT SPECIFIC RESTRICTIONS. THESE RESTRICTIONS MAY 
ONLY BE LIFTED BY A REVISED NOTICE OF AWARD. 

RESTRICTION: This award is issued with the knowledge that subjects may be involved within the 
period of support, but definite plans were not set forth in the application as per 45 CFR 46.118. 
No human subjects may be involved in any project supported by this award until all requirements 
for Human Subjects research as identified in the PHS398/SF424 Instructions have been provided 
to and approved by NIH. 

RESTRICTION: The present award is being made without a currently valid certification of IRB 
approval for this project with the following restriction: Only activi ties that are clearly severable and 
independent from activities that involve human subjects may be conducted pending the NIAi D's 
acceptance of the certification of IRS review and approval. 

No funds may be drawn down from the payment system and no obligations may be made against 
Federal funds for any research involving human subjects prior to the NIAID's notification to the 
grantee that the identified issues have been resolved and this restriction removed . 
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This award includes funds for subcontract/consortium activity with Wuhan Institute of Virology, 
CHINA and is budgeted as follows: 

-Yr 1 -Yr2 
Total Direct Costs 
F&A Costs @ 8%(MTDC) 
TOTAL COSTS 

$123,699 $128,718 
$9,896 $10,297 
$133,595 $139,015 

-Yr3 
$147,335 
$11,787 
$159,122 

-Yr 4 
$147,335 
$11,787 
$159,122 

-Yr 5 
$147,335 
$11,787 

$159,122 

Consortiums are to be established and administered as described in the NIH Grants Policy 
Statement. This written agreement with the consortium must address the negotiated 
arrangements for meeting the scientific. administrative. financial. and reporting requirements for 
this grant. 

This award includes funds for subcontract/consortium activity with East China Normal University, 
CHINA and is budgeted as follows: 

-Yr 1 
Total Direct Costs 
F&A costs @ 8%(MTDC) 
TOTAL COSTS 

$87,100 
$6,968 
$94,068 

-Yr2 
$67,300 
$5,384 
$72,684 

-Yr3 
$50,108 
$4,009 
$54,117 

-Yr 4 
$39,167 

$3,133 
$42,300 

-Yr 5 
$14,850 

$2,404 
$32,454 

Consortiums are to be established and administered as described in the NIH Grants Policy 
Statement. This written agreement with the consortium must address the negotiated 
arrangements for meeting the scientific, administrative, financial, and reporting requirements for 
this grant. 

Select Agents: 
Awardee of a project that at any time involves a restricted experiment with a select agent, is 
responsible for notifying and receiving prior approval from the NIAID. Please be advised that 
changes in the use of a Select Agent will be considered a change in scope and require NIH 
awarding office prior approval. The approval is necessary for new select agent experiments as 
well as changes in on-going experiments that would require change in the biosafety plan and/or 
biosafety containment level. An approval to conduct a restricted experiment granted to an 
individual cannot be assumed an approval to other individuals who conduct the same restricted 
experiment as defined in the Select Agents Regulation 42 CFR Part 73, Section 13.b 
(http://www.selectagents.gov/Regu!ations.html). 

Highly Pathogenic Agent: 
NIAID defines a Highly Pathogenic Agent as an infectious Agent or Toxin that may warrant a 
biocontainment safety level of BSL3 or higher according to the current edition of the CDC/NIH 
Biosafety in Microbiological and Biomedical Laboratories {BMBL) 
(http://www.cdc.gov/OD/ohs/biosftylbmbl5/bmbl5toc.htm). Research funded under this grant 
must adhere to the BMBL, including using the BMBL-recommended biocontainment level at a 
minimum. If your Institutional Biosafety Committee (or equivalent body) or designated 
institutional biosafety official recommend a higher biocontainment level, the highest 
recommended containment level must be used. 
When submitting future Progress Reports indicate at the beginning of the report: 

If no research with a Highly Pathogenic Agent or Select Agent has been performed or is planned 
to be performed under this grant. 

If your IBC or equivalent body or official has determined, for example, by conducting a risk 
assessment, that the work being planned or performed under this grant may be conducted at a 
biocontainment safety level that is lower than BSL3. 

If the work involves Select Agents and/or Highly Pathogenic Agents. also address the following 
points: 

Any changes in the use of the Agent(s) or Toxin(s) including its restricted experiments that have 
resulted in a change in the required biocontainment level, and any resultant change in location, if 
applicable, as determined by your IBC or equivalent body or official. 
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If work with a new or additional Agent(s)/Toxin(s) is proposed in the upcoming project period, 
provide: 

o A list of the new and/or additional Agent(s) that will be studied; 
o A description of the work that will be done with the Agent(s). and whether or not the work is a 
restricted experiment; 
o The title and location for each biocontainment resource/facility, including the name of the 
organization that operates the facility, and the biocontainment level at which the work will be 
conducted, with documentation of approval by your IBC or equivalent body or official. It is 
important to note if the work is being done in a new location. 

STAFF CONTACTS 

The Grants Management Specialist is responsible for the negotiation, award and administration of 
this project and for interpretation of Grants Administration policies and provisions. The Program 
Official is responsible for the scientific, programmatic and technical aspects of this project. These 
individuals work together in overall project administration. Prior approval requests (signed by an 
Authorized Organizational Representative) should be submitted in writ ing to the Grants 
Management Specialist. Requests may be made via e-mail. 

Grants Management Specialist: Laura A. Pone 
Email: (b)(6) Phone: (b)(6) Fax: 301-493-0597 

Program Official: Erik J. Stemmy 
Email: (b)(6) Phone: (b)(6) 

SPREADSHEET SUMMARY 
GRANT NUMBER: 1R01Al110964-01 

INSTITUTION: ECOHEAL TH ALLIANCE, INC. 

Budget Year 1 Year2 Year3 Year4 Years 
Salaries and Wages $167,708 $167,708 $167,708 $167,708 $167,708 
Fringe Benefits $54,168 $54,168 $54,168 $54,168 $54,168 
Suoolies $21 ,400 $19,250 $7 ,250 $7,000 $3,500 
Travel Costs $35,918 $35,918 $35,918 $35,918 $35,918 
Other Costs $10,000 $13,550 $11,050 $9,800 $9,400 
Consorti um/Contractual Cost $227,663 $211,699 $213,239 $201,422 $191,576 
TOT AL FEDERAL DC $516,857 $502,293 $489,333 $476,016 $462,270 
TOT AL FEDERAL F&A $149,585 $128,152 $121 ,757 $121,096 $119,376 
TOTAL COST $666,442 $630,445 $611 ,090 $597,112 $581,646 

Facilities and Administrative Year 1 Year2 Year3 Year4 Years 
Costs 
F&A Cost Rate 1 44.1% 44.1% 44.1% 44.1% 44.1% 
F&A Cost Base 1 $339,194 $290,594 $276,094 $274,594 $270,694 
F&A Costs 1 $149,585 $128,152 $121,757 $121,096 $1 19,376 
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Notice of Award 
RESEARCH Federal Award Date: 08/05/2019 
Department of Health and Human Services 
National Institutes of Health 

NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF ALLERGY AND INFECTIOUS DISEASES 

Grant Number: 2R01Al110964-06 REVISED 
FAIN: R01Al110964 

Principal lnvestigator(s): 
PETER DASZAK,PHD 

Project Title: Understanding the Risk of Bat Coronavirus Emergence 

Dr. Daszak, Peter 
PD/Pl 
460 West 34th Street 
Suite 1701 
New York, NY 100012320 

Award e-mailed to: (b)(6) -----------
Period Of Performance: 
Budget Period: 07/24/2019 - 06/30/2020 
Project Period: 06/01/2014 - 06/30/2024 

Dear Business Official: 

The National Institutes of Health hereby revises this award to reflect a decrease in the amount of 
$71,770 (see "Award Calculation" in Section I and "Terms and Conditions" in Section Ill) to 
ECOHEAL TH ALLIANCE, INC. in support of the above referenced project. This award is 
pursuant to the authority of 42 use 241 42 CFR 52 and is subject to the requirements of this 
statute and regulation and of other referenced, incorporated or attached terms and conditions. 

Acceptance of this award including the "Terms and Conditions" is acknowledged by the grantee 
when funds are drawn down or otherwise obtained from the grant payment system. 

Each publication, press release, or other document about research supported by an NIH award 
must include an acknowledgment of N IH award support and a disclaimer such as "Research 
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
research. please notify the NIH awarding IC in advance to allow for coordination. 

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
does not apply to Phase I Small Business Innovative Research (SBIR) and Small Business 
Technology Transfer (STIR) awards. Consult the NIH website 
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/policy/coi/ for a link to the regulation and additional important 
information . 

If you have any questions about this award, please contact the individual(s) referenced in Section 
IV. 

Sincerely yours. 
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Tseday G Girma 
Grants Management Officer 
NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF ALLERGY AND INFECTIOUS DISEASES 

Additional information follows 
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SECTION I -AWARD DATA- 2R01Al1 10964-06 REVISED 

Award Calculat ion (U.S. Dollars) 
Salaries and Wages 
Fringe Benefits 
Personnel Costs (Subtotal) 
Consultant Services 
Mater ials & Supplies 
Travel 
SubawardsfConsortium/Contractual Costs 

Federal Direct Costs 
Federal F&A Costs 
Approved Budget 
Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated (Federal Share) 
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARD AMOUNT 

AMOUNT OF THIS ACTION (FEDERAL SHARE) 

SUMMARY TOTALS FOR ALL YEARS 

$170,123 
$53,590 

$223,713 
$49,750 
$20,850 
$15,027 

$229,651 

$538,991 
$122,989 
$661 ,980 
$661 ,980 
$661 ,980 

($-71,770) 

YR THIS AWARD CUMULATIVE TOTALS 
6 $661 ,980 $661,980 
7 $637,980 $637,980 
8 $637,980 $637,980 
9 $637,980 $637,980 
10 $637,980 $637,980 

Recommended future year total cost support, subject to the availability of funds and satisfactory 
progress of the project 

Fiscal Information: 
CFDAName: 
CFDA Number: 
EIN: 
Document Number: 
PMS Account Type: 
Fiscal Year: 

IC CAN 
Al 8472364 

Allergy and Infectious Diseases Research 
93.855 
1311726494A1 
RAl1109648 
P (Subaccount) 
2019 

2019 2020 
$661,980 $637,980 

2021 
$637,980 

2022 2023 
$637,980 $637,980 

Recommended future year total cost support. subject to the availability of funds and satisfactory 
progress of the project 

NIH Administrative Data: 
PCC: M51C B / OC: 4148 / Released: GIRMATG 08/02/2019 
Award Processed: 08/05/2019 12:01 :51 AM 

SECTION II - PAYMENT/HOTLINE INFORMATION - 2R01Al1 10964-06 REVISED 

For payment and HHS Office of Inspector General Hotline information, see the NIH Home Page 
at http://grants.nih.gov/grants/policy/awardconditions.htm 

SECTION 111 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS - 2R01Al110964-06 REVISED 

This award is based on the application submitted to, and as approved by, NIH on the above-titled 
project and is subject to the terms and conditions incorporated either directly or by reference in 
the following: 

a . The grant program legislation and program regulation cited in this Notice of Award . 
b. Conditions on activities and expenditure of funds in other statutory requirements, such as 

those included in appropriations acts. 
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C. 45 CFR Part 75. 
d. National Policy Requirements and all other requirements described in the NIH Grants 

Policy Statement, including addenda in effect as of the beginning date of the budget 
period. 

e. Federal Award Performance Goals: As required by the periodic report in the RPPR or in 
the final progress report when applicable. 

f. This award notice, INCLUDING THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS CITED BELOW. 

(See NIH Home Page at http://grants.nih.gov/grants/policy/awardconditions.htm for certain 
references cited above.) 

Research and Development (R&D): All awards issued by the National Institutes of Health (NIH) 
meet the definition of "Research and Development" at 45 CFR Part§ 75.2. As such, auditees 
should identify NIH awards as part of the R&D cluster on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal 
Awards (SEFA). The auditor should test NIH awards for compliance as instructed in Part V, 
Clusters of Programs. NIH recognizes that some awards may have another classification for 
purposes of indirect costs. The auditor is not required to report the disconnect (i.e. , the award is 
classified as R&D for Federal Audit Requirement purposes but non-research for ind irect cost rate 
purposes), unless the auditee is charging indirect costs at a rate other than the rate(s) specified in 
the award document(s). 

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
the System for Award Management (SAM). Should a consortium/subaward be issued under this 
award, a DUNS requirement must be included. See 
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/policv/awardconditions.htm for the full NIH award term implementing 
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
Transparency Act subaward and e·>:ecutive compensation reporting requirement of 2 CFR Part 
170. There are conditions that may exclude this award; see 
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/policy/awardconditions.htm for additional award applicability 
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

In accordance with the regulatory requirements provided at 45 CFR 75.113 and Appendix XII to 
45 CFR Part 75, recipients that have currently active Federal grants, cooperative agreements, 
and procurement contracts with cumulative total value greater than $10,000,000 must report and 
maintain information in the System for Award Management (SAM) about civil, criminal, and 
administrative proceedings in connection with the award or performance of a Federal award that 
reached final disposition within the most recent five-year period. The recipient must also make 
semiannual disclosures regarding such proceedings. Proceedings information will be made 
publicly available in the designated integrity and performance system (currently the Federal 
Awardee Performance and Integrity Information System (FAPIIS)). Full reporting requirements 
and procedures are found in Apperdix XII to 45 CFR Part 75. This term does not apply to NIH 
fellowships. 
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Treatment of Program Income: 
Additional Costs 

SECTION IV - Al Special Terms and Conditions - 2R01A l110964-06 REVISED 

Clinical Trial Indicator: No 
This award does not support any NIH-defined Clinical Trials. See the NIH Grants Policy Statement 
Section 1.2 for NIH definition of Clinical Trial. 

REVISED AWARD: This award is revised to adjust the budget in accordance with the letter from 
Aleksei Chmura/ECOHealth Alliance. 

Supersedes previous Notice of Award dated 07/24/2019. 

This Notice of Award (NoA) includes funds for activity with The University of North Carolina at 
Chapel Hill in the amount of $77,750 ($50,000 direct costs+ $27,750F&A costs). 

This Notice of Award (NoA) includes funds for activity with Wuhan Institute of Virology in the 
amount of $76,301 ($70,649 direct costs + $5,652 F&A costs). 

This Notice of Award (NOA) includes funds for activity with Institute of Pathogen Biology in the 
amount of $75,600 ($70,000 direct costs + $5,600 F&A costs). 

********************* 

The Research Performance Progress Report (RPPR), Section G.9 (Foreign component), includes 
reporting requirements for all research performed outside of the United States. Research 
conducted at the following site(s) must be reported in your RPPR: 

Wuhan Institute of Virology, CHINA 

Institute of Pathogen Biology, CHINA 

East China Normal University, CHINA 

Duke-NUS Medical School, SINGAPORE 

This award reflects current Federal policies regarding Facilities & Administrative (F&A) Costs for 
foreign grantees including foreign sub-awardees, and domestic awards with foreign sub­
awardees. Please see: Chapter 16 Grants to Foreign Organizations, International Organizations, 
and Domestic Grants with Foreign Components, Section 16.6 "Allowable and Unallowable Cost" 
of the NIH Grants Policy. 

******************** 

This award may include collaborations with and/or between foreign organizations. Please be 
advised that short term travel visa expenses are an allowable expense on this grant. if justified as 
critical and necessary for the conduct of the project. 

The budget period anniversary start date for future year(s) will be July 1. 

Dissemination of study data will be in accord with the Recipient's accepted genomic data sharing 
plan as stated in the page(s) 203 of the application. Failure to adhere to the sharing plan as 
mutually agreed upon by the Recipient and the NIAID may result in Enforcement Actions as 
described in the NIH Grants Policy Statement. 

This award is subject to the Clinical Terms of Award referenced in the NIH Guide for Grants and 
Contracts, July 8, 2002, NOT Al-02-032. These terms and conditions are hereby incorporated by 
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reference, and can be accessed via the following World Wide Web address: 
https://www.niaid.nih.gov/grants-contracts/niaid-clinical-terms-award All submissions required by 
the NIAID Clinical Terms of Award must be forwarded electronically or by mail to the responsible 
NIAID Program Official identified on this Notice of Award. 

Awardees who conduct research involving Select Agents (see 42 CFR 73 for the Select Agent 
list; and 7 CFR 331 and 9 CFR 121 for the relevant animal and plant pathogens 
at http://www.selectagents.gov/Regulations.html} must complete registration with CDC (or 
APHIS, depending on the agent) before using NIH funds. No funds can be used for research 
involving Select Agents if the final registration certificate is denied. 

Prior to conducting a restricted experiment with a Select Agent or Toxin, awardees must notify the 
NIAID and must request and receive approval from CDC or APHIS. 

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
Biosafety in Microbiological and Biomedical Laboratories (BMBL) 
(http://www.cdc.gov/OD/ohs/biosfty/bmbl5/bmbl5toc.htm). Research funded under this grant 
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

If your IBC or equivalent body or oficial has determined, for example, by conducting a risk 
assessment, that the work being planned or performed under this grant may be conducted at a 
biocontainment safety level that is lower than BSL3. 

If the work involves Select Agents and/or Highly Pathogenic Agents, also address the following 
points: 

Any changes in the use of the Agent(s) or Toxin(s) including its restricted 
experiments that have resulted in a change in the required biocontainment level, 
and any resultant change in location, if applicable, as determined by your IBC or 
equivalent body or official. 

If work with a new or additional Agent(s)/Toxin(s) is proposed in the upcoming 
project period, provide: 

o A list of the new and/or additional Agent(s) that will be studied; 
o A description of the work that will be done with the Agent(s), and 
whether or not the work is a restricted experiment; 
o The title and location for each biocontainment resource/facility, 
including the name of the organization that operates the facility, and the 
biocontainment level at which the work will be conducted, with 
documentation of approval by your IBC or equivalent body or official. It 
is important to note if the work is being done in a new location. 
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STAFF CONTACTS 

The Grants Management specialist is responsible for the negotiation, award and administration of 
this project and for interpretation of Grants Administration policies and provisions. The Program 
Official is responsible for the scientific, programmatic and technical aspects of this project. These 
individuals work together in overall project administration. Prior approval requests (signed by an 
Authorized Organizational Representative) should be submitted in writing to the Grants 
Management Specialist. Requests may be made via e-mail. 

Grants Management Specialist: Tseday G Girma 
Email: (b)(6)v Phone: (b)(6) Fax: 301-493-0597 

Program Official: Erik J. Stemmy 
Email ( Phone: (b)(6) 

SPREADSHEET SUMMARY 
GRANT NUMBER: 2R01Al110964-06 REVISED 

INSTITUTION: ECOHEAL TH ALLIANCE, INC. 

Budget Year6 Year? Year8 Year9 Year10 
Salaries and Wages $170,123 $170,123 $170,123 $170,123 $170,123 
Fringe Benefits $53,590 $53,590 $53,590 $53,590 $53,590 
Personnel Costs (Subtotal) $223,713 $223,713 $223,713 $223,713 $223,713 
Consultant Services $49,750 $49,750 $49,750 $49,750 $49,750 
Materials & Supplies $20,850 $14,850 $14,850 $14,850 $14,850 
Travel $15,027 $15,027 $15,027 $15,027 $15,027 
Subawards/Consortium/Contractual $229,651 $229,651 $229,651 $229,651 $229,651 
Costs 
Publication Costs $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 
TOT AL FEDERAL DC $538,991 $538,991 $538,991 $538,991 $538,991 
TOT AL FEDERAL F&A $122,989 $98,989 $98,989 $98,989 $98,989 
TOTAL COST $661 ,980 $637,980 $637,980 $637,980 $637,980 

Facilities and Administrative Costs Year6 Year? Year8 Year9 Year 10 
F&A Cost Rate 1 32% 32% 32% 32% 32% 
F&A Cost Base 1 $384,340 $309,340 $309,340 $309,340 $309 ,340 
F&A Costs 1 $122,989 $98,989 $98,989 $98,989 $98,989 
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